REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE			Form Approved MB No. 074-0188		
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching the data needed, and completing and reviewing this collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this col reducing this burden to Washington Headquarters Services, Directorate for Information Operations and Reports, 1215 Jefferson Davis Highway, Suite 1204 Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0704-0188), Washington, DC 20503		tructions, searching ex ner aspect of this collec	isting data sources, gathering and maintaining tion of information, including suggestions for		
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave blank)	2. REPORT DATE 13 November 2008	3. REPORT TYPE AND			
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE CDUM Program PDIT Final Technical Report	13 November 2008	Final Technical Rep	5. FUNDING N	<u>– 55/2007)</u> UMBERS 0103-02-D0016/0019	
6. AUTHOR(S) Michael H. O'Connell					
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION	NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)			IG ORGANIZATION	
Product Data Integration Technologies, Inc. dba Modulant 444 W Ocean Blvd, Suite 620 Long Beach, CA 90802		MDER			
9. SPONSORING / MONITORING A	GENCY NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(E	S)		RING / MONITORING REPORT NUMBER	
CDUM Program HQ, Defense Logistics Agency Fort Belvoir, VA					
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES					
12a. DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILIT DISTRIBUTION STATEMEI	Y STATEMENT NT A. Approved for public rele	ease; distribution is u	inlimited.	12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE	
13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 Wo	rds)				
The DLA and DSCP sponsored Customer Driven Uniform Manufacturing (CDUM) program's primary goals are to reduce total supply chain costs and inventory levels while minimizing retail shortages for hard to produce and critical items for non-recruit clothing. The foundation for the achievement of these goals is the existence of a web accessible database that provides total supply chain asset visibility to all functions that make decisions or consume apparel items. PDIT's CDUM assignments were to create the web accessible database, create decision support tools that utilize this database, and develop tools for use by apparel manufacturers, OCIE sites, and Virtual Prime Vendors that capture the data needed to fill voids in the total supply chain asset visibility picture. PDIT initiated three key projects to address these assignments. The CDUM Asset Visibility System database (CDUM DataMart) was developed to create the central repository for total supply chain asset visibility. The CDUM web site was created to support the shipping and receiving functions while capturing status data needed to make more informed decisions.					
14. SUBJECT TERMS Data Warehouse, Apparel, Su	upply Chain Management, Asse	et Visibility. Wholesale		15. NUMBER OF PAGES 158	
	itical and Challenging Items, Sl			16. PRICE CODE	
17. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF REPORT	18. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE	19. SECURITY CLASSIF OF ABSTRACT		20. LIMITATION OF ABSTRACT None	
UNCLASSIFIED NSN 7540-01-280-5500	UNCLASSIFIED	UNCLASSIF		dard Form 298 (Rev. 2-89)	
11011 / 540-01-200-5500				ribed by ANSI Std. Z39-18	

CDUM Program Final Technical Report

Contract: SP0103-02-D-0016 Delivery Order: 0019



Prepared for: Apparel Research Network Program Defense Logistics Agency DSCP and HQ, Fort Belvoir, VA

Prepared by:

Product Data Integration Technologies, DBA Modulant



444 West Ocean Blvd, Suite 620 Long Beach, California 90802 (562) 495-6500

November 13, 2008

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT A. Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

Table of Contents

Pref	face	1
Exe	cutive Summary	3
Intr	oduction	5
1	ARN and CDUM System Architecture	
	1.1 Operational Architecture	
	1.2 Computer System Infrastructure	10
2	AAVS DataMart	
	2.1 Wholesale Data Sources	13
	2.2 Manufacturing Data Sources	
	2.3 Retail Data Sources	
	2.4 Associated Data Sources	
	2.5 Users and Menus	
	2.6 Data Quality Overrides	
	2.7 Carrier API Data Access	
	2.8 RFID	22
3	AAVS DataMart Extractions	
	3.1 VIM Functions Developed and Managed by ATI	
	3.2 Access via AAVS FTP Site	23
4	System Components	24
	4.1 VIM-ASAP	
	4.2 VIM – Virtual Item Manager	43
5	Accomplishments During This Contract Period	
	5.1 Fabric Supplier and End-Item Manufacturer Coordination	
	5.2 Manufacturing Shipment through Retail Receipt Management	
	5.3 Non-Recruit Clothing Life-Cycle Management	53

List of Figures

Figure 1 – ARN and CDUM Networks and Interface	3
Figure 2 – ARN and CDUM Operational Scenario	6
Figure 3 – ARN and CDUM Pyramid	9
Figure 4 – Network Devices	10
Figure 5 – EBS Extraction for the AAVS DataMart	13
Figure 6 – VIM-ASAP User Login Web Page	24
Figure 7 – Administrative Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP	25
Figure 8 – Manufacturing Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP	25
Figure 9 – Bill and Hold Depot Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP	25
Figure 10 – Report Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP	
Figure 11 – VIM-ASAP Processes	
Figure 12 – DD250 Data Setup	27
Figure 13 – Identify Prime Contractor	

i

Figure 14 – Identify Alternate Ship-From Sites
Figure 15 – Review New Contracts
Figure 16 – Submit Data Change Requests
Figure 17 – Disposition Data Change Requests
Figure 18 – Allocate Production
Figure 19 – Set Option for RFID data Capture
Figure 20 – Identify Users
Figure 21 – VIM-ASAP Production Processes
Figure 22 – Start Production
Figure 23 – Print Case Labels
Figure 24 – Prepare DD250s
Figure 25 – Prepare DD250s
Figure 26 – Prepare Military Shipment Label (MSL)
Figure 27 – VIM-ASAP Manufacturing Monitoring Processes
Figure 28 – Monitor DD250 Payments
Figure 29 – Monitor DD250 Payment Details
Figure 30 – Monitor CLIN Shipment and Receipt Status
Figure 31 – VIM-ASAP Manufacturing Monitoring Processes
Figure 32 – Assign Contract to Buyer
Figure 33 – Monitor CLIN Shipment and Receipt Status
Figure 34 – View Contract Data
Figure 35 – View Contract Shipment Totals
Figure 36 – View DD250s
Figure 37 – View RFID Shipments
Figure 38 – Change Case Lot Quantity in VIM-ASAP
Figure 39 – Update User Profile Web Page
Figure 40 – Edit Menu Membership Web Page
Figure 41 – Resolve Contract Data Change Request Web Page
Figure 42 – Data Changes for Past Year
Figure 44 – Sample Requisition Shipment Tracking

List of Tables

Table 1 – AAVS DataMart Data Sources	9
Table 2 – ARN Production Network Devices	10
Table 3 – Manually Created Table for DFAS Codes and Addresses	17
Table 4 – User and Menu Data Tables	21
Table 5- Data Available from Carriers' APIs	21
Table 6 – AAVS FTP Sites and Content of Files	23
Table 7 – VIM Functions, Status, and Development Responsibility	44

Appendices

- A Acronyms
- B Appendix B VIM-ASAP Statistics
- C VIM-ASAP v2.0 Users Manual
- D VIM-ASAP Overview
- E MILSTRIP and MILSTRAP Usage Rules
- F MILSTRIP and MILSTRAP Formats
- G RFID Data Exchange Format

Preface

The Customer Driven Uniform Manufacturing (CDUM) Final Technical Report covers all the work done on contract SP0103-02-D-0016, Delivery Order 0019. The work was performed beginning on May 09, 2006 and was completed on May 10, 2007. This report is built upon the foundation of all previous Apparel Research Network (ARN) and CDUM work so that a complete picture (Sections 1 thru 4) can be presented of how the tasks performed during the past year (Section 5) relate to the entire ARN and CDUM systems. ARN refers to the components of the system that were previously developed using R&D funds, but is now funded by DSCP C&T sustaining funds. CDUM refers to the new components of the total system that are currently being developed using R&D funds, but have not yet made the transition to ARN's sustaining support. Both systems use the same data foundation, but operate on a different set of servers.

CDUM is focused on the effective management of non-recruit clothing which is complicated by challenging aspects in design, material supply, manufacturing, storage, and operational performance. In addition these clothing items have specific requirements for asset visibility, accountability, disposal and shelf-life management. There are challenges that spread across recognized functional processes, activities, and actions throughout these items' life-cycle. A review of these constraining requirements suggests that application of advanced technologies can significantly improve the end-to-end management activities associated with these clothing items.

CDUM has explored the application of advanced technologies in various processes and activities to greatly improve the end-to-end management of non-recruit clothing – from raw material supplier through disposal. The capabilities developed and demonstrated from this effort will have beneficial application across the range of non-recruit clothing items. These benefits will apply to the management of such critical and challenging items as individual protective equipment (IPE), body armor, aviation, and extended cold weather clothing systems (ECWCS) and extend to those less challenging items, like battle dress uniforms.

The goal of this project is to explore the application of advanced technologies in end-to-end item management of non-recruit clothing items. Although the application of these technologies will be useful throughout the life-cycle of these clothing items, this project will focus on improving critical management functions, processes and activities in two main segments. These segments are; a) the supplier segment – which is bounded by the raw material supplier through manufacturer delivery; b) wholesale distribution; and c) the post-wholesale segment – which is bounded by the activities associated with retail through disposal. While the focus of this project will be on these three main segments, any improvements or benefits resulting from CDUM efforts that can be realized by other activities outside of these three non-recruit clothing segments will not be ignored.

There are a number of advanced technologies under consideration by CDUM that could be explored as solutions to critical problems encountered in these three vital segments. These include, but are not limited to:

- Contact Memory Buttons	- Biometrics	- Web-based Technologies
- Mesh Networks/Sensory Systems	- Body Scanning	- Bar Coding
- Optical Recognition Systems	- RFID	- Real Time Locating Systems
- Wireless Communication	- Form Scanning	- MEMS
- etc.		

1

The objectives of the CDUM program in exploring the application of selected advanced technologies are to demonstrate the:

1. Integration of advanced technologies into the supplier base/manufacturing processes.

Advanced technologies will be demonstrated to fill capability gaps that constrain the supplier base segment. In addition, methods for integrating advanced technologies into the manufacture, marking and packaging of non-recruit clothing items will be demonstrated.

2. Integration of advanced technologies into wholesale and post-wholesale segment activities.

Advanced technologies that will streamline current distribution, retail, storage, issue, operations, return and disposal processes will be demonstrated. These technologies will improve the effectiveness and eliminate non-value added activities associated with non-recruit clothing item management requirements.

3. Leverage advanced technologies for improved data management required throughout the non-recruit clothing life cycle to improve end-to-end management.

End-to-end management processes are constrained by the lack of data, limitations of legacy systems, and inaccurate data. Critical product information, asset visibility, and accountability is lost through inefficient data collection, transfer, and entry. Advanced technologies that improve the integrity and availability of data to non-recruit clothing item stakeholders will be demonstrated.

CDUM will also leverage on-going activities that will impact non-recruit clothing item management. These activities include the Army OCIE retained issue concept, the centralization of IPE by DOD and the Services, and the development of Global Combat Support System - Army.

Executive Summary

DLA (Defense Logistics Agency) and DSCP C&T (Defense Supply Center Philadelphia Clothing and Textiles) sponsored ARN's and CDUM's primary goals, which are to reduce total supply chain costs and inventory levels while minimizing retail shortages. The foundation for the achievement of these goals is the existence of web accessible databases that provide total supply chain asset visibility to all functions that manufacture products, make decisions, distribute products, and consume apparel items. The ARN components of the total system are those that are in production and funded by DSCP C&T. The CDUM components of the total system are those that are part of DLA's R&D efforts to expand system capabilities beyond ARN to address nonrecruit clothing, particularly hard to procure and mission critical items.

The ARN and CDUM networks are completely isolated from each other (see Figure 1). The ARN network is only being used for DSCP C&T funded production support for DSCP C&T personnel, its vendors, eight of the recruit training centers, and KYLOC. The CDUM pilots needed a separate network and a subset of ARN's database to support both PDIT's and AdvanTech's CDUM pilots. The CDUM network was established by one of PDIT's tasks to provide a completely redundant set of web and database servers, domain controllers, firewalls, and the rest of the equipment and software required to support CDUM's development and testing needs. The network is now in place and supporting all CDUM R&D efforts.



Figure 1 – ARN and CDUM Networks and Interface

ARN's AAVS DataMart is an integrated collection of data from a variety of legacy and ARN developed systems. The legacy system data provides part of the total supply chain data, e.g., contracts, requisitions, depot inventory levels, payment responsibilities, administrative offices, requisitions, and manufacturing, retail, and wholesale addresses. The ARN developed systems provide the rest of the data about the total supply chain, e.g., contractor shipments, retail

consumption patterns, and production status. The current version of the AAVS DataMart contains apparel and textile data for all military services and data related to those items, e.g., retail addresses that receive shipments. Completeness of data, and consistency between sources of data, was a significant problem that was addressed with Modulant developed screening and DSCP C&T controlled update software. The past year's efforts established the CDUM R&D network to 1) define requirements for tracking items from the initial materials through delivery to the customer; 2) deploy a CDUM database (a subset of the ARN database plus new requirements) to support PDIT's and AdvanTech's pilots; 3) define requirements for shipping and receiving processes as the product moves through the entire supply chain; 4) define requirements for utilizing AIT to support product tracking; and 6) on helping manufacturers forecast their workloads by providing them with access to DSCP C&T's demand history. A detailed description of each of the system upgrades can be found in Section 5 of this document.

Introduction

This report provides a summary of the work done by Modulant for the CDUM program for Contract SP0103-02-D-0016. It also describes the foundation work that was done as part of the ARN program. All other documents produced for this contract, both CDRL (Contract Data Requirement List) and non-CDRL, are provided as appendices to this report. The monthly status and financial reports were delivered each month and therefore are not included as attachments to this report. The primary objective for Modulant's work on this contract was to build a single complete supply chain database from a collection of heterogeneous legacy system databases and to make this data available over the Internet for anyone with an interest in some facet of the total supply chain. The visibility into the total supply chain provides the information required to make decisions that can both reduce inventory levels and shortages. The work that Modulant has done to achieve this objective is explained in the following five sections:

- 1. The first section identifies the ARN and CDUM System Architecture using both operational and computer system architectures.
- 2. The second section identifies the structure and content of the AAVS DataMart, the legacy systems that provide the data, and the FTP sites that provide data to other systems.
- 3. The third section identifies the extractions from the AAVS DataMart for a variety of ARN and CDUM related applications.
- 4. The fourth section identifies the VIM-ASAP and VIM function that were developed by Modulant for the ARN program. The data developed by VIM-ASAP is part of the foundation data used for CDUM pilots.
- 5. The fifth section identifies the specific tasks that were performed on this contract for the delivery order listed on the front page of this report.

1 ARN and CDUM System Architecture

The ARN and CDUM System Architecture can be viewed from either an operational or computer system infrastructure perspective. The operational architecture identifies each of the total supply chain functions, how they relate to each other, and what automated support systems they use. The computer system architecture identifies all the computer and communications related equipment and interfaces.

1.1 Operational Architecture

The ARN and CDUM SCS (Supply Chain System) Operational Architecture is depicted in Figure 2. The processing steps show the interrelationships of the wholesale, wholesale local, and manufacturing segments of the C&T (Clothing & Textile) supply chain and the ARN and related systems that support this process. Solid blue lines are used to indicate material or document flow. Dashed red lines are used to indicate the flow of data.



Figure 2 – ARN and CDUM Operational Scenario

Processing steps and data sources are identified by the numbers in white octagons of Figure 2 and are described as follows:

 <u>View Total Supply Chain and Generate Requisitions</u>: Wholesale local personnel utilize the local inventory management and control system to initiate system functions and begin the daily supply cycle. They may set or change the system's inventory management parameters. Among these is the Annual Shipping Plan, which represents the budgeted numbers of recruits beginning their training each week, and is entered into the system as soon as it is received. Among the many other parameters that may be set are prices, option to order unit pack or exact number of each item, source of supply, and review of Reorder Objectives. Reorder Objectives represent the Safety Level Days, Reorder Point Days and Reorder Quantity Days.

- 2. Record Receipts and Issues: Calculate Inventory Levels and Generate Suggested Order List: The Predictive Forecasting Module is initiated to establish the relationship between the predicted number of recruits and the reorder levels. The system will generate the revised reorder levels (Safety Stock, Reorder Point and Reorder Quantity) for each active item based on three variables. The first variable is the average daily usage per item. The second variable is the "Recruit Load Factor" which represents the increase or decrease of Recruit Activity over the average annual weekly activity for weeks T+2 through T+6. The final variables are the Reorder Objectives. The operator executes the program to compile a list of those items that need to be ordered. After compiling the list, the system will then display the items it recommends should be ordered. The operator then has the ability to add new items to the list, delete items from the list, or change the suggested order quantity. The local retail system performs the usual supply functions of requisition processing, receiving, and issuing stock; cash sales, quality deficiency reporting, inventory adjustments, credits, warehouse denials, and physical inventory. The end of day close outs closes activity each day and prepares the system for the next day's activity. Requisitions are processed into either a DSCP Requisition or a Local Purchase Order. The system extracts all MILSTRIP (Military Standard Requisitioning and Issue Procedures) transactions generated during the current day's activity for upload into services' legacy systems. The system then extracts the daily activity currently required by AAVS DataMart. The data is separated into four tables. They are: Item Master which stores the summary of the activity by item; Daily Issues which contains all the issues for the day; Daily Receipts which contains all receipts entered for the day; and, Open Requisitions which contains all open DSCP Requisitions and Local Purchase Orders. Supply and financial transactions are transmitted each day in MILSTRIP format as required by services' legacy systems.
- 3. <u>Service Specific Systems</u>: Issues are transmitted to each of the services' financial systems to record the transfer of ownership from DLA to the appropriate service. Each day's issue data is also sent to the AAVS DataMart.
- 4. <u>Monitor Supply Chain Inventories</u>: The DSCP C&T Item Manager looks across the total supply chain at shipments, receipts, and inventory levels to ensure that orders are processed in a timely manner and that inventory levels are adequate to support the recruit training centers and a variety of other sites.
- 5. <u>Manage Contracts and Data Quality</u>: DSCP C&T Item Managers and contracting officers utilize VIM to monitor shipments for all contracts, view selected DD250s, track shipment status as recorded by the carrier, view DD1155s from data extracted from EBS, and to disposition data quality issues that were raised by any of the manufacturers.
- 6. <u>Manage Depots and Process Material Release Orders</u>: There are four types of depots. The first is the DLA operated depots that use their own legacy systems to perform all their functions, including generating updates to EBS. The CDUM systems do not impact these depots directly. All interaction with these depots is done through the Distribution Standard System (DSS). The second type of depot is called a Virtual Prime Vendor (VPV) which

performs very much like a DLA depot, except that they use a combination of internal and CDUM systems rather than DSS. The third type of depot is operated by bill and hold contractors who use VIM-ASAP to manage their inventories, receive and process requisitions, generate all the required shipping documents and MRO (Material Release Order) forms, initiate and track carrier shipments, and format and transmit all XML transactions to DAAS. The fourth type of depot is dedicated to the support each of the Recruit Training Centers (RTC). These depots normally only provide support to their local RTC, but do occasionally use VIM-ASAP for shipments to other RTCs for cross-leveling purposes. Depot stock is kept in bulk storage all the way to the issue line. DLA ownership of each item is transferred to the services as they are issued to the recruit.

- 7. <u>Manufacture and Ship Items</u>: The CDUM system called VIM-ASAP supports clothing and textile manufacturers with functions that; provide access to digital contracts, support the recording of production status, generate all invoices and shipping documentation, associate RFID tags with those shipments, format and transmit digital invoices to DFAS, track DFAS payments for each CLIN (Contract Line Item Number) in every invoice, support data quality problem notifications for DSCP, track contract versus shipment status, and provide access to carrier tracking information for each shipment.
- 8. <u>EBS (Enterprise Business System</u>: The source for much of the AAVS DataMart data is extracted from EBS. EBS contain a wide range of data, including retail requisitions, manufacturer's contracts, and depot inventory levels for all NSNs (National Stock Number). Some EBS data is updated by a variety of CDUM systems using XML transactions.
- 9. <u>Other Data Sources</u>: The other data provides manufacturer's names and addresses, DFAS (Defense Finance and Accounting System) billing addresses, depot identifications, DFAS payment status, NSN to UPC correlations, and a wide variety of related data.
- 10. <u>AAVS DataMart</u>: The AAVS DataMart provides total asset visibility for all retail, wholesale, and manufacturing activities. At the retail level it tracks consumption, demand, and on-hand inventory levels. At the wholesale level it tracks depot supplies and requisitions by location. At the manufacturing level it tracks contracts, production status, and shipments.
- 11. <u>RFID Packaging Data</u>: RFID packaging data is developed by each manufacturer as they tag each case and load the cases on pallets. RFID equipment is used to track the correlation between NSNs, case tags, and pallets. When the packing is complete, the data from this process is transmitted via FTP to CDUM for inclusion in the AAVS DataMart and for transmission to WAWF-RA as part of the DD250 data.
- 12. <u>Carriers' Databases</u>: Each carrier has its own database and Application Program Interface (API) that permits web based data exchange with the AAVS DataMart. The data exchanged using the API includes carrier shipment labels and tracking numbers, shipment status, delivery date and location, name signature of person who received the shipment, and cost of the shipment.

The CDUM architecture can also be viewed as a pyramid chart (see Figure 3). The chart shows that all CDUM functions are accessible as part of VIM and work with only data from the AAVS DataMart. The chart also shows the AAVS sources of data (see Table 1).

	Data Sources
CAGE	Provides manufacturers' address and business categories
CAS	Correlates EBS admin office codes with DCMA addresses
DFAS	Payment status for DD 250s
DODAAC	Provides addresses, port identifiers, and bulk break points
FEDLOG	Correlates NSN with sizes, nomenclature and freight classifications
IRM	Captures issues at Air Force, Army, and Marine Corps RTCs
PAY OFC	Correlates EBS pay codes with DFAS addresses
RIC	Correlates depot identifiers with their DODAAC
EBS	Contracts, requisitions, and depot inventories
Services-R	Retail systems used by various services (e.g., Army, Air Force, etc.)
UPC/ORC	Provides NSN to UPC Correlation and Item Manager and PGC responsibilities
3D Scan	Determines sizes from 3D body scan

Table 1 – AAVS DataMart Data Sou	rces
----------------------------------	------





1.2 Computer System Infrastructure

ARN's production, production support, staging, and development system is shown in Figure 4. The production system is supported by a fully redundant configuration of servers and communications devices built upon the foundation of battery backups to protect against power failures. An ARN router and firewall handle the network communications. The major components of the ARN production network are listed in Table 2. A duplicate set of equipment was established to support the CDUM pilots.



Device	Notes
Batch Database Server	The database server is used for all batch updates (e.g., EBS data downloads), periodic batch jobs, and any analysis ad hoc queries
Dual Web Servers	The web server contains three web sites and all the related HTML, HTTP, and FTP access and web pages.

Device	Notes
Dual Database Servers	The database server contains all the SQL 2000 software and controls all database access. The database server cannot be addressed externally, but only through the web server. This prevents hackers from even being able to understand that the database server even exists, which means that it is impossible for hackers to access the database server.
Firewall	The firewall provides protection from unauthorized access as well as control over a network's VPN (Virtual Private Network).
Router	The router manages the network and routes all inter-server communications.
RAID	A RAID (Redundant Array of Independent Disks) device has totally redundant circuits and disk drives. All data is updated at two physical locations as a mirror image on two separate drives. Dual transaction logs for each change are also kept on two drives.
ISP (T1)	CDUM's Internet Service Provider is Sprint
Production Support Server	A web server is "Air Gapped" from the production network so that carrier software can be installed that is not part of the NIST approved software. The production network periodically pulls the carrier data that is created by the carrier software. The server is also used to capture the RFID data from each vendor's server.

The ARN and CDUM networks contain staging web and database servers that are configured just like the production and pilot servers for final testing prior to moving software to production or for pilot testing with users. The staging computers are accessible and can be updated by both AdvanTech and Modulant personnel for system testing prior to updating production. The production server can only be updated by a single individual while physically at the production server. This is done for security and configuration management purposes. Requiring that the update be done from the console on the production server provides an extra layer of security. The single individual doing the updates for production will follow a specific procedure that guarantees that the right approvals have been obtained and that an archive is properly maintained of all changes.

There are also two development servers with the functions split just like the production servers. All of the programmers have full access to this equipment to develop and test the functions that they are responsible for. MS SourceSafe is being used to manage all software from the start of development through maintenance of the code while in production. All servers utilize Windows Server 2003 for their operating system. The database software for both the production server is Microsoft SQL Server 2000, although all new developments on the CDUM servers are using SQL Server 2005. VeriSign provides the encryption protection software.

2 AAVS DataMart

The ARN Asset Visibility System (AAVS) DataMart contains the following databases:

- 1. **AAVS-CTWHS**: This database contains raw data downloads, primarily from C&T sources (i.e., C&T Data Warehouse plus associated tables from C&T for UPC correlations to NSNs, Item Manager responsibilities for PGCs, etc.). The raw data is used to build the tables in the AAVS DataMart.
- 2. **AAVS DataMart**: The AAVS DataMart contains the processed raw data from the AAVS-CTWHS database along with the rest of the data gathered from other master sources, e.g., CAGE, DODAAC, RIC, etc.
- 3. **ASAPweb20**: ASAPweb20 contains all Contract, Requisition, DD250, MRO, and related data (e.g., shipment labels) generated by VIM-ASAP using the data from the AAVS DataMart.
- 4. **ASTRA**: The ASTRA database contains all AdvanTech data from IRM for all of the ordering, receipt, adjustment, and issue related MIL transactions, e.g., A0A, D6K, D8A, etc.
- 5. **Cage Codes**: The CageCodes database contains 100% of all CAGE data extracted from the master CAGE database from the E-Gov web site. A subset of this data for only C&T vendors is copied to the AAVS DataMart.
- 6. **Codes**: There are a series of codes that are used within EBS, e.g., signal codes, shipment codes, fast pay codes, etc. This database is used to translate those codes to short descriptions whenever the codes are displayed to the user.
- 7. **DODAAC**: The DODAAC database contains 100% of all DODAAC data extracted from the master DODAAC database from a DAAS web site. A subset of this data for only C&T customers is copied to the AAVS DataMart.
- 8. **MIL Transactions**: The MIL Transactions database contains the VIM-ASAP originated data used to create 80-column MILSTRIP and MILSTRAP, XML, or EDI transactions. The database also contains violations history and violation code transaction data for SAMMS only. Comparable EBS data is not currently available.
- 9. SAMMS Transactions: There are a handful of special MIL transactions that are unique to SAMMS (e.g., YPA, YPE, etc.) that are used to change FOB codes, DCMA management DODAACs, etc. This database contains the data used to generate those transactions along with the data change request and disposition database that initiate the transactions. EBS does not support a comparable update transaction, so these transactions are being phased out as EBS replaces SAMMS for all commodities.
- 10. **VIMOCIE**: The VIMOCIE database contains data generated from the three OCIE sites currently supported by VIM, i.e., Pearl Harbor, Yokosuka, and Europe. It also contains some of the master data required to support the OCIE sites.

- 11. **VIM Security 20**: This database contains the total VIM menu and each user group's access to a specific subset of the total menu. It also contains data for all authorized users and their associations with CAGEs, ORCs, Contracts, etc.
- 12. **VIM Wholesale**: The VIM Wholesale database collects and organizes total supply chain visibility data from the AAVS DataMart along with the data for each of the recruit training centers to generate replenishment order recommendations along with various total supply chain visibility reports for DSCP C&T personnel.
- 13. **VIMWL**: The VIM Wholesale Local database is used in conjunction with IRM to provide a handful of web accessible functions through VIM, including receiving, shipping, and management of each stockroom which includes inventory counts, stock locations, etc.

2.1 Wholesale Data Sources

DSCP C&T item managers and contracting officers manage their inventories, requisitions, and contracts using EBS, DSD, and the C&T Data Warehouse (see Figure 5). DSCP in Philadelphia runs a nightly batch update to create two Oracle databases for only clothing and textile (C&T) items. One is called the C&T Data Warehouse and the other is called the DSD (Decision Support Database). Modulant in Long Beach initiates a nightly batch extraction from both Oracle databases to create a Microsoft SQL Server 2000 database called the AAVS DataMart. The extraction program runs automatically each night looking to see if any of the EBS and DSD tables are updated. Once an update to any table is detected, it is downloaded to partially replace the data in the AAVS DataMart. The data is only partially replaced to protect against periodic data problems with the Oracle databases. The partial replacement is focused on ensuring that records are not deleted from the AAVS DataMart until seven days after they were deleted from EBS. This is done to protect against inadvertent deletions or partial downloads where some data is missing.



Figure 5 – EBS Extraction for the AAVS DataMart

The data extracted from EBS is done from a series of related tables. The data is screened so that only active products, contracts, and requisitions are loaded into the AAVS DataMart. The EBS tables from the C&T Data Warehouse, include:

• **ACF**: The Active Contracts File table contains contracting data for currently active contracts for each of the apparel manufacturers, e.g., contract number, NSN, order quantity, ship-to locations, CAS code, payment office code, etc.

- **ARCS1**: The Active Requisition Control/Status table 1 contains retail requisition data, e.g., requisition number, requestor identification, NSN, order quantity, etc.
- **ARCS2**: The Active Requisition Control/Status table 2 contains current requisition status information for each suffix code, e.g., requisition number, status code, status date, etc.
- **ARCS3**: The Active Requisition Control/Status table 3 contains requisition status information once the requisition is assigned to be filled by a specific depot, e.g., depot responsible for filling order, denial code, hold code, etc.
- **ARCS4**: The Active Requisition Control/Status table 4 contains shipment data for each requisition, e.g., transportation control number, mode of shipment, shipment date, etc.
- **DUE**: The Due-In table contains due-in information for shipments from depots to retail, e.g., requisition number, depot, order quantity, ship date, etc.
- **NIR**: The National Inventory Record table contains NSN identification data, e.g., PGC, NSN, service(s) that use the garment, total on-hand issuable quantities, responsible item manager identification, etc.
- **NIR2**: The National Inventory Record table 2 contains inventory level data for each depot, e.g., NSN, depot identification, depot inventory level, etc.
- **REDF**: The Requisition Exception Data File table contains exception data, e.g., in-theclear address to be used in place of ship to DODAAC address.
- **SCF**: The Supply Control File table contains information about each NSN, e.g., nomenclature, size, consumption history, etc.
- VCSF: The Violation Control and Suspense File table contains requisition related data, such as follow-up inquiries and various types of violations. The data is stored as 80 column MILSTRIP transactions along with various dates and codes. This data was only available from SAMMS. EBS does not provide this data.

The SAMMS tables from the DSD include:

• **ItmHist**: The Item History File table contains all of the MILSTRIP and MILSTRAP transactions that change inventory levels. This data is being phased out as EBS replaces SAMMS.

The AAVS Extraction program accesses only a subset of the EBS data from the identified tables for insertion into the AAVS DataMart. The data screening rules used to extract the data include:

- All NSNs that are marked as used by any of the military services in the NIR table
- The subset of the above that have a valid PGC in the SCF table
- All contracts in the ACF table that call for any of the above NSNs plus all contracts for special measurement NSNs
- All requisitions in the ARCS tables that call for any of the above NSNs
- All depot records in the NIR2 table for any of the above NSNs
- All due-in records in the DUE table for any of the above NSNs

The AAVS DataMart contains a specific subset of the data elements that could be extracted from the EBS tables. The specific subset was selected based on the CDUM's team knowledge of the

use of the data. A list of all EBS data elements was circulated to the CDUM team so each team member could mark the ones they use. EBS data is extracted the C&T Data Warehouse. The data is screened to only select a specific subset of data that complies with the following:

- All NSNs that begin with an FSC (Federal Supply Class) of "83", "84", or "72".
- Any NSNs that begin with an FSC of "99" whose nomenclature implies apparel
- All of the above NSNs that are marked as used by any of the military services
- All of the above NSNs with non-zero entries in SSC (Standard Supply Code) except for those marked with an SSC of 2 or 6. Specific NSNs with an SSC of 6 are stored if the NSN is from the ARCS1 table and a valid NSN is substituted in the ARCS2 table.
- All contracts that require any of the above NSNs
- All requisitions that require any of the above NSNs
- All depot counts for any of the above NSNs

The AAVS DataMart was expanded to capture data related to special measure orders for the manufacturers who needed the data for orders or for the preparation of their DD1155s (contracts) and DD250s (invoices). Special Measurement garments do not have conventional NSNs. They have special coded NSNs where specific characters have specific meaning. The coding is used to correlate special measurement garments with their PGCs. VIM-ASAP was modified to handle these non-standard NSNs and to associate them with the base PGC that originated the items.

The recruit training centers started using VIM-ASAP shipping functions to redistribute their excess inventory to other sites and to dispose of obsolete items. The AAVS DataMart needed to be modified to distinguish between requisitions in the ARCS tables that are simply records of issues and those requisitions that are to cause shipments to be made.

2.2 Manufacturing Data Sources

VIM-ASAP is a web-based system that is used by apparel manufacturers and bill and hold contractors to access contracts, report production status, generate invoices and shipping documents, generate requisitions and shipping documents, and transactions required to update EBS and systems used by DAAS, DCMA, and DFAS. The following data is created or updated from the AAVS DataMart master source data by VIM-ASAP:

- Cutting status for each CLIN of every contract
- Contract invoicing/shipping status for each CLIN (shipment date, shipment number, invoice number, carrier tracking, payments, RFID tags, etc.)
- Carrier delivery data (tracking number, bill of lading, delivery date, delivery location, name of person who signed for the shipment, etc.)
- Requisition shipping status (shipment date, carrier tracking, weight, volume, TCN (Transportation Control Number), mode of shipment, etc.)
- Replies to follow-up inquiries
- Phoned or faxed orders from DSCP
- EBS temporary data overrides to correct data quality problems while EBS is permanently updated
- Chemical protective garment test sites
- Contract allocations for subcontractors at the CLIN level

 MIL, XML, or EDI transactions for EBS that document the status of shipments and receipts

2.3 Retail Data Sources

Retail data is collected to understand actual consumption, order ship time patterns, and recruit forecasts. In the past, consumption was calculated from retail requisitions processed at the wholesale level. This tended to skew the consumption data because orders were largely budget driven with large orders when funds were available, and smaller orders when the budgets were tight. Today consumption is tracked using two methods. Army, Air Force, and Marine Corps recruit consumption is tracked at the point of issue when ownership is transferred from the DLA owned depot to each recruit. All other consumption is tracked from the EBS requisitions where each requisition is treated as replenishment. Non-recruit training locations do not carry large inventories and tend to place replenishment orders that are very close to actual consumption, especially when all of the orders are grouped into a twelve-month running average.

2.4 Associated Data Sources

A number of data sources were identified and pertinent data extracted to provide a complete AAVS DataMart source of data for use by all CDUM applications. The following data sources were used to acquire the needed data:

2.4.1 CAGE/Manufacturers Identification

CAGE (Commercial And Government Entity code) data is updated each night from a government FTP site at: <u>https://ftp.bpn.gov/web_extracts</u>. The extracted data includes:

- o CAGE
- Company name
- Number and street
- City, State, and Zip with dash number
- o Country
- Phone and Fax number
- Business size code
- Business type code
- Woman owned code
- Type of company

2.4.2 DFAS/Pay Office Codes

DFAS identifies their payment offices with a DODAAC and a mailing address that is slightly different than the address found in the DAAS (Defense Automated Addressing System) DODAAC data. DSCP defines the payment office using the EBS ACF (Active Contracts File) table with a two character alphanumeric code "PAYMT_OFC_CD". No automated source exists that correlates the DFAS DODAAC with the EBS codes. The combination of the lack of an automated correlation and the disjoint between the two DODAAC addresses necessitated the creation of a manual table (see Table) that was created by working with DFAS personnel to get accurate information for the DFAS addresses and the EBS code correlations. DFAS accepts

electronic payments using two formats, i.e., EBS and MOCAS (Mechanization of Contract Administration System). Pay Code "SL" identifies EBS formatted invoices while all other codes identify MOCAS invoices. Codes 12 and 16 were used for contracts SAMMS, which is being discontinued.

Tuble o Multuny of cuted Tuble for DTHS Codes and T						
Pay Code	DODAAC	Name	Title	Address	City, State Zip	
01	SC1020	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JSA/Southeast Division	P.O. Box 182225	Columbus, OH 43218-2225	
09	SC1034	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JSC/Capitol Division	P.O. Box 182263	Columbus, OH 43218-2263	
A1	SC1020	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JSA/Southeast Division	P.O. Box 182225	Columbus, OH 43218-2225	
A2	SC1016	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JNB/Bunker Hill Division	P.O. Box 182077	Columbus, OH 43218-2077	
A3	SC1028	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWB/Gateway Division	P.O. Box 182317	Columbus, OH 43218-2317	
A4	SC1018	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JNF/New Dominion Division	P.O. Box 182041	Columbus, OH 43218-2041	
A5	SC1030	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JSD/Chesapeake Division	P.O. Box 182264	Columbus, OH 43218-2264	
A7	SC1028	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWB/Gateway Division	P.O. Box 182251	Columbus, OH 43218-2251	
A8	SC1032	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JNC/Minuteman Division	P.O. Box 182266	Columbus, OH 43218-2266	
A9	SC1018	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO/JNF New Dominion	P.O. Box 182317	Columbus, OH 43218-2317	
B0	SC1028	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWB/Gateway Division	P.O. Box 182251	Columbus, OH 43218-2251	
B2	SC1032	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JNC/Minuteman Division	P.O. Box 182266	Columbus, OH 43218-2266	
B7	SC1004	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWV/Van Nuys Division	P.O. Box 182157	Columbus, OH 43218-2157	
B8	SC1012	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JNA/Liberty Division	P.O. Box 182104	Columbus, OH 43218-2104	
B9	SC1010	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JND/Independence Division	P.O. Box 182362	Columbus, OH 43218-2362	
C9	SC1030	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JSD/Chesapeake Division	P.O. Box 182264	Columbus, OH 43218-2264	
D7	SC1006	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWT/Santa Ana Division	P.O. Box 182381	Columbus, OH 43218-2381	
D9	SC1034	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JSC/Capitol Division	P.O. Box 182263	Columbus, OH 43218-2263	
E5	HQ0337	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JN/North Entitlements	P.O. BOX 182266	Columbus, OH 43218-2266	
E7	HQ0339	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JW/West Entitlements	P.O. Box 182381	Columbus, OH 43218-2381	
E8	HQ0338	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JS/South Entitlements	P.O. Box 182264	Columbus, OH 43218-2264	
SL	SL4701	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-BVPD	P.O. Box 369031	Columbus, OH 43236-9031	
X1	SC1024	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWA/Gulf Coast	P.O. Box 182231	Columbus, OH 43218-2231	
X2	SC1002	DFAS Columbus Center	DFAS-CO-JWD/DPRO West	P.O. Box 182511	Columbus, OH 43218-2511	

Table 3 – Manually Created Table for DFAS Codes and Addresses

2.4.3 CAS/Administered By Offices

The Federal Directory of Contract Administrative Services (CAS) codes are maintained by the Defense Contract Management Agency (DCMA). CAS codes are used to identify the office that is responsible for the administrative functions for each contract (Block 10 of the DD 250). The three digit numeric codes are periodically extracted from a text file from the DCMA web site at: http://www.dcma.mil. Only government employees may use this site to download the required file (called the CAS Book). DSCP has added to this list with a set of three additional non-standard alpha CAS codes for contracts that are administered in Philadelphia. Standard CAS codes are three digit numbers. The three additional alpha codes are manually entered into the CAS table. The CAS table contains the correlation between the CAS code and its DODAAC. In addition to the CAS Book, we get periodic email notifications from Ms. Vicki Paskanik, DCMA-DSL, (703) 428-1467, email: wicki.paskanik@dcma.mil whenever they reassign or close any of their offices.

2.4.4 DODAAC/Government Addresses

The DODAAC table is built from a very large fixed-column text file that is automatically downloaded each day from a DAAS (Defense Automated Addressing System) web site at: <u>https://www.daas.dla.mil/dodaaf/down_dodaaf.pl</u>. A SQL 2000 stored procedure was developed

to read this file to store the extracted information in a database structure. The resultant table contains DODAAC addresses for every government and many commercial sites throughout the world. A small number of commercial sites are assigned DODAACs when they are assigned responsibility to act as a bill and hold depot to store and deliver government owned items.

The vast majority of these DODAACs are of no interest for the AAVS DataMart. For this reason, a second application was developed that runs each day to extract only pertinent DODAACs for the AAVS DataMart. Pertinent DODAACs are defined as:

- Ship-To sites identified in the EBS ACF table
- Ship-To sites identified in the EBS ARCS tables
- Ship-From sites identified in the EBS ARCS tables
- Administered-By offices as defined in the EBS ACF table

2.4.5 **RIC/Depot Identifiers**

The RIC (Routing Identifier Code) table is built from a very large fixed-column text file that is automatically downloaded each day from a DAAS (Defense Automated Addressing System) web site with the address: <u>https://www.daas.dla.mil/dodaaf/down_dodaaf.pl</u>. A SQL 2000 stored procedure was developed to read this file to store the extracted information in a database structure. The resultant table contains a correlation between the RIC and DODAAC for all government depots throughout the world. A small number of commercial sites are assigned RICs when they are assigned responsibility to act as a bill and hold depot to store and deliver government owned items.

The vast majority of these RICs are of no interest for the AAVS DataMart. For this reason, a second application was developed that runs each day to extract only pertinent RICs for the AAVS DataMart. Pertinent RICs are defined as those that have pertinent DODAACs as defined in Section 2.4.4.

2.4.6 FEDLOG Data

Specific descriptions and codes are required to be placed on all invoices (DD Form 250), carton labels, and MROs (DD Form 1348-1A). The data is extracted from a monthly updated FEDLOG CD-ROM from the Defense Logistics Information Services (DLIS). All of this data is tied to specific NSNs via FEDLOG. The data that is extracted and stored in the AAVS DataMart includes:

- National Motor Freight Classification Code
- National Motor Freight Classification Nomenclature
- Water Commodity Code
- Type of Cargo Code
- Uniform Weight Classification Code
- Product Nomenclature
- Product Size

Product nomenclature and size data had been extracted from the SCF table of EBS, but it was found to be frequently incomplete and inaccurate. During the prior contract year, DSCP C&T

directed us to start using the product nomenclature and size data from FEDLOG instead of the SCF table.

2.4.7 DFAS Payment Status (myInvoice)

Each DD250, at the CLIN level, is tracked against payment status data from a DFAS system called myInvoice. The myInvoice data is automatically downloaded each morning from at: <u>https://myinvoice.csd.disa.mil/</u>. The data is downloaded and archived for most manufacturers that create DD250s. Data can only be accessed for those manufacturers that provide VIM-ASAP with their DUNS number and Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). The specific data from myInvoice that is archived in the AAVS DataMart includes:

- o Invoice number
- Invoice Suffix (created by DFAS as partial payments are made)
- o Contract
- o Delivery Order
- o CLIN
- Check Number
- Voucher Number
- o EFT Number
- o Invoice Issue Date
- Payment Date
- Invoice Amount
- Payment Amount
- Discount Amount
- o Interest Amount
- Pay Status
- Reason Code
- Remarks
- Merchandise Acceptance Date
- Tax Withheld Amount
- o Gross Invoice Amount
- o Locator Code
- Scheduled Payment Date
- Last Action Date

2.4.8 NSN/UPC/ORC/Item Management and Contracting Personnel Identifications

The concept of an ORC (i.e., an Item Manager responsible for each NSN) does not exist in EBS so DSCP C&T has established a separate table that correlates each NSN with a specific UPC and ORC. The data has been made available to the CDUM program and is downloaded for a nightly update of the AAVS DataMart.

2.4.10 Miscellaneous Codes

DLA uses a number of codes that each manufacturer and bill and hold contractor must be able to interpret when preparing shipments or filling orders. The codes required for all of the CDUM

functions extracted from DLA publications at: <u>http://www.dlaps.hq.dla.mil/SR2.htm</u>. The following list of codes has been extracted and stored in the AAVS DataMart:

- **Discount Term Code**: Contractor offered discount for early payment (e.g., 1510 = 1% 15)
- Status Codes: Requisition status (e.g., BB = Item backordered against a due-in stock)
- **Violation Control Codes**: SAMMS transaction violations (e.g., AD = RIC of Receiving Activity Invalid)
- **Condition Codes**: Condition of garment (e.g., A = Serviceable, issuable without qualification)
- **Fund Codes**: Explains purpose of requisition (e.g., AA = Stock Replenishment)
- Advice Codes: Requestor instructions to depot (e.g., 2J = do not substitute or backorder any unfilled quantities)
- **Mode of Shipment Codes**: Identifies type of carrier (e.g., 5 = Surface-Small Package Carrier)
- **Signal Codes**: Defines use of sources for DODAAC (e.g., J = Ship to DODAAC of Supplementary Address and Bill to DODAAC of Requisition)
- **Special Measurement Codes**: Correlates the three digit special measurement code with the appropriate five digit PGC to get the nomenclature (e.g., 02044 = 507 trousers, men's p/w gab green). The data is taken from a static file maintained by DSCP and downloaded for the AAVS DataMart once. This method only works for SAMMS data. EBS has changed the format so that the PGC is now embedded in the NSN.
- **State Codes**: Each state is identified as east or west of the Mississippi river and for the RDC (Regional Distribution Center) region that it is in. This is a static list that was constructed from a DSCP e-mail and knowledge of the states. The data is used to determine the appropriate consolidation point for overseas shipments and to allocate consumption to the appropriate RDC.

2.4.10 Override Data

FEDLOG is the master source for NSN nomenclature and size data. It is the most complete and reliable source of the required data, but there are data quality problems with this source as well. The data at its source is being corrected when mistakes are encountered, but it takes several weeks from the time DSCP C&T requests that a change we see the change reflected in the CD-ROM disk that is sent to us each month. An override data table has been established so the MROs and DD250s can be shipped while the data in FEDLOG is being corrected. The override table contains corrected data for a specific NSN's nomenclature and size. Data is entered in this table only with the approval of DSCP. VIM-ASAP utilizes any override data it finds when preparing MROs, DD250s, and related reports.

2.5 Users and Menus

A series of related tables is maintained that manage VIM menus, users, any ownerships for each user, user groups, and access privileges for each user group. This is done through the data tables identified Table 4.

Name	Description			
Menu Functions	The full list of all VIM functions, their indenture level, and the name of the function invoked			
Users	All VIM users, passwords, email addresses, and the user group they belong to			
User Groups	The name of all user groups			
User Group Functions	A list that correlates which user groups have access to which functions			
User Ownership	A list that correlates each user with any ownerships that exist, e.g., a DSCP buyer can own a contract, a VIM-ASAP user can own a CAGE, etc.			

2.6 Data Quality Overrides

The data quality of the AAVS DataMart data from SAMMS and EBS was manually monitored on a daily basis for a few years, but the CDUM staff is no longer doing this. The results of the daily monitoring was documented in a report that was used to create a series of VIM functions that permit each manufacturer, working with DSCP C&T personnel, to monitor, communicate, and resolve selected data quality problems. The report was used to identify the commonly occurring data quality problems that could be temporarily overwritten in the AAVS DataMart while the updates were made permanent in EBS.

2.7 Carrier API Data Access

The VIM Carrier Integration provides a method for manufacturers to communicate with commercial package or LTL carriers via the VIM website. Through these functions, manufacturers can request a pick-up and print the necessary labels. DSCP can then, track the shipment en route, and obtain proof of delivery when the shipment reaches its' destination. VIM communicates with the carriers' Application Program Interface (API) using XML. This data (see Table) will also be used to provide DSCP's VPV's with information concerning incoming shipments, thus enabling their receiving process to be quicker and more accurate.

Table 5-	Data Available from Carriers' APIs
Data Identification	Notes
a) Carrier tracking number or Bill of Lading	Package carriers use carrier tracking numbers to identify and track shipments while less than truck load (LTL) carriers use bill of ladings (BOL)
b) Carrier shipment label image	A printable image of the package carrier's label is available.
c) Delivery date	The date that the carrier delivered the shipment (various in-transit dates are also available, but we do not intend to archive this data)
d) Delivery location	The site that the carrier recorded when the package was delivered. This is not the address. It is more of a note, e.g., "receptionist at annex".
e) Name of person who signed for delivery	The carrier enters the name of the person that signed for the shipment.
 f) Image of signature of person who signed for delivery 	The carrier uses a wireless device to capture and record a image of the signature of the person who received the shipment
g) Cost of Shipment	Shipment cost data will only be accessed for vendors that want VIM-ASAP to collect that data.

Table 5– Data Available from Carriers' APIs

2.8 **RFID**

The RFID Upload function assists vendors with the requirement to use RFID tags on selected deliveries. When RFID is invoked on the contract, per MIL-STD-129P, both individual cases, as well as pallets need to be marked with RFID tags, and the shipment data associated with those deliveries needs to be transmitted to WAWF-RA. Manufacturers can encode RFID tags using VIM-ASAP functions or use tags supplied by RFID vendors. The manufacturers collect the RFID as they prepare their shipments and then transmit it to VIM via a secure FTP site. VIM passes the DD250 data, along with the associated RFID data to WAWF-RA when the DD250 is finished. A data standard for the RFID data that is transmitted by the vendor to VIM-ASAP can be seen in Appendix G. It is based on the RFID data format that was defined for WAWF-RA.

3 AAVS DataMart Extractions

Different subsets of the AAVS DataMart data elements are provided to different CDUM users for a variety of purposes. Access to the data is controlled with user identifications and passwords.

3.1 VIM Functions Developed and Managed by ATI

The AAVS DataMart update process for EBS data is initiated at 11:00 PM (all times are Eastern) each day. Each EBS table is checked for its update status and then downloaded as soon as it has been updated. ATI's VIM functions are primarily interested in the ACF, DUE, NIR, NIR2, three of the ARCS tables, the violation control file, and the transaction history file. The data is not transmitted, i.e., pushed, until all the pertinent tables have been updated. The transmission is started, if the data is available from EBS, to meet a transmission completion target of 5:30 AM. The transmission is delayed from the time the data is first available in case additional updates are made to any of the pertinent EBS tables. As soon as all AAVS DataMart tables are updated, the remaining tables needed by QLM-Central are "pushed" to the ATI FTP site. This process will be deleted in the near future as all of ATI's VIM functions and database are being moved to the CDUM servers in Long Beach.

3.2 Access via AAVS FTP Site

A variety of custom extractions are automatically prepared and placed or received at the appropriate FTP site (see Table) at various times throughout the day.

Data Access Method	Data of Interest		
Web Access from CDUM Servers	Open Contracts		
Web Access from CDUM Servers	Completed DD250s		
Web Access from CDUM Servers	Open Requisitions		
Web Access from CDUM Servers	Shipped MROs		
Pushed to DAAS	XML Transactions, e.g., D4S, AR0, etc.		
Pushed to DSCP C&T	SAMMS Transactions, e.g., YPM, YPE, etc. (these transactions will be discontinued when no more contracts are processed by SAMMS)		
Pushed to WAWF-RA	Acceptance and/or Invoice Data for all DD250s along with RFID data when required		
Web Access between CDUM and Carrier Servers	Carrier case label, delivery date, delivery location, etc. (other carriers will be added over time)		
Pushed by Each Vendor	RFID tag correlations with NSNs, cases, and pallets for specified contract data		

$\mathbf{I} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{b} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{c} \mathbf{v} = \mathbf{I} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{v} \mathbf{b} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{b} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{c} \mathbf{s} \mathbf{a} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{c} \mathbf{c} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} \mathbf{u} u$	Table 6 –	AAVS H	FTP Sites	and Cor	ntent of Files
---	-----------	--------	-----------	---------	----------------

4 System Components

Modulant has developed two Internet browser based clusters of systems (VIM-ASAP and VIM) that access and update data from the AAVS DataMart. Both clusters of functions are accessible in a single menu located at http://vim.dla-dsc.com. VIM-ASAP supports manufacturers, bill and hold contractors, and shipping functions for recruit training centers while VIM provides a variety of decision support and status monitoring functions for DSCP C&T and its customers and selected vendors, e.g., NISH. VIM-ASAP is the sole responsibility of Modulant while the rest of the VIM functions have been developed by both Modulant and ATI personnel. This document only reviews those VIM functions that were developed by Modulant.

4.1 VIM-ASAP

VIM-ASAP is used by apparel manufacturers, bill and hold contractors, and recruit training centers to access contracts, record production status, prepare all invoice and shipping documents, track payment status from DFAS, prepare material release orders and shipping documents, receive vendor shipments, and generate all of the required electronic transactions for all invoices and shipments. Only authorized users can log onto the system (see Figure 6). A user's manual has been developed and released (see Appendix C "VIM-ASAP v 2.0 Users Manual"). An overview document has also been developed and released (see Appendix D "VIM-ASAP Overview). An overview video has also been prepared and distributed to DSCP C&T and their vendors.

V	IM	
Virtual Ite	e <mark>m Manager</mark>	
Login:	jdoe	The user's login identificatio

Figure 6 – VIM-ASAP User Login Web Page

All VIM users use the same web site to initiate their use of the system. Each user is identified as a manufacturer or a variety of the other user groups. Each user that is a manufacturer is assigned to a CAGE and is only given access to data that is pertinent to that CAGE. They are also given access to a specific set of functions that are called the VIM-ASAP functions. Each CAGE is also identified as either a regular manufacturer or one that is also a bill and hold contractor who also performs DLA depot responsibilities. Each type gets a specific set of functions that are required to support the things they need to do. Users are further identified as either having or not having administrative control over their own data. Every function that can be used by manufacturers and bill and hold contractors and their administrators is shown in Figure 7, Figure 8, and Figure 9. All of the data that is generated by any of these functions (see Figure 7) permit each

manufacturer and bill and hold contractor to identify their own users, initialize data for all their invoices (DD Form 250), set a variety of options about what the system does for the user, allocate production responsibilities for specific contracts to each of their subcontractors, submit data change requests to DSCP for potential EBS data quality problems, and to edit RFID data for a contract.

ASAP Administration	C ASAP Administration				
 Administer DD250 Data 					
Administer Various Options					
 Contract Allocation 					
 Submit Data Change Reque 	est				
Edit Contract RFID					

Figure 7 – Administrative Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP

The manufacturing functions (see Figure 8) work with a digital copy of their contracts from the AAVS DataMart. The series of related functions permits each manufacturer to view a copy of active contracts (DD Form 1155), start production of any or all CLINs in their contracts, print interior container labels, prepare and subsequently view invoices for completed items (DD Form 250), prepare and subsequently view all their shipping documents.

🚞 Mar	🛅 Manufacturing				
•	View Contract Data				
•	Process Contracts/Orders - Start Production				
•	Print Interior Container Labels				
•	Prepare DD250s				
•	View/Edit Existing DD250s				
•	Prepare Shipment Labels				
•	View Existing Shipping/Container Labels				

Figure 8 – Manufacturing Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP

The bill and hold depot functions (see Figure 9) work with a digital copy of their requisitions and inventory records from the AAVS DataMart. The series of related functions permits each bill and hold manufacturer to access their queue of unfilled requisitions (a.k.a., MROs DD Form 1348-1A), create verbal or written orders when responding to emergency orders, reprint any unshipped MROs, prepare and subsequently review all the required shipping documents, and respond to any follow-up inquiries.

🗋 Manage Depot Operations				
 Revi 	iew Orders and Generate MROs			
 Proc 	ess Verbal/Written Orders			
 Print 	t Unshipped MROs			
 Prep 	pare Shipment Labels			
 View 	v Existing Shipping/Container Labels			
• Revi	iew and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries			

Figure 9 – Bill and Hold Depot Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP

VIM-ASAP provides its users with access to a number of reports (see Figure 10), including a report of shipped DD250s, a matrix (shipments versus CLINs) of all contract shipments and invoices, a list of all invoices and payments, a record of DSCP's inventory counts for each bill and hold contractor, access to a carrier's web site to track the status of a shipment, an Excel list of all shipped MROs, and a list of all active contracts in DSCP C&T's database.

🗋 Re	ports
٠	Shipped DD250 Report
٠	View Contract Shipments and Invoices
٠	Track DD250 Payments
٠	Inventory Count
٠	Requisition Shipment Status
٠	View MRO Shipments
٠	Active Contracts
T .	

Figure 10 – Report Functions Supported By VIM-ASAP

4.1.1 VIM-ASAP Manufacturing Processes

There are five types of related processes that are supported by VIM-ASAP (see Figure 11). It starts with the building of a database that contains contracts, addresses, payments, and related data that is used to pre-populate all documents and electronic transactions. The next two processes are responsible for a variety of setup and production processes that end when a shipment leaves the shipping dock. The last two processes are responsible for each manufacturer's and DSCP C&T's monitoring of the other processes. Each of these five processes is described in the rest of this document.



Figure 11 – VIM-ASAP Processes

1 VIM-ASAP Database Building: All data required by VIM-ASAP is downloaded from its master source. Most of the data is updated daily by fully automated processes that run in the middle of the night. The automated processes have built-in error detection feedback loops so that the jobs are automatically restarted if the downloads are incomplete. VIM-ASAP gets data from the master sources identified in Section 2.

2 VIM-ASAP Setup Processes: There are five components of the VIM-ASAP setup process as shown in Figure 12. Each of the five components is performed at least once, but can be repeated as many times as necessary. Each enforces a specific set of rules and data quality criteria to ensure that subsequent shipment documents and digital data are accurate and complete.



Figure 12 – DD250 Data Setup

2.1 DD250 Data Setup

2.1a Identify Prime Contractor: Each new VIM-ASAP manufacture is required to initialize data (see Figure 13) required to generate DD250s, including:

- a) Shipment prefix Each ship-from site, including the contractor's primary site is required to have a unique three character shipment prefix (unique to the contractor and its ship-from sites per DFAR Appendix F) that is later combined with a four digit shipment suffix to create a unique shipment number.
- b) TIN The manufacturer is required to identify their Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN, a.k.a., EIN) if they want VIM-ASAP to track their DD250 payments (this is a myInvoice requirement).
- c) QAR Identification This identifies the QAR that is responsible for source accepted DD250s. It is entered and then used in a DD250's Block 21 per DFAR Appendix F.
- d) Authorization for WAWF-RA Each Manufacturer is required to authorize VIM-ASAP to transmit DD250 data to WAWF-RA.
- e) Block 23 Boiler Plate Text Each manufacturer normally uses the same text in Block 23 of each DD250. The text is entered here once and then reused for each DD250.

CAGE		Ship Prefix	RIC	Detail				
Prime Contractor 3Z358 - Bost, Inc		FSM		View/Edit				
Add Alternate Ship From Site								
	0.00002000000		33/7	15115120959				
Update	Remove							
CAGE: 3Z358 3Z358 - Bost, Inc								
Ship Prefix: FSM								
rack payment history 🗹 TIN ********								
Create Shipping documents for Bill and Hold DD250s fi	om this site							
Contract Quality Assurance (for Block 21.a of DD250)		Authorized DFAS User	s Only!	1				
Name: Greg Goodman	UNAUTHORIZ							
Title: QAR	- Electronic E	DD250s will not be genera	ted.					
DCMA DODAAC: S4402A		for WINS						
Address Line 1: 1200 Main Street	- Electronic E	DD250s will be sent to DF	AS via \	MNS for payment.				
Address Line 2:	AUTHORIZED	for WAWE DA						
City: Dallas	0	nust be a registered WAW	F-RA u	ser.				
State: TX		DD250s will be sent to DF						
Zip: 75202-4399		50s need only be sent wit r destination inspections.	h the sł	nipment and to				
elephone Number: 479-927-5033								
Comment Template (for Block 23 of DD250)								
The Supplies in this shipment have b	The Supplies in this shipment have been subjected to and have passed all							
examinations and tests required by t				1 in				
accordance with the authorized shipp	-							
quality, identity and conditions req				ce of				
	the quantity shown on this document. This shipment was released in accordance with section 246.471 of the DOD FAR Supplement, and authorized							

Figure 13 – Identify Prime Contractor

2.1b Identify Alternate Ship-From Sites: The prime contractor is required to identify any of its alternate ship from sites as well as any subcontractors it uses as ship-from sites. Each site is required to have its own ship prefix plus the rest of the data identified in Figure 14 for each site.

	CAGE	Ship Prefix	RIC	Detail
Prime Contractor	0B419 - American Apparel, Inc	AMA	SEL	View/Edit
Alternate Ship From Site	0K0X2 - Bremen-Bowdon Investment Company, Inc	BBI		View/Edit
Alternate Ship From Site	1A9C2 - Readyone Industries, Inc	NCD		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	1CEY4 - American Apparel, Inc	CEN		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	1TCT3 - QUICK, Inc	QCK		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	1TKK5 - Warmkraft, Inc	WMK		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	1WPW7 - Fox Apparel Inc	FOX		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	2Z957 - Southeastern Kentucky Rehabilitation Industries, Inc.	SKR		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	3C2V5 - American Apparel Inc	OPP		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	3LZQ4 - American Apparel, Inc	RNK		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	45Y22 - Short Bark Industries Inc	SBI		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	4CZ19 - American Apparel Inc	ONE		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	4FTM6 - Paloma Industries Inc	PAL		View/Edi
Alternate Ship From Site	8U017 - E A Industries Inc	EAI		View/Edi

Figure 14 – Identify Alternate Ship-From Sites

2.2 Contract Review and Disposition

2.2a Review New Contracts: Each manufacturer can access contract data from a variety of sources (e.g., DIBBS) to compare it to the contract (as either a DD1155 or SF26) that can be viewed via VIM-ASAP (see Figure 15) using the data extracted from EBS, FEDLOG, etc.

Manufacturers conduct reviews to ensure that VIM-ASAP data is consistent with their other sources. Manufacturers also review the VIM-ASAP contract to ensure that it is consistent with their own knowledge of the requirements of the contract (e.g., is the Administered by DODAAC correct). It is not uncommon to find minor inconsistencies that can cause later acceptance or payment problems.

CONTRACT PERCENTE ORDER BD.	ORDER FOR SUP	PLIES OR SERVICE	S	10/11/12		Page 1 of 3	SP010	ssee Apparel Corp 0-06-0-0319-0095		DEI	IVERY	SCH	EDULE				Pag	pe 2 of
5P0100-06-D-0319	0095	2007 JUL26	SEE OF		SCHEDULE	00-08	CLIN	NSN	Item Description	oty	Unit	Case Lot	Discount	Variance	Dest.	Inspect	Delivery	Close
15 14 60 8 1	00 ME: SP0 100	ADMINISTER BY Products	han đi	00	H: \$1103A	A DELT/ ER I POB	cun	non	Reinivescription	uny	Price	Otv	Terms	variance	Dest.	inspect	Date	Date
DEFENSE SUPPLY CENTER P	HILADELPHIA	DCMA ATLANTA 2300 LAKE PARK DR				CENTIRATION	0001	9405-01-341-9970	tousers,men's 28 short		\$14.08	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	8	10/29/2007	
200 R OBBINS AVENUE SMYRNA GA 30090-0000 III III					Des Schedule if other				- ~						<u> </u>		+	
PHILADELPHIA PA 19111-6096 Local Administrator: Calabrase, Carol (216) 737-6639						0002	B405-01-341-9971	bouters.men's 28 repular	120	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	s	10/29/2007		
E-mail: Carol.Calabreseggla.mit							0003	9905-01-391-9973	Rousers men's 29 short	- 120	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2000%	SC0102	s	10/29/2007	t
						14. XIF BP DIS 800 10;				- "						<u> </u>		+
					D DR.D DADY	0004	8405-01-341-9974	tousers,men's 29 regular	210	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	s	10/29/2007		
Tullahoma, TN 37388-3603		18. MAIL 18VOIC \$1 TO THE 40					0005	0405-01-341-9975	touters,men's 29 long		\$14.00	30	30 days Net	2000%	500102	s	10/29/2007	Т
			SEE BLOCK 1															+
SHIPTO	00.66	16. PA 18 ENT 1911 BE MADE 8	*	00.0	4: SL4701	MARKALL PLOKAGELAND PAPERS WITH	0006	9405-01-341-9976	trousers,men's 29 × long	30	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$C0102	5	10/29/2007	
SEE DELIVERY SCHEDULE		DFAS Columbus Cen DFAS-BVPD	ter			IDENTIFICATION	0007	8405-01-341-9979	trousers,men's 30 regular	510	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	5	10/29/2007	г
		P.O. Box 369031				BLOCKS I AND 2										<u>-</u>		+
		Columbus, OH 43236	9031				0000	0105 01 211 0000	treusers,men's 30 long	300	\$1-1.60	30	30 days Net	2.000%	600102	6	10/20/2007	I
	INTERNET OF STREET, STREET, ST.	ogen of manual charters of a					0009	8405.01.341.9982	tousers.men's 31 short	900	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2000%	\$60102	-	10/29/2007	Г
DELIVERVICALL X PREMIER														-	-		+	
PURCHASE	- Secondar				Sector of Sector Land Sector	9940	0010	0405-01-341-9903	tousers,men's 31 regular	2,040	\$14.60	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	s	10/29/2007	
ACCEPTANC	E THE CONTRACTOR HERES ACCEPT			PERMIT	PERMANEN MAT		0011	8405-01-341-9984	kousers.men's 31 king	300	314.08	30	30 days Net	2.000%	3C0102		10/28/2007	T.
PREAD VELV HAVE BEER OF 11 BOW BODDIES, TERMECT TO ALL OF THE TERMS SET POPTH, AND ADDRESS TO PERFORM THE SAME									-					-	<u> </u>		+	
Tennessee Apparel Corp						0012	8405-01-341-9985	trousers,men's 32 short	1,170	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	5	10/29/2007		
HERTERSTER AUGUNE LADY HERTERSTER AUGUNE LADY						0013	9405-01-341-9996	trousers,men's 32 regular	1.050	\$14.68	30	20 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	\$	10/29/2007	Г	
	ATASOCAL BIE									-						-		+
1 88 80. 0. SC 8 80 918 OF 5 8FF		(4930.5CBX.001.2630.53	DL QUARTITY	LIGHT	IL UNIT PRICE	18.480.09.81	0014	9405-01-341-9987	tousers,men's 32 long	3,900	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2000%	\$00102	5	10/29/2007	
			OPSERES/ ACCEPTED/				0015	0405-01-341-9900	touters,men's 32 wlong	150	\$14.60	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	s	10/29/2007	Г
SEE DELIVERY	SCHEDULE									-					_	-		÷
			i i	i i	i i	1 1	0016	9405-01-341-9990	tousers,men's 33 regular	4,050	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	SC0102	5	10/29/2007	Į.
					1		0017	0405-01-341-9991	trousers,men's 33 long	4,740	\$14.60	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	5	10/29/2007	1
					1	1	0018	8405-01-341-8883	kossers.men's 34 short	T 180	314.08	30	30 days Net	20003	300107		10/28/2007	T.
Inspection and	acceptance al source, FOB de	stination.			1					⊢‴						Ľ –		+
ND FAST PAY	or Unpriced Purchase Order				1		0019	8405-01-341-9994	bousers,men's 34 regular	4,410	\$14.08	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$C0102	\$	10/29/2007	1
avantity accessive by the Government Is	A SHITED STATES OF AN EPICA						0020	9405-01-341-9995	trousers,men's 34 long	4.170	\$14.08	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$C0102	s	10/29/2007	
am a a a quartery ardienal, indicate by X. different, order actual quantity accepted			PACTING ORDERING	OFFICER	DE TOTAL	\$969,760.00										<u>-</u>		+
before quantify ordered and excitche					SK. GITTEFEICE		0021	9405-01-341-9695	tousers,men's 34 » long	760	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	500102	5	10/29/2007	1
	ACCEPTED AND COMFORMETO CONTRACT CONTRACT EXCEPT AS NOT	**					0022	8405-01-341-9997	tousers,men's 35 short	210	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	500102	5	10/29/2007	T.
IOBATERS OF ARTIOR 280-00VER IN			PRINTED NAME AND T	ITLE OF A	\$1.80 M280-00+EAM											<u> </u>		+
		28. 1817 80. 25	D.O. VORCHER 80.		Inc. on the second		0023	9405-01-341-9998	bousers,men's 35 regular	3.240	\$14.08	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	s	10/29/2007	
TANK O A DOMESTIC OF A BIROWICED OF		n 111 P.	NO. FORCHER NO.				0024	8405-01-341-9999	bousers.men's 35 long	4020	\$14.08	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	s	10/29/2007	1
		PATIAL								_			+			_		+
			8410.81		IS ANOTH THE PART	IS COMPACT FOR	0025	8405-01-342-0000	bousers,men's 36 short	240	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$C0102	\$	10/29/2007	
1 CERTIFY THIS ACCOUNT IS COPPEC	TABO PROPER FOR PAINENT	11. PA 100 ER1					0028	9405-01-342-0001	trousers,men's 36 regular	2,860	\$14.60	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	\$	10/29/2007	
										F			+		+ -			+
ATE L DOBATOREARCTIFE	EOF CERTIFILING OFFICER	COMPLETE			H. BILL OF LADED	#0.	0027	8405-01-342-0002	tousers,men's 36 long	3,750	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	s	10/29/2007	
		PATTIAL					0020	0405-01-342-0003	bousers,men's 36 x long	270	\$14.00	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	s	10/29/2007	
										<u> </u>						<u>-</u>		+
FECTO AT IN. FECRIFED BIT Print	IS. DATE POOD	40. TOTAS CO #TAIM EPD 41	SIR ACCOUNT NOW I	D.	40. SIR VOPORER B		0029	9405-01-342-0004	bousers,men's 37 short	670	\$14.08	30	30 days Nel	2.000%	SC0102	8	10/29/2007	
DD FORM 1155, DEC 2001							0030	8405-01-342-0005	trousers,men's 37 regular	2,130	\$14.68	30	30 days Net	2.000%	\$00102	5	10/29/2007	
		PREAD VI EDITIO # 11 O #101																

Figure 15 – Review New Contracts

2.2b Generate Data Change Requests: The principal strength of VIM-ASAP is that all participants work with a single source of data. This strength can become a weakness when the single source of data is wrong. The primary objective of a detailed review of each VIM-ASAP contract is to identify and correct data entry mistakes made when contract data is entered into EBS. VIM-ASAP provides each manufacturer with access to a function (see Figure 16) that permits them to identify any mistakes that they think were made in any of their open contracts. VIM-ASAP notifies the responsible person at C&T via email and then provides that person with a function to disposition the requested change. Contract changes are only made after C&T personnel have reviewed and approved the changes. The manufacturer that requested the change is notified by email whenever the request is processed and provided with the name and phone number of the person that processed the change in case the manufacturer wants to discuss the change.

					C	C. Same	Administered By 💙 SPM10005D0420 🗸 D012 💙]						
item Manage	er/POC Phor	ne Number		rent stered By					Proposed ministered	By				
Reiter, Ann (215) 737-3250 S1103A-3					Y7625	-779-45 CC	ONS - PK PATRICK A	FB, FL						~
D-4-		Daling		Su	bmi	tted Da	ibmit to DSC	-		Democrat	Chadure			
Date Requested	Contract	Delive Orde		Destination	NSN	Source of Problem	Item Manager/POC	Data	Proposed Data	Request Status	Status Date			
08/24/2007	SPM10005D0	420 0017	ALL	SC0102		FOB Code	Reiter, Ann	D	E	open	08/24/2007	Edit	Remove	
08/24/2007	SPM10005D0	420 0016	3 ALL	SC0102		FOB Code	Reiter, Ann	D	E	open	08/24/2007	Edit	Remove	~

Figure 16 – Submit Data Change Requests

2.2c Disposition Data Change Requests: Data change requests are placed in a queue (left side of Figure 17) for the appropriate person at C&T so that they can review each request and decide whether to accept or reject each request. C&T personnel also have the option to make a change, but not using the alternative proposed by the manufacturer. The requestor's name and phone number is displayed if C&T personnel want to discuss the change with the requestor. Two examples of email notices (right side of Figure 17) are shown that were sent to the requestor when the change requests were processed. It is not uncommon for the change to be made within the hour. The sample emails below took one and four minutes from the time the request was made to the time it was approved and the VIM-ASAP database updated. There are many examples where the change took less than ten minutes.

Source Del	anufacturer: 9A180 - Tennessee Apparel Corp v of Problem: FOB Code v Contract: SP010006D0319 v ivery Order: 0095 v Destination: SC0102 - LION VALLEN INDUSTRIES, SUFFOLK VA v CLIN: 0018 v	From: VIM_ASAP@ct-dscp.com Sent: Friday, April 20, 2007 8:11 AM To: jpacheco@conversent.net Subject: Data Change Request - Status Update Your request for correction of FOB CODE for contract SP010005D0484, delivery order 0004 submitted on Apr 20 2007 8:07AM has been APPROVED and the data was updated.
Date Requested	08/17/2007	For further questions contact Vasquez, Maria at (215) 737-5633.
Requested by	Rick A. Francis (931) 455-3491	
Submitted To	Calabrese, Carol	From: VIM_ASAP@ct-dscp.com
Current FOB Code	D - Inspection and acceptance at destination, FOB destination.	Sent: Monday, August 27, 2007 8:21 AM To: info@herculesgloves.com
Proposed FOB Code	2 - Inspection and acceptance at source, FOB destination.	Subject: Data Change Request - Status Update
Revised FOB Code	2 - Inspection and acceptance at source, FOB destination.	Your request for correction of DISCOUNT TERMS for contract SP010003D4155, delivery order 0007 submitted on Aug 27 2007 8:20AM has been APPROVED and the data was updated.
		For further questions contact Heather Hirschmann at (215) 737- 3181.

Figure 17 – Disposition Data Change Requests

2.2d Generate EBS Change: An approved change is immediately applied to the VIM-ASAP database in case the mistake is delaying a shipment. A permanent change to EBS is also initiated at the same time and subsequently picked up by VIM-ASAP.

2.3 Production Allocation: Production allocation permits the prime contractor to control the shipments from each of its subcontractors so that each can only ship the permitted quantities. This function is primarily used by NIB with its dozens of subcontractors.

2.3a Allocate Production: The prime contractor allocates (see Figure 18) some or all of the order quantity to the appropriate subcontractor. VIM-ASAP prevents each subcontractor from shipping more than their allocated quantity.

				Delivery C	order 003	35 🗸				
						South State		Editable	Not Ec	litable
Contract: SP010004D0500			Outstanding		Total					
CLIN	/Order: 0035 NSN	Size	Order Quantity	Allocation Quantity	Allocated Quantity	Unallocated Quantity	056F9 CIB	0DA09 LVB	1A863 BLH	1A920 DUR
0007	8415-01-518-4567		2,850	2,907	2,907	Quantity	958	LVD	DLI	DOK
0008	8415-01-518-4568		4,710	4,804	4,792	12	581			
0009	8415-01-518-4570		2.610	2,662	2,662	12	887			
0010	8415-01-518-4571		2,340	2,386	2,386		795			
0011	8415-01-518-4572		3,615	3,687	3,687		1,171			
0012	8415-01-518-4573	LL	3,300	3,366	3,366					
0013	8415-01-518-4574	XLS	915	933	933		933			
0014	8415-01-518-4575	XLR	1,605	1,637	1,637		1,637			
0015	8415-01-518-4576	XLL	705	719	719		719			
0016	8415-01-518-4579	XXLL	975	994	994					
0017	8415-01-518-4582	XXXLL	285	290	290					
0018	8415-01-518-4585	XXXXLL	75	76	76					
0019	8415-01-521-0426	SXS	345	351	351					
0020	8415-01-521-0452	MXS	345	351	351					
						-				

Figure 18 – Allocate Production

2.4 RFID Options: None of the downloaded EBS data identifies RFID contract requirements for the contract as a whole or for individual ship-to sites. This data needs to be set by each manufacturer for their contracts.

2.4a Set Option for RFID data Capture: VIM-ASAP provides each manufacturer with the ability to identify contracts with RFID requirements and the ship-to sites that have that requirement (see Figure 19). This option tells VIM-ASAP how it is to collect ship-to quantities when it is time to prepare a DD250.


Figure 19 – Set Option for RFID data Capture

2.5 Identify Users: Each manufacturer is responsible for managing their users and initiating access, although once initialized, each user subsequently manages their password, phone number, and email address.

2.5a Identify Users: Each manufacturer has one or more personnel who have the responsibility for adding or removing users for only their CAGE, including identifying each user type (see Figure 20). Selected personnel at DSCP C&T are responsible for performing this user initiation function for their personnel.

	User Id	User Name
	Add User 🛛 🔽	Add User 💌
2		
	User Type:	ASAP Manufacturer
	User Id:	USER#a1
	Password:	•••••
	Name:	John Smith
	Phone:	(215) 555 - 1212 Ext.
	E-Mail:	John.Smith@mail.com
		Add Delete Clear

Figure 20 – Identify Users

3. VIM-ASAP Production Processes: There are two primary components of the VIM-ASAP production process as shown in Figure 21. Each of the two components is performed as many times as required for each contract. Each enforces a specific set of rules and data quality criteria to ensure that shipment documents and digital data are accurate and complete.



Figure 21 – VIM-ASAP Production Processes

3.1 Manufacture and Ship Items: Manufacturing and shipping items is the primary process that VIM-ASAP supports. This process is repeated as many times as is required for all of the manufacturer's contracts.

3.1a Start Production: This function is performed so that C&T personnel can be kept aware of the status of their contracts from the initial contract award, to the start of production, through the shipment of some or all of the CLINs and for some or all of the order quantity for each CLIN. To assist with the accurate start production quantity, the current production and shipment status is displayed and the Start Production Quantity is pre-populated with the order quantity plus the variance percentage less the quantity already started. Like all other VIM-ASAP functions, the bulk of the data is pre-populated. The user is only permitted to override the start production quantity (see Figure 22). The user has no option to override any other data.

Sta	rt Production or	Qty O	Start Selected CLINs					
CLIN	NSN	Item Description	Delivery Date	Qty	Already Started	Already Shipped	Start Prod.Qty	
0001	8405-01-341-9970	trousers,men's 28 short	10/29/2007	60	0	0	61	
0002	8405-01-341-9971	trousers,men's 28 regular	10/29/2007	120	0	0	122	
0003	8405-01-341-9973	trousers,men's 29 short	10/29/2007	120	0	0	122	
0004	8405-01-341-9974	trousers,men's 29 regular	10/29/2007	210	0	0	214	
0005	8405-01-341-9975	trousers,men's 29 long	10/29/2007	60	0	0	61	
0006	8405-01-341-9976	trousers,men's 29 x-long	10/29/2007	30	0	0	30	
0007	8405-01-341-9979	trousers,men's 30 regular	10/29/2007	510	0	0	520	
8000	8405-01-341-9980	trousers,men's 30 long	10/29/2007	390	0	0	397	
0009	8405-01-341-9982	trousers,men's 31 short	10/29/2007	960	0	0	979	
0010	8405-01-341-9983	trousers,men's 31 regular	10/29/2007	2,040	0	0	2080	
0011	8405-01-341-9984	trousers,men's 31 long	10/29/2007	360	0	0	367	
0012	8405-01-341-9985	trousers,men's 32 short	10/29/2007	1,170	0	0	1193	

Figure 22 – Start Production

3.1b Print Case Labels: VIM-ASAP provides each manufacturer with access to a function (see Figure 23) that prints case labels (per MIL-STD-129P) for all NSNs on their contracts. This is very valuable because case labels are frequently inaccurate or incomplete whenever manufacturers create case labels via manual data entry. Problems are also created by individual interpretations of the requirements of MIL-STD-129P. Like all other VIM-ASAP functions, the bulk of the data is pre-populated for data entry screen and sample VIM-ASAP generated label. The user is only permitted to override the case lot quantity, but has no option to override any other data.

		Delivery Order 0369					
CLIN	IISN	Item Description	Oty	Case Lot Oty	Print	8405013778089	
0001	8405-01-377-8089		840	30	Print	8405-01-377-8089	
0003	8405-01-377-8091		1,140	30			
0004	8405-01-377-8092		660	30	Print	CAGE 9A180	
0006	8405-01-377-8094		1,170	30	Print	30 PR	
0009	8405-01-377-8097		540	30	Print		
0010	8405-01-377-8098		600	30	Print		
0014	8405-01-377-8106		1,380	30	Print	SP010002D03190369 SP0100-02-D-0319-0369	
		;				M10-08/07	
						WT 7 18020 001	

Figure 23 – Print Case Labels

3.1c Prepare DD250s: The core of VIM-ASAP is the preparation of error-free DD250s that conform to the requirements of DFAR Appendix F. All of the contract data is pre-populated (see Figure 24) as either data that cannot be edited or in pull-down lists that contain only valid optional data that is specified in the contract. Optional data includes a selection from one or more ship-to destinations that are identified in the contract. When the selection is made, the list of CLINs changes to only those CLINs that require shipment to the selected destination. VIM-ASAP makes it impossible to ship a CLIN to the wrong destination. VIM-ASAP also makes it impossible to ship more than the order quantity plus the variance percentage and to create duplicate shipment or invoice numbers.

The same screen is used whenever the contract and destination require RFID. In this case, the shipment quantities are captured when the case and pallet level RFID tags are generated and scanned. When this is done, the shipment quantity is pre-populated and cannot be edited. If quantities need to be changed, RFID data needs to be reloaded to reset the quantities.

Ship F	rom	9A180 - Tennes	ssee Apparel Corp	o Tullahoma TN 3 🔽	Shipment #:	TTT 0006	Final	Shipment? • No OYes	5
Contr	act	SP010002D03	19 🔽		Mfg. Invoice #:		Weight	Lot No.	
Delive	ery Order	0371	*	Mo	de of Shipment	A - Motor, tru	kload		*
Desti	nation	SD0131 - TRAV	IS ASSOCIATION	FOR THE BLIND, 🔽	Block 23	Point of			
Alterr	nate Releas	e Procedure?	? • No OYes	ate DD250	Comment	Tennessee 931-455-3	Apparel	'ice President Corp.	
CLIN	NSN			Description	Order Qty	Ship	Shipped To Date	Remark	
0001	8405-01-377-8	3099 trousers,m	nen's 44 long			90	60		
0004	8405-01-377-6	3089 trousers,m	nen's 38 short		1	20	90		
0005	8405-01-377-6	3089 trousers,m	nen's 38 short		1	20	0		
0006	8405-01-377-0	3089 trousers,m	nen's 38 short		1	50	0		
0007	8405-01-377-0	3089 trousers,m	nen's 38 short		1	50	0		
0010	8405-01-377-0	3090 trousers,m	nen's 38 regular		1	780	120		
	8405-01-377-6		nen's 38 requiar		7	780	0		
0011	0403-01-377-0	trousers,n	nonio opiogana.						

Figure 24 – Prepare DD250s

The initial DD250 is prepared as a draft with red letters indication that the DD250 is not valid (see Figure 25). This is done so that the DD250 that is taken out to the shipping dock to check the actual shipment against the DD250 and to ensure that it cannot be inadvertently used as the packing slip for the shipment. The manufacturer needs to come back with confirmed quantities to print a clean DD250.

	MATERIAL IN	SPECTION	AND REC	EIVINGR	EPORT		ľ	Form Ap. OMB No.	pro ved . 070 4.0248	
he public rep						for reviews	na In s	tueten	c. cearching e il i	ting data cource o
thering and formation, in Hercon David	oorting burden of this collection of infor main talaing the data needed, and comp soluding suggestions for reducing this bi is Highway, Suite 1204, Artington, VA 222 a collection of in brim atton if it does not	letting and reviewin urden, to Departme 102-4302, Responde	ntof Defense, ants chould be	notet mitton Wackepto Hes aware diation	gan be cluding the time to Device on the second sec	te forinfor noflaw,n	a ctim: mater perc	ate or a n Opera on chall	ny other a specto tion c and Report be cublect to any	f this collection o , (0704-0248) 121 penalty for falling
comply with	a collection of information if it does not PLEASE D	display a current v D NOT RETURI	D250	ol number.	ot:Finishe					
	RUMENT IDEN. (CONTRACT) BO. (ORDER) NO.	6.1 NVOICE N	O./DATE		7. PAO E	8	LACCE	PTARCEPOINT	
O HI PM ENT I	SP010002D0319 #0. 3. DATEORIPPED	0371 4. Bit	15328	2007AUG	16	6. DISCO		E FM 0	S	
TTTO		TO N:			В			30)daysNet	
	ee Apparel Corp	<	00 DE: 9A 180	D	10. ADMINIST ERED BY. DCMA AT LANTA					00 DE: S1103A
401 N At Tullahon	lantic St na, TN 37388-3503				2300 LAKE PARK D SMYRNA GA 30080					
I. CHIPPED F	ROM. (If other than 9)	00	DE: FOB:	D	12. PAYMENT WILL BEMAD	E BT.				CO DE: SL4701
SEE BLO	оск э				DFAS Columbus Ce DFAS-BYPD P.O. Box 369031 Columbus, OH 4323					
B. SHIP TO.		00	0E: SD0131		14. MARK FOR.					CO DE:
4509 F R	ASSOCIATION FOR THE BLIND EIDRICH LN BLDG 4 SUITE 402 TX 78744 - 1812									
CITEM NO.	16. STOCK/PART NO. (Indicate number of shi)	DESCRIP	TION More of contain	or - container na	mbari	17.QUANT SHIP/REC	11T Y 1 "D^	16. U N IT	15. UKIT PRICE	20. AMOUNT
0001	8405013778099 trousers,men		gpe or conten			<u> </u>	60	PR	\$15.88000	\$952.8
Ì	CT N 1249-1250	-								
0003	8405013778089 trousers,men CTN 1187;1263	's 38 short					33	PR	\$15.88000	\$524.0
0004	8405013778089 trousers,men CTN 1169-1171	's 38 short					90	PR	\$15.88000	\$1,429.2
0009	8405013778090 trousers,men CTN 992-1006;1188-1191	s 38 regular					85	PR	\$15.88000	\$9,289.80
	-Gross Shipping Wt.: 1380	1 -Lot No.:	109							
O FLOIR	T QUALITY ASSURANCE		b. DESTINATION	01				BVER'S		d in apparent goo
V 09A V	ACCEPTANCE officied item chasbeen my cuper-il don and they con term to contract herein or on supporting documents.	made	00 A	ACCEPTAN	DE officied item chacbeen ma ad they constrain to constract or fing documents.	60	nditio n	excepta	snoted.	
LTERNAT	hereth oron supporting documents. ERELEASE PROCEDURE		eiceptasnoted	therein o ron cupp	sorting documents.	-	TT NO	CEVED	REGNATURE OF	AUTH GOVT REP
							PED NA	ADDRESS		
DATE	SIGNATURE OF AUTH GOVT R	EP.	DATE	84	SNATURE OF AUTH GOVT REP		ULING A	ADDRESS		
PED NAME: TLE: ALLING ADDREI	Dawn F, Oirdley - 01103A 551 TAC/401 North Atlantic St.		TYPED NAME: TITLE: NAILING ADDRI							
AILING ADDREI	FAC 401 Korth Attantio St. P.O. Box 670 Tullahoma, TH 27322		WAILING ADDRI	C3 9.			NN DR	CIAL TEU	EPHONE	
DIMMERCIAL TE	ELEPHONE 931-461-6668		CO WM ERCIAL T	ELEPHONE		ca di	meas flerent	quantit enter a	ived by the Gover y chipped, indicat io tual quantity rec	by (X) mark; If
	TORUCEONLY					qu	an 1 ty	ch lp p e o	l and encircle.	
oint of Co	ntact ncis, Vice President									
ennessee	Apparel Corp.									
31-455-34	91 Lot No. 109									
DEORM	250, AUG 2000 (per VIM-ASAP)	PREVIOUS	EDITION IS	OBSOLETE						

Figure 25 – Prepare DD250s

3.1d Validate Shipment and Finish DD250: The VOID DD250 is taken out on the shipping dock to be used as a draft packing slip to ensure that the contents of the shipment match the DD250. VIM-ASAP can then be used to edit the DD250 to correct any discrepancies. The DD250 is finished whenever the shipment is ready to go and matches the contents of the shipment. The VOID is removed from the face of the DD250 when it is finished.

3.1e Prepare Military Shipment Label (MSL): The MSL is prepared (see Figure 26) when the DD250 is finished and the shipment is ready to go. Like with all other VIM-ASAP functions, most of the required data is pre-populated as either un-editable data or as optional pull-down lists that contains only valid data. The MSL conforms to MIL-STD-129P as shown on the right side of Figure 26. A small amount of pre-populated and manual data entry is all that is required for VIM-ASAP to prepare a conforming MSL.

Dest	tinations V	/25G1U SU 1	al Prison Industries TRANSPORTATION 519\0070\FTD0004	OFFICER, N	NJ IEW CUMBERLAND PA	▼ A▼ Edit Address	TCN	82125 02LY rison Industries		Ty	/pe Service edEx 2Da
Carrier S	Service	~	Mode A Motor, truckload	of Shipment	V	Comments	Us Rt 40			Po	ostage
Label Po	ostage Packa Weig	nge Packag	e Measurements x Width x Height	Charges	Tracking Humber	Remove	Piece	1 of 1	Weight (lb.) 46 Cube (ft.)	Date Shipped 7227 Project	
							Ship To / P		UTRANSPO	RTATION OFFI	ICER
			Genera	ate Label	ן		POD FMS Case	2001 MISSI NEW CUME MSL, Supply, 8	CUMBERL	AND FACILITY DOOR 113 134 A 17070-5001	

Figure 26 – Prepare Military Shipment Label (MSL)

3.1f Transmit DD250 to WAWF-RA and Notify C&T: When the MSL is complete, VIM-ASAP formats and transmits the DD250 per a WAWF-RA defined format they refer to as User Defined File (UDF). The data is collected for all manufacturers and transmitted as an FTP file every hour on the hour. If the WAWF-RA FTP site is not available, the transmission is retried with any additional data at the end of the next hour. This goes on for as long as it is necessary to transmit the data to WAWF-RA. At the same time, an email message is sent to any C&T contracting personnel who have identified themselves as wanting to be informed of any shipments on their contracts.

4. VIM-ASAP Manufacturing Monitoring Processes: There are two components of the VIM-ASAP manufacturing monitoring processes as shown in Figure 27. Each of the components is performed as often as desired.



Figure 27 – VIM-ASAP Manufacturing Monitoring Processes

4.1 Monitor Payments

4.1a Monitor DD250 Payments: VIM-ASAP downloads myInvoice payment data early every morning and associates that data with the appropriate manufacturer's DD250 (see Figure

28). This is a completely automated process that does not require any actions by the manufacturers. The vast majority of payments are made on time because the data from the EBS contract is used to create the DD250. The same data is used to create the acceptance data in WAWF-RA with the QAR only permitted to approve or disapprove the DD250. The identical data for the DD250 invoice and WAWF-RA acceptance is passed to DFAS for payment. The identical data is compared by DFAS to the same EBS contract data that started the process and of course, the data all matches and payments are made on a timely basis. The example below was extracted on 8/24/2007 and shows 100% on-time payments. The red "Adjust" data reflects discounts taken by DFAS for early payments. In those cases, the manufacturer offered a discount of 1% if payment was made within 15 days.

Inv #	Inv Date	Contract	D. O.	Shipment	Inv Amount	Adjust	Date Paid	Paid Amount	Unpaid Amount	Inquiry Date
2521	07/06/2007	SP010006D0435	0012	STE0011	\$11,259.25	\$0.00	08/13/2007	\$11,259.25	\$0.00	
2522	07/06/2007	SP010006D0435	0001	STE0002	\$46,590.00	\$0.00	08/06/2007	\$46,590.00	\$0.00	
2528	07/18/2007	SP010004D0348	0107	STE0001	\$109.00	\$0.00	08/21/2007	\$109.00	\$0.00	
2531	07/20/2007	SP010004D0348	0107	STE0002	\$2,943.00	\$0.00	08/21/2007	\$2,943.00	\$0.00	
2534	07/30/2007	SP010006D0435	0001	STE0005	\$74,544.00	(\$745.45)	08/07/2007	\$73,798.55	\$0.00	
2535	07/30/2007	SP010006D0435	0014	STE0001	\$3,106.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$3,106.00	
2536	08/06/2007	SP010004D0348	0098	STE0001	\$21,473.00	(\$214.73)	08/14/2007	\$21,258.27	\$0.00	
2538	08/06/2007	SP010006D0435	0001	STE0006	\$51,219.00	(\$512.25)	08/14/2007	\$50,706.75	\$0.00	
2541	08/09/2007	SP010004D0348	0106	STE0001	\$5,460.00	\$0.00	08/22/2007	\$5,460.00	\$0.00	
2542	08/14/2007	SP010006D0501	0001	STE0008	\$15,130.00	(\$151.31)	08/22/2007	\$14,978.69	\$0.00	
2544	08/15/2007	SP010006D0501	0001	STE0009	\$22,695.00	(\$226.96)	08/23/2007	\$22,468.04	\$0.00	
2545	08/16/2007	SP010006D0501	0001	STE0010	\$24,964.50	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$24,964.50	
2546	08/17/2007	SP010006D0501	0001	STE0011	\$21,182.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$21,182.00	
2548	08/20/2007	SP010006D0501	0001	STE0012	\$24,208.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$24,208.00	
2549	08/21/2007	SP010006D0501	0001	STE0013	\$8,775.40	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$8,775.40	
2552	08/24/2007	SP010004D0348	0109	STE0001	\$230.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$230.00	
2553	08/24/2007	SP010006D0435	0001	STE0007	\$17,083.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$17,083.00	
2554	08/24/2007	SP010004D0348	0098	STE0002	\$6,867.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$6,867.00	
2555	08/24/2007	SP010006D0435	0001	STE0008	\$6,212.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$6,212.00	
TOTAL					\$372,170.34	(\$1,667.36)		\$257,875.08	\$112,627.90	

Figure 28 – Monitor DD250 Payments

VIM-ASAP also permits the use of options to 1) sort the payment data by any column; 2) export the data to Excel; 3) display any DD250; 4) generate an email inquiry to DFAS concerning the status of a late payment; and 5) examine the CLIN level detail for any DD250 (see Figure 29). The CLIN level detail is particularly useful whenever a partial payment is made for only some of the CLINs.

Invoic Numbe		Invoice Date	(Contract	Delive	тy	Shipment		oice ount	Adju	stments	Date Paid	Paid Amount	Unpaid Amount				
2544	1	08/15/2007	SPO	010006D0501	0001		STE0009	\$22,6	95.00	((\$226.96)	08/23/2007	\$22,468.04	\$0.00				
CLIN	Sfx	Vouche	r	EFT Trac	e	Stat	us Invo Amo		Payme Amou		Discount Amount	Intrest Amount	Tax Withheld	Gross Invoice	Last Action	Date Paid	Invoice Received	Material Acceptance
0020		37002264	188	04403620235	50271	PA	ID \$18,9	12.50	\$18,72	3.37	\$189.13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$18,723.37		08/23/2007	08/15/2007	08/16/2007
0023		37002264	188	04403620235	50271	PA	ID \$2,26	9.50	\$2,246	6.80	\$22.70	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2,246.80		08/23/2007	08/15/2007	08/16/2007
0028		37002264	188	04403620235	50271	PA	ID \$1,51	3.00	\$1,497	7.87	\$15.13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,497.87		08/23/2007	08/15/2007	08/16/2007

Figure 29 – Monitor DD250 Payment Details

4.1b Notify DFAS of Payment Delay: VIM-ASAP worked with DFAS to identify what they needed in the email to trace down a payment problem. Whenever a payment is not made within 30 days, VIM-ASAP permits the manufacturer to use the option to automatically format and transmit an email message to the appropriate personnel at DFAS who can analyze and resolve

the problem and explain any delay to the manufacturer. The manufacturer only need click one button to generate the email with completely pre-populated data.

4.2 Monitor Contracts

4.2a Monitor CLIN Shipment and Receipt Status: VIM-ASAP keeps a complete history at the CLIN and shipment level that can be used by the manufacturer to monitor the status of all active contracts. No data entry is required to export this data to Excel (see Figure 30) for display or save in an archive.

Contracto	or: Capps	Shoe Co.	nc - 1B	5D1						
-	SP010005	,		Order: 0	0038					
						0060	0061	0062	0063	0064
DD250	Date	Shipped	Total	QAR	Cum Total	8435-01-450-9161	8435-01-450-9163	8435-01-450-9163	8435-01-450-9163	8435-01-450-9166
Ship No	Shipped	Ťo	Shipped	Accepted	Shipped	8D	8E	8E	8E	8-1/2A
CAP0001	6/5/2007	SC0102	720	6/5/2007	720	24			24	24
CAP0002	6/11/2007	SC0102	2,340	6/12/2007	3,060	174			72	
CAP0003	6/18/2007	SC0102	2,160	6/19/2007	5,220	216			108	6
CAP0004	6/25/2007	SC0102		6/27/2007	7,740	186			84	6
CAP0005	6/25/2007	W25G1U	180		7,920			12		
CAP0006	7/2/2007	W25G1U	360	7/3/2007	8,280			12		
CAP0007	7/2/2007	SC0102	2,160	7/3/2007	10,440	162			102	
CAP0008	7/16/2007	SC0102		7/18/2007	10,800					
CAP0009	7/16/2007	W25G1U		7/18/2007	12,240			72		
CAP0010	7/24/2007	SC0102	180	7/24/2007	12,420					
CAP0011	7/24/2007	W25G1U		7/24/2007	14,940			114		
CAP0012	7/31/2007	SC0102	180	7/31/2007	15,120					
CAP0013	7/31/2007	W25G1U	900	7/31/2007	16,020					
CAP0014	7/31/2007	W62G2T	1,440	7/31/2007	17,460		108			
CAP0015	8/7/2007	W25G1U	900	8/8/2007	18,360			48		
CAP0016	8/7/2007	W62G2T	1,080	8/8/2007	19,440		12			
CAP0017	8/14/2007	W62G2T	276	8/15/2007	19,716					
CAP0018	8/14/2007	SC0102	131	8/15/2007	19,847					
CAP0019	8/14/2007	W25G1U	189	8/15/2007	20,036			18		
				Shipped		762	120	276	390	36
				Received	18,014	546	120	276	282	30
				In Transit	2,022	216			108	6
				Ordered	33,372	1,266	204	456	654	60
				Balance	13,336	504	84	180	264	24
			CI	osed Date						

Figure 30 – Monitor CLIN Shipment and Receipt Status

5. VIM-ASAP C&T Monitoring Processes: There are eight components (see Figure 31) of the VIM-ASAP monitoring processes that can be performed by all DSCP C&T personnel. Each of the components can be exercise as often as desired.



Figure 31 – VIM-ASAP Manufacturing Monitoring Processes

5.1a Assign Contract to Buyer: Buyers or contracting personnel can assign and subsequently review (see Figure 32) a list of contracts when they want to receive email notifications whenever shipments are made on the selected contracts.

Name	User Id	Phone	Email		
Reiter, Ann	paa1226	(215) 737-3250 ext.	Ann.Reiter@dla.mil		
CAGE	Ma	nufacturer Name	Contract 🛆		
0B419	American Apparel, I	nc	SP0100-02-D-0340		
9N049	Human Technologies	s Corporation	SP0100-02-D-CA72		
1DEG6	Caribbean Needle Po	pint Inc	SP0100-03-C-0325		
2A091	Wellstone Apparel L	LC	SP0100-03-C-0359		
1DEG6	Caribbean Needle Po	pint Inc	SP0100-03-C-0360		
03FY4	American Power So	urce, Inc	SP0100-03-C-0361		
3D0A5	Snc Telecommunica	tion, LLC	SP0100-03-D-0345		
1DEG6	Caribbean Needle Po	pint Inc	SP0100-03-D-0346		
82125	Federal Prison Indus	tries Inc	SP0100-03-D-CA05		
0C5G5	Dj Manufacturing Co	rp	SP0100-04-C-0357		
0C5G5	Dj Manufacturing Co	rp	SP0100-99-D-0304		
0B419	American Apparel, I	nc	SP0100-99-D-0343		

Figure 32 – Assign Contract to Buyer

5.2a Monitor CLIN Shipment and Receipt Status: VIM-ASAP provides C&T personnel with access to a matrix of all shipments and all CLINs for active C&T contracts (see Figure 33). The matrix combines data from DD250s with EBS orders, receipts, and closed dates. C&T

personnel use this matrix to monitor the status of a manufacturer's progress on contracts and to isolate a variety of problems, e.g., the yellow highlighted cells draw attention to a receipt posting problem for shipment CAP0003. EBS thinks that the shipment is still in transit because the receipt has not been posted by the depot. The matrix can also be used to identify the problem created whenever a depot posts the receipt to the right NSN, but the wrong contract.

Contracto	or: Capps	Shoe Co.	Inc - 1B	5D1						
	SP010005	,		Order: 0	038					
						0060	0061	0062	0063	0064
DD250	Date	Shipped	Total	QAR	Cum Total	8435-01-450-9161	8435-01-450-9163	8435-01-450-9163	8435-01-450-9163	8435-01-450-9166
Ship No	Shipped	To	Shipped	Accepted	Shipped	8D	8E	8E	8E	8-1/2A
CAP0001	6/5/2007	SC0102	720	6/5/2007	720	24			24	24
CAP0002	6/11/2007	SC0102	2,340	6/12/2007	3,060	174			72	
CAP0003	6/18/2007	SC0102	2,160	6/19/2007	5,220	216			108	6
CAP0004	6/25/2007	SC0102	2,520	6/27/2007	7,740	186			84	6
CAP0005	6/25/2007	W25G1U	180	6/27/2007	7,920			12		
CAP0006	7/2/2007	W25G1U	360	7/3/2007	8,280			12		
CAP0007	7/2/2007	SC0102	2,160	7/3/2007	10,440	162			102	
CAP0008	7/16/2007	SC0102	360	7/18/2007	10,800					
CAP0009	7/16/2007	W25G1U	1,440	7/18/2007	12,240			72		
CAP0010	7/24/2007	SC0102	180	7/24/2007	12,420					
CAP0011	7/24/2007	W25G1U	2,520	7/24/2007	14,940			114		
CAP0012	7/31/2007	SC0102	180	7/31/2007	15,120					
CAP0013	7/31/2007	W25G1U	900	7/31/2007	16,020					
CAP0014	7/31/2007	W62G2T	1,440	7/31/2007	17,460		108			
CAP0015	8/7/2007	W25G1U	900	8/8/2007	18,360			48		
CAP0016	8/7/2007	W62G2T	1,080	8/8/2007	19,440		12			
CAP0017	8/14/2007	W62G2T	276	8/15/2007	19,716					
CAP0018	8/14/2007	SC0102	131	8/15/2007	19,847					
CAP0019	8/14/2007	W25G1U	189	8/15/2007	20,036			18		
				Shipped	20,036	762	120	276	390	36
				Received	18,014	546	120	276	282	30
				In Transit	2,022	216			108	6
				Ordered	33,372	1,266	204	456	654	60
				Balance	13,336	504	84	180	264	24
			CI	osed Date						
			<u> </u>					• • •		

Figure 33 – Monitor CLIN Shipment and Receipt Status

5.3a View Contract Data: VIM-ASAP provides C&T personnel with access (see Figure 34) to the same contract documents that manufacturers view (see Figure 15).

Contractor 9A180	Tennessee Apparel Corp - 9A180	×
Contract SP010)06D0319 🔽	
elivery Order 0085		
	View Form DD1155	

Figure 34 – View Contract Data

5.4a View Contract Shipment Totals: VIM-ASAP's archive of all shipments is used to provide C&T personnel with a view of the manufacturer's shipment performance (see Figure 35). This data is used to evaluate contract performance at the end of a contract.

	Select Cag	e:	Tennessee A	pparel Corp - 9A	180				 *
	Select Con	tract:	SP010006D0	302 🗸					
5	v 🖁 🖻 🛱	Σ		🖹 🖹 🎽	1				
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	J
1	PIIN	D.0	ShipNumber	ShippedDate	TotalQty				
2	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0001	1/11/2006	5,740				
3	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0002	1/19/2006	5,355				
4	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0003	2/1/2006	5,215				
5	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0004	2/10/2006	9,905				
6	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0005	2/16/2006	7,246				
7	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0006	3/14/2006	9,064				
8	SP010006D0302	0001	TTT0007	3/27/2006	3,179				
9	SP010006D0302	0002	TTT0001	4/19/2006	6,510				
10	SP010006D0302	0002	TTT0002	4/25/2006	3,430				
11	SP010006D0302	0002	TTT0003	5/23/2006	5,705				
12	SP010006D0302	0002	TTT0004	5/26/2006	3,395				
13	SP010006D0302	0002	TTT0005	7/31/2006	6,590				
14		0003	TTT0001	8/8/2006	7 595	•			

Figure 35 – View Contract Shipment Totals

5.5a View DD250s: VIM-ASAP provides C&T personnel with access (see Figure 36) to the same DD250 documents that manufacturers can view (see Figure 25).

Contractor	1B5D1 🔽 Capps	s Shoe Co, Inc - 185D1			
Contract	SP010005D0346	v			
Delivery Order	0034	¥			
	Contract	Delivery Order	Ship No.	Ship Date	
SPO	10005D0346	0034	CAP0001	01/23/2007	
SPO	10005D0346	0034	CAP0002	01/29/2007	
SPO	10005D0346	0034	CAP0003	02/05/2007	
SPO	10005D0346	0034	CAP0004	02/12/2007	
SPO	10005D0346	0034	CAP0005	02/20/2007	
		0034	CAP0006	02/27/2007	_

Figure 36 – View DD250s

5.6a View DD250 Payment Status: VIM-ASAP provides C&T personnel with access to the same DD250 payment status that manufacturers can view (see Figure 28 and Figure 29).

5.7a View RFID Shipments: VIM-ASAP provides C&T personnel with access (see Figure 37) to a list of contractors, contracts, shipments, and DD250 documents that have been shipped with RFID tags.

Contract	Delivery Order	Ship No.	Date transmitted to WAWF.	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0028	07/31/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0027	07/24/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0025	07/02/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0024	07/02/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0023	06/26/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0022	06/26/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0020	06/18/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0018	06/12/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0017	06/05/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0012	05/08/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0011	05/03/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0010	04/24/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0008	04/17/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0007	04/12/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0006	04/05/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0005	03/28/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0004	03/21/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0003	03/14/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0002	03/07/2007	
SPM1C107D0023	0001	CAP0001	03/02/2007	

Figure 37 – View RFID Shipments

5.8a Change Case Lot Quantity in VIM: There is nothing available from EBS that defines the case lot quantity for NSNs on each contract. Case lot quantity is not the same as unit of issue, e.g., socks come in bags of three for a unit of issue of three, while a case of socks contains thirty-six bags. EBS contains data for unit of issue, not case lot quantity. To encourage the manufacturers to use consistent case lot quantities, C&T personnel use a VIM-ASAP function (see Figure 38) to define a standard case lot quantity for selected NSNs.

ltern Manager/POC	Phone Number	NSN	Item Description	Current Case Lot Qty	Revised Case Lot Qty
Masciocchi, Arthur	(215) 737-5617	8415-00-082-5561	trousers,hot weather	1	

Figure 38 – Change Case Lot Quantity in VIM-ASAP

4.2 VIM – Virtual Item Manager

The current version of VIM supports all of the functions listed in Table 7. The functions are organized hierarchically with only the lowest level function able to be executed. The functions can be used by all DSCP personnel and its customers and manufacturers to analyze data from the AAVS DataMart, make specific decisions, prepare documents, etc. Either AdvanTech or

Modulant developed all VIM functions. This section of the report only goes into detail for some of the Modulant developed functions that have been implemented (see first column of Table 7 for a cross reference to the appropriate section). VIM is accessed using an Internet browser at http://vim.dla-dsc.com.

Figure	Function	Status	Resp.
Figure 39	Update User Profile	Implemented	Modulant
-	System Admin		
	Login As	Implemented	Modulant
	Edit Menu		
	Structure	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 40	Membership	Implemented	Modulant
-	Data Correction Charts		
	Item Manager vs. Correction Type Chart	Implemented	Modulant
	Issue Trend Chart	Implemented	Modulant
	View Error Log	Implemented	Modulant
	View Security Violation Log	Implemented	Modulant
	Add New Carrier	Implemented	Modulant
	Check Login Status	Implemented	Modulant
	CAGE Initialization	Implemented	Modulant
	Email Link Finder	Implemented	Modulant
	Verify WAWF Password Update	Implemented	Modulant
	Update WAWF-RA User ID	Implemented	Modulant
	ASAP Administration		
Figure 13	Administer DD250 Data	Implemented	Modulant
	Administer Various Options	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 18	Contract Allocation	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 16	Submit Data Change Request	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 19	Administer Contract RFID	Implemented	Modulant
	Manufacturing		
Figure 15	View Contract Data	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 22	Process Contracts/Orders - Start Production	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 23	Print Interior Container Labels	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 24	Prepare DD250s	Implemented	Modulant
	View/Edit Existing DD250s	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 26	Prepare Shipment Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	View/Edit Existing Shipping Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	Manage Depot Operations		
	Review Orders and Generate MROs	Implemented	Modulant
	Process Verbal/Written Orders	Implemented	Modulant
	Print Unshipped MROs	Implemented	Modulant
	Prepare RFID Shipment Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	Prepare Shipment Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	Reprint RFID MRO Shipment Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	View Existing Shipping/Container Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries	Implemented	Modulant
	Record Bill & Hold Receipts From Remote Sites	Implemented	Modulant

 Table 7 – VIM Functions, Status, and Development Responsibility

Figure	Function	Status	Resp.
	Reports		
	Shipped DD250 Report	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 30	View Contract Shipments and Invoices	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 28	Track DD250 Payments	Implemented	Modulant
-	Inventory Count	Implemented	Modulant
	Requisition Shipment Status	Implemented	Modulant
	View MRO Shipments	Implemented	Modulant
	Active Contracts	Implemented	Modulant
	View Demand History	Implemented	Modulant
	View Contract Data	Implemented	Modulant
	View Contract Shipments and Invoices	Implemented	Modulant
	View Requisition Shipment Status	Implemented	Modulant
	Manage Vendors	1	
	Block Contract	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 32	Assign Contract to Buyer	Implemented	Modulant
	View Contract Assignments	Implemented	Modulant
	View Data Change Requests	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 17	Disposition Data Change Requests	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 38	Change Case Lot Quantity in VIM	Implemented	Modulant
i igulo oo	View Vendor Reports		Modularit
Figure 33	View Contract Shipments and Invoices	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 34	View Contract Data	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 35	View Contract Shipment Totals	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 35	View DD250s	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 50	View DD250 Payment Status	Implemented	Modulant
	View Requisition Shipment Status	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 27	View RFID Shipments	Implemented	Modulant
Figure 37	Wholesale	Implemented	Wouldni
	Analyze and Decide		
	Generate Recommended Stock Transfers	Implemented	AdvonTook
		Implemented	AdvanTech
	Add New Item	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Enter Special Orders/ESOC	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Data Management		
	Modify DVD Table	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Revise Reorder Objectives	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Revise Wholesale Inventory Factors	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Manager Controlled Items	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Modify Distribution Rules	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Modify Distribution Rules by PGC	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Manual Cancellation of Dues	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Reports		
	View Total Supply Chain Inventories	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Expected Zero Balance	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Daily Low Stock Report	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Excess Inventory Summary	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Customer Information	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Overdue Requisition Status by PGC	Implemented	AdvanTech

Figure	Function	Status	Resp.
	QLM Local - SAMMS Comparison	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Demand History	Implemented	Modulant
	Wholesale Local		
	System		
	Cost Centers	Implemented	AdvanTech
	User Access	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Stockroom		
	Stock Catalog	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Supplemental Bin Location	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Transaction History	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Item Transaction History	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Inventory		
	View Issues	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Process Returns	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Process Misc. Issues	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Process Exchanges	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Stock Transfer	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Verify Remote Stock Transfers	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Credits	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Inventory Adjustments	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Schedule Users for Physical Inventory	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Process Physical Inventory	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Physical Inventory	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Purchasing		
	View DSCP Requisitions	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Open DCSP Requisitions	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Receiving		
	Receive Contract Shipments	Implemented	Modulant
	Process DSCP Receipt	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Receipt Put Away	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View DSCP Receipts	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Shipping Request		
	Add Shipping Request	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Shipping Request Follow up	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Close Shipping Request	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Shipping Requests	Implemented	AdvanTech
	View Shipping Request	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Manage Depot Operations		
	Ship Orders		
	Review Orders and Generate MROs	Implemented	Modulant
	Print Unshipped MROs	Implemented	Modulant
	Prepare Shipment Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	View/Edit Existing Shipping Labels	Implemented	Modulant
	Reports		
Figure 43	Requisition Shipment Tracking	Implemented	Modulant
	View MRO Shipments	Implemented	Modulant
	Due Member		

Figure	Function	Status	Resp.
	View Due Member Data	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Delete Due Member Data	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Fulfill Due Member Data	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Reports		
	PBA Metrics Reports		
	Order Ship Time	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Days to Fulfill	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Inventory Adjustments for past 7 Days	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Stock status with Fill Rates	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Daily Activity Summary by DODAAC	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Recommended Replenishment Report	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Stock Move Report	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Expected Zero Balance	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Excess Inventory	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Overdue Requisitions	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View A2A Redistribution	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Print Bin Labels	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Print Adjustments	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Total Asset Visibility	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Receiving Report	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Consumption Based Tariffs	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Daily Suggested Order List	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View QLM Local Receipts Inquiry	Implemented	AdvanTec
	QLM Local Update History	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Local MROs	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Requisition Shipment Status	Implemented	Modulant
	Data Administration		
	Set Wholesale Parameters		
	Modify Customer Profiles	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Modify PGC Demographics	Implemented	AdvanTec
	ASTRA		
	System		
	Stockrooms	Implemented	AdvanTec
	MILSTRIP Document Types	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Hold Codes	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Manage	Implemented	7.07011100
	View Unofficial Redistributions	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Unprocessed Issue Documents	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Documents on Hold	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Unprocessed Receipts	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Reports		/ Gvan et
	View Detailed ASTRA Activity	Implemented	AdvanTec
	-	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Daily ASTRA Report		AdvanTec
	View Wholesale Local Status Summary	Implemented	
	VIM/QLM Central Reorder Objective Analysis	Implemented	AdvanTec
	View Daily Demand Allocation Transactions	Implemented	AdvanTec
	Report by Platoon	Implemented	AdvanTec

Figure	Function	Status	Resp.
	Report by Phase	Implemented	AdvanTech
	3D Body Scanner Sizing Validation	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Unprocessed Credit Returns	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Unreconciled Credit Returns	Implemented	AdvanTech
	Exit	Implemented	Modulant

4.2.1 Update User Profile

This is the first function that every VIM user sees at the top of their menu. It permits each user to update their profile (see Figure 39).

User Id:	hane
Password:	****
Name:	John Doe
Phone:	(215) 555 - 1212 <mark>Ext.</mark>
E-Mail:	John.Doe@dla.mil
OCIE Only:	

Figure 39 – Update User Profile Web Page

4.2.2 Edit Menu Membership

A small number of users that are identified as "Master" users are the only ones permitted to edit menu memberships. This function (see Figure 40) is used to permit each user group to access a specific set of functions. All user groups are defined across the X-axis while all VIM functions are defined along the Y-axis. A specific user group is authorized to access a specific function by clicking at the appropriate intersection. The number of the authorized user group will appear at the selected intersection. The user group is unauthorized by clicking at the intersection of a previously authorized function.

Menu Item Name	(1) Master	(2) ASAP Manufacturer	(3) ASAP Bill & Hold Manufacturer	(4) ASAP Bill & Hold Depot Only (5) ASAP PN Only	(6) ASAP RD & Manufacturer	(7) ASAP SysAdmin	(8) Administrator of ASAP Manufacturer		(10) Administrator of ASAP RD Only	(11) Autimistication of ASAP Kuroz Manufacturer (43) Herri Meneder	(12) Neuri Mariager (13) Buyer	(14) Item Manager or Buyer	(15) Wholesale Local	(1b) UEMO (47) RIEDS	(18) Army CliP	(19) DSCP Update Access	(20) DSCP View Prod	(21) MCRD	(22) Temp USCP	(23) OCIE IM (24) VIM-Master	(25) Local Internet	(26) Local Material Handler	(27) Local Supply Clerk	(28) Administrator of ASAP Bill & Hold (SAMMS QA)	(29) Item Manager and Buyer (SAMMS QA)	(30) VPV	(31) ЧАК (32) DEMO ASAP	(33) ATI Local Master	(34) DSCP Master	(40) TEST
ASAP Administration		-	-				-	-	-	-		-					-	<u> </u>			-	-	-	-	-				-	-
Administer ASAP Users	1	Í	ΠÌ	-j-	Ť	7	8	9	10 1	1	Ť	Ē		Ť	İ	İ	ΓÌ	Ť	Ť	Ť	Í	m	T	28	Ť	Ť	32	i –	Ē	
Administer DD250 Data	1	Ē	ΠÌ	-j-	Ť	7	8	9	10 1	1	Ť	Ē		Ť	İ	İ.	ΓÌ	Ť	Ť	Ť	Í	m	Ì	28	Ť	Ť	32	i –	Ē	
Administer DFAS Transmissions	1					Γ			- [-	1						Ē		-i						ĺ		- [-		ĺ –		
Administer Various Options	1					7	8	9	10 1	1						Ē		-i			1			28		- [-	32	-		
Submit Data Change Request	1					7	8	9	10 1	1														28						
Adjust Cut Qty and Finished Goods Counts	1					7	8	9	10 1	1														28			32			
Add/Delete NSN	1					7	8	9	1	1														28			32			
Manufacture Garments																														
Process Contracts/Orders - Start Production	1	2	3		6	7	8	9	1	1														28			32	:		
Generate DD1155	1	2	3		6	7	8	9	1	1														28			32			
View Contract Shipments and Invoices	1					7	8	9	1	1			1	6				21	2	3				28			32	:		
Print Carton Labels	1	2	3		6	7	8	9	1	-											_									

Figure 40 – Edit Menu Membership Web Page

4.2.3 Resolve Contract Data Change Request

This function is used by DSCP personnel to review and disposition (see Figure 41) potential data quality problems with contracts that were identified by manufacturers that use VIM-ASAP. The pull-down lists contain only reported problems that have not yet been resolved. DSCP personnel can accept the proposed change, revise the proposed change, or reject any change. The "Update" button causes an immediate change to be made to the AAVS DataMart so that a shipment can be made, but DSCP personnel must also change the data in EBS to make the change permanent.

	Source of Problem: FOB Code
	Contract: SP010000DEA46
	Delivery Order: 0001 💌
	CLIN: ALL
	and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second
Date Requested	05/05/2003
Requested by	William Morton from PDIT (562) 495-6500
Current FOB Code	1 - Inspection and acceptance at destination, FOB source
Deepered FOR Code	2 - Inspection and acceptance at source, FOB destination.
Proposed FOB Code	

Figure 41 – Resolve Contract Data Change Request Web Page

A complete history of all dispositioned data change requests is maintained in the AAVS DataMart. The data can be used for a variety of charts and reports (see Figure 42).



Figure 42 – Data Changes for Past Year

4.2.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking

The Requisition Shipment Tracking function can be used by anyone who wants to check on a requisition through the carrier's web site (see Figure 43). The user simply enters the requisition number and any suffix code and then clicks the "View" button. A click on the carrier tracking number will cause the carrier's web site to be accessed for the details about the shipment.

	Contraction in the second second	ber Suffix Code				
	FX303740575544					
	Vi	ew				
	Issued To RIC	SAD				
	Shipped To DODAAC	FY0901				
	Date Shipped	Mar 8 2004				
	TCN	FX303740575544X)	x			
	Carrier	UPS				
		Sector France				
			SHIPMENT DET			Number of
	Requisition	NSN	To RIC	Order Quantity	Qty Ship	Container
Carrier Tracking Number	V4141140610001	8415-01-474-3953	Mar 2 2004	6	6	1
1Z815Y0Y0391414424	FX303740575544				1	
		8405-01-397-2078	Feb 26 2004	3	3	1
View Tracking Summar To see a detailed report for eac Tracking Number	¥			3	3	1

Figure 43 – Sample Requisition Shipment Tracking

5 Accomplishments During This Contract Period

This Final Technical Report covers the work done on SP0103-02-D-0016 Delivery Order 0019. The tasks were performed beginning in May 2006 and were completed in May 2007.

5.1 Fabric Supplier and End-Item Manufacturer Coordination

The primary focuses for this task (Proposal Task 2.1) was to define requirements for tracking critical fabric as it moves through the total supply chain and on establishing the CDUM network required to support all of the PDIT and AdvanTech pilot projects.

- a) The initial focus for this task was on understanding the entire Nomex process so that the right amount of fabric could be available and tracked throughout it life cycle from the initial acquisition of the fabric through DLA's delivery to its customers. Nomex proved to not be a good candidate for this process for a variety of reasons. We also reviewed the possibility of using body armor plates as an alternative, but that too proved to not be a good candidate because of very long term delays in issuing new contracts for the body armor. The vendors had completed their current contracts and no new ones were to be issued during the foreseeable future. We finally settled on developing a pilot based on the Air Force's Airman Battle Uniform (ABU) for PGCs 03230, 03231, 03232, and 03233. The methods for capturing data and tracking the material for the ABUs is little different from most other C&T products.
- b) The ARN network was completely isolated from all other equipment and is only being used for DSCP funded production support for DSCP C&T personnel, its vendors, eight of the recruit training centers, and KYLOC. The CDUM pilots needed a separate network and a subset of ARN's database to support both PDIT's and AdvanTech's CDUM pilots. The CDUM network was established by this task to provide a completely redundant set of web and database servers, domain controllers, firewalls, and the rest of the equipment and software required to support CDUM's development and testing needs. The network is now in place and supporting all CDUM R&D efforts.

5.2 Manufacturing Shipment through Retail Receipt Management

The primary focuses for this task (Proposal Task 2.2) included the capture and utilization of shipment and delivery data from a commercial carrier, the use of CDUM data and hand-held computers to facilitate receiving and product tracking at a variety of sites, and the development of a pilot "Demand History" to support the requirements defined by manufacturers and DSCP C&T while performing the analysis described in Section 5.1.

a) The goal to reliably track products from their initial manufacturing through the transition to one of C&T's retail customers requires very high data quality and closed looped data sources that could be used to verify timely and accurate postings of shipments and receipts as the product moves through the total supply chain. This needs to be done as the manufacturer builds and ships the product; as the commercial carrier transports the product; as the depot manages and then ships the product; as the commercial carrier again transports the product; and then finally as the product is turned over to the customer at a

recruit training center or any other service managed facility. The primary focus for this task was to figure out how to capture the data required from all of the commercial carriers that support C&T products. This proved to be a very difficult task with many roadblocks presented by the carriers. The principal roadblock presented by the carriers is the requirement that each C&T vendor must have its own authorization and testing process. We had hoped that we could go through this process with a specific carrier and then carte blanche permission to access data from all manufacturers and depots that use that carrier. We have yet to get a single carrier to approve this approach. We were able to get access to carrier software from FedEx and UPS to test access to their data for two separate vendors, i.e., Tennessee Apparel and VPVSC. We successfully tested the interface for each vendor for each carrier and were able to automatically generate a carrier label and track the package from its initial pickup through its delivery, including capturing the name and signature of the person who received the shipment. The capturing of the data is not a simple hyperlink to a carrier site, but a background web enable function that captures the data in a CDUM database that can be used for a variety of purposes, e.g., proof of delivery for retail sites that never post receipts to EBS.

- This task focused on another facet of the closed loop product tracking goal, i.e., receiving b) shipments at a variety of sites, including Fort Carson and VPVSC. Pilots were performed for VPVSC, but not for Fort Carson. Much of the work done for VPVSC is applicable to Fort Carson, but a pilot could not be done because a decision was never made about DLA's role in providing depot support for the Army. A possible pilot for Fort Carson would start with the receiving capability developed for VPVSC and then extend it to an interface with SARRS to capture that transition between DLA and Army ownership of the product. Much of the effort focused on an evaluation of the use and programming of a hand-held computer that could be used to scan and process receipts. The hand-held device needed to be web enabled so that CDUM data could be used to support the receiving process without installing a local network or loading all possible data onto each device. We initially decided to make this a web function accessible from a browser. We found that Microsoft only supports a very primitive browser for hand-helds that could not be effectively utilized. To provide the required capability, the software was developed using web services rather than being browser based.
- c) The analysis done for the tasks described in Section 5.1 identified a requirement for manufacturers to have better visibility into demand history for the products they manufacture or would like to manufacture. We worked with DSCP C&T and manufacturing personnel to develop a pilot that utilized orders for the past two years to tabulate and plot consumption patterns for products selected by NSN, PGC, description, or applicable specification.

5.3 Non-Recruit Clothing Life-Cycle Management

The primary focuses for this task (Proposal Task 2.3) was to define requirements for managing non-recruit clothing throughout its life cycle from the initial manufacturing through its delivery to C&T's customers. The specific products of interest included Individual Protective Equipment (IPE), Interceptor Body Armor (IBA), and Army Combat Uniforms (ACU). The specific tasks included building the database required to support life-cycle management, defining the

Automated Identification Technology (AIT) support requirements, defining requirements for the product's management at the Virtual Prime Vendors (VPV), and defining requirements for the transitions from DLA management at its depots to the services' management at its bases.

- a) The network infrastructure was established by the tasks described in Section 5.1. This task was responsible for building the required data structures and populating the data required by PDIT and AdvanTech's pilot projects. CDUM's data is a specific subset of the AAVS DataMart data from the ARN servers. The CDUM subset is created during the middle of the night after the ARN data is complete.
- b) This task explored the use of AIT to improve the timely and accurate processing of receipts. We decided to do the testing of a pilot for shipments between VPVSC and Lackland's recruit training center because we have worked on and continue to work on pilot projects between these two sites. We needed a source to apply the AIT and a source to receive the AIT. The pilot focused on identifying each shipped pallet with an RFID pallet tag, preparing a shared database between VPVSC and Lackland that contained the RFID to shipment data correlation, and using the RFID tag identification at Lackland to receive the shipment. Even though the items processed were not non-recruit clothing, the pilot was deemed successful because the same technologies are applicable to all C&T items.
- c) This task was focused on developing a pilot that would explore the requirements for CDUM to support DLA's receiving and shipping processes. We initially intended to use Fort Carson as the test site, but changed our mind about this site due to the delay in deciding whether to deploy a dedicated DLA depot at Fort Carson. Instead, we decided to do the pilot with VPVSC since the requirements for receiving and shipping at VPVSC could be readily applied to other sites. This task then focused on developing a detailed understanding of the receiving and shipping processes at VPVSC and the interfaces required to exchange data with the local warehouse management system. A database to database exchange process was defined so that local inventory records could be continuously synchronized with the equivalent records in EBS.

Appendix A

Acronyms List

AAVS	ARN Asset Visibility System
ABU	Airman Battle Uniform
ACF	Active Contracts File from SAMMS
ACU	Army Combat Uniform
AIT	Automated Identification Technology
API	Application Programming Interface
ARCS	Active Requisition Control/Status from SAMMS
ARN	Apparel Research Network
ASAP	ARN Supply-chain Automated Processing
ASTRA	ARN Supply-chain Transaction Repository for Action
ATI	AdvanTech, Inc.
BIFRS	Balance Inventory Flow Replenishment System
BOL	Bill of Lading
C&T	Clothing and Textile
CAGE	Commercial And Government Entity
CAS	Contracting Administrative Services
CDUM	Customer Driven Uniform Manufacturing
CIIP	Clothing Initial Issue Point
CLIN	Contract Line Item Number
CRDL	Contract Data Requirements List
CTWHS	Clothing and Textile Warehouse
DAAS	Defense Automated Addressing System
DAASC	Defense Automatic Addressing System Center
DCMA	Defense Contract Management Agency
DD Form 1155	DoD standard order for supplies or services
DD Form 1348-1A	DoD standard issue release/receipt document
DD Form 250	DoD standard Material Inspection and Receiving Report, a.k.a.
	Invoice
DFAR	Defense Federal Acquisition Regulations
DFAS	Defense Finance and Accounting Service
DIBBS	DLA Internet Bid Board System
DLA	Defense Logistics Agency
DLIS	Defense Logistics Information Services
DoD	Department of Defense
DODAAC	Department of Defense Activity Address Code
DSC	Defense Supply Center
DSCP	Defense Supply Center Philadelphia
DSCP C&T	Defense Supply Center Philadelphia Clothing and Textiles

DSD	Decision Support Database
DSD	Decision Support Database
DUE	Distribution Standard System Due-In Table from SAMMS
DUNS	Dun and Bradstreet- a nine digit identification number
DVD	Direct Vender Delivery
EBS	Enterprise Business System
ECWCS	Extended Cold Weather Clothing Systems
EDI	Electronic Data Interchange
EFT	Electronic Fund Transfer
EIN	Employer Identification Number
ESOC	Emergency Supply Operations Center
FEDLOG	Federal Logistics Database
FOB	Freight on Board
FSC	Federal Supply Class
FTP	File Transfer Protocol
HQ	Headquarters
IBA	Interceptor Body Armor
IPE	Individual Protective Equipment
IRM	Integrated Retail Module
ISP	Internet Service Provider
KYLOC	Kentucky Logistics Operations Center
LTL	Less than Truck Load
MCRD	Marine Corps Recruit Depot
MEMS	MicroElectro Mechanical Systems
MGF	Manufacturing
MIL-STD-129P	Military Shipping Labels
MILSTRAP	Military Standard Transaction Reporting and Accounting
	Procedures
MILSTRIP	Military Standard Requisitioning And Issue Procedures
MOCAS	Mechanization of Contract Administration System
MRO	Material Release Order
MSL	Military Shipment Label
NET	An integrated Web services development environment
NIB	National Industries for the Blind
NIR	National Inventory Record from SAMMS
NIST	National Institute of Standards and Technology
NSN	National Stock Number
OCIE	Organization Clothing and Individual Equipment
ODBC	Open Data Base Connectivity
ORC	Output Routing Codes from SAMMS
OST	Order Ship Time
	ĩ

PBA	Performance Based Acquisition
PDIT	Product Data Integrated Technologies, Inc.
PGC	Product Group Code
POC	Point of Contact
QAR	Quality Assurance Representative
QLM	Quality Logistics Management
QTY	Quantity
R&D	Research and Development
RAID	Redundant Array of Independent Disks
RDC	Regional Distribution Center
REDF	Requisition Exception Data File
RFID	Radio Frequency Identification
RIC	Routing Identifier Code
RTC	Recruit Training Center
SAMMS	Standard Automated Material Management System
SARSS	Standard Army Retail Supply System
SCF	Supply Control File from SAMM
SCS	Supply Chain System
SF26	GSA Contract Award Standard Form 26
SSC	Standard Supply Code
TCN	Transportation Control Number
TIN	Taxpayers Identification Number
UDF	User Defined File
UPC	Universal Product Code
VCSF	Violation Control and Suspense File from SAMMS
VIM	Virtual Item Manager
VIMWL	Virtual Item Management Wholesale Local Database
VPN	Virtual Private Network
VPV	Virtual Prime Vendor
WAWF-RA	Wide Area Work Flow – Receiving Acceptance
XML	Extensible Markup Language

Appendix B

VIM-ASAP System Usage Statistics

Category	Quantity (thru 7/31/2005)	Quantity (thru 7/31/2006)	Growth Percentage	
Trained VIM-ASAP Ship-From Sites	350	533	52%	
VIM-ASAP Ship-From Sites Registered with WAWF-RA *	305	468	53%	

Table 1: Number of Vendors from Inception to Date

Table 2: Contract Related Quantities per Year

Category Quantity Quantity Growt		Growth	
	(8/1/2004 – 7/31/2005)	(8/1/2005 – 7/31/2006)	Percentage
Active Ship-From Sites **	230	322	40%
DD250s Generated and Shipped	29,600	38,236	29%
DD250s Transmitted to WAWF-RA ***	28,784	38,215	33%
CLINs on Shipped DD250s	120,687	136,026	13%
Value of DD250s	\$1,502,891,681	\$1,767,465,599	18%

Table 3: Requisition Related Quantities per Year

Category	Quantity (8/1/2004 – 7/31/2005)	Quantity (8/1/2005 – 7/31/2006)	Growth Percentage
Ship-From RICs ****	27	32	19%
Shipped MROs	76,142	105,149	38%
MIL Transactions	112,066	140,259	25%

- **Notes**: * The roughly 12% of trained personnel that are not registered with WAWF-RA include 1) some vendors who were trained, used VIM-ASAP before WAWF-RA was implemented, and no longer have any C&T contracts; and 2) have been trained, but have not yet started using VIM-ASAP and WAWF-RA.
 - ** Active ship-from sites are prime or subcontractor CAGEs that completed at least one DD250 during the indicated time frame.
 - *** WAWF-RA has been used for 100% of VIM-ASAP shipments since February 22, 2006
 - **** Ship-from RICs identify bill and hold contractor and recruit training centers that are responsible for shipping MROs.

Appendix C

VIM-ASAP v2.1 User's Manual

Virtual Item Manager ARN Supply-chain Automated Processing

VIM-ASAP v2.1 User's Manual

(Rev. G)

Prepared for: Apparel Research Network Program Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) and Defense Supply Center Philadelphia (DSCP)





PDIT, Inc. DBA Modulant 444 West Ocean Blvd., Suite 620 Long Beach, CA 90802-4500 Phone: (562) 495-6500 Fax: (562) 495-6509 <u>vim-asap@ct-dscp.com</u> <u>http://vim.ct-dscp.com</u>

June 8, 2005

Table of Contents

1.1 Computer Requirements and Internet Connection. .7 1.2 Acquiring and Learning How to Use a Browser. .7 1.3 User Identifications and Passwords .8 1.4 Login and Use of VIM-ASAP .8 2 ASAP Administration .11 2.1 Administer Options .11 2.2 Administer Various Options .14 2.3 Administer Various Options .14 2.4 Submit Data Change Request .15 2.5 Contract Allocations .16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods .17 3 Manufacture Garments .19 3.1 Generate DD1155 .19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production .21 3.3 Print Carton Labels .22 3.4 Prepare DD250s .24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s .28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels .31 4 Manage Depot Operations .32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs. .32 4.2 Process Ve	1	Introduction	5
1.3 User Identifications and Passwords 8 1.4 Login and Use of VIM-ASAP 8 2 ASAP Administration 11 2.1 Administer ASAP Users 11 2.2 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.3 Administer Various Options 14 2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 24 3.6 Prepare BDiptoD 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Process Verbal/Written Orders 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 </td <td></td> <td>1.1 Computer Requirements and Internet Connection</td> <td>7</td>		1.1 Computer Requirements and Internet Connection	7
1.4 Login and Use of VIM-ASAP 8 2 ASAP Administration 11 2.1 Administer ASAP Users 11 2.2 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.3 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.4 Administer Various Options 14 2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 24 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36			
2 ASAP Administration 11 2.1 Administer ASAP Users 11 2.2 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.3 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42			
2.1 Administer ASAP Users 11 2.2 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.3 Administer Various Options 14 2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices		1.4 Login and Use of VIM-ASAP	8
2.1 Administer ASAP Users 11 2.2 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.3 Administer Various Options 14 2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices	2	ASAP Administration	11
2.2 Administer DD250 Data 11 2.3 Administer Various Options 14 2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Contract Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments.			
2.4 Submit Data Change Request 15 2.5 Contract Allocations 16 2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments.		2.3 Administer Various Options	14
2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods 17 3 Manufacture Garments. 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production. 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROS. 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments 44 5.3 Inventory Count 47 5.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking			
3 Manufacture Garments. 19 3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production. 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments 44 5.3 Inventory Count 47		2.5 Contract Allocations	16
3.1 Generate DD1155 19 3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 36 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments 44 5.3 Inventory Count 47 5.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking 48 5.5 Shipped Requisitions 49 5.6 Active Contracts 50		2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods	17
3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production. 21 3.3 Print Carton Labels 22 3.4 Prepare DD250s 24 3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s 28 3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels 28 3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 31 4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments 44 5.3 Inventory Count 47 5.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking 48 5.5 Shipped Requisitions <td>3</td> <td>Manufacture Garments</td> <td>19</td>	3	Manufacture Garments	19
3.3Print Carton Labels223.4Prepare DD250s243.5View/Edit Existing DD250s283.6Prepare Shipment Labels283.7View Existing Shipment/Container Labels314Manage Depot Operations324.1Review Orders and Generate MROs324.2Process Verbal/Written Orders354.3Print Unshipped MROs364.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels364.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52A-1.Self Registration for WAWF-RA52			
3.4Prepare DD250s243.5View/Edit Existing DD250s283.6Prepare Shipment Labels283.7View Existing Shipment/Container Labels314Manage Depot Operations324.1Review Orders and Generate MROs324.2Process Verbal/Written Orders354.3Print Unshipped MROs364.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels364.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52A-1.Self Registration for WAWF-RA52		3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production	21
3.5View/Edit Existing DD250s283.6Prepare Shipment Labels283.7View Existing Shipment/Container Labels314Manage Depot Operations324.1Review Orders and Generate MROs324.2Process Verbal/Written Orders354.3Print Unshipped MROs364.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels404.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52A-1.Self Registration for WAWF-RA52		3.3 Print Carton Labels	22
3.6Prepare Shipment Labels283.7View Existing Shipment/Container Labels314Manage Depot Operations324.1Review Orders and Generate MROs324.2Process Verbal/Written Orders354.3Print Unshipped MROs364.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels404.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52		3.4 Prepare DD250s	24
3.7View Existing Shipment/Container Labels314Manage Depot Operations324.1Review Orders and Generate MROs324.2Process Verbal/Written Orders354.3Print Unshipped MROs364.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels404.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52		3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s	28
4 Manage Depot Operations 32 4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs 32 4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders 35 4.3 Print Unshipped MROs 36 4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels 36 4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels 40 4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries 41 5 Reports 42 5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices 42 5.2 Track DD250 Payments 44 5.3 Inventory Count 47 5.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking 48 5.5 Shipped Requisitions 49 5.6 Active Contracts 50 Appendix A. Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA 52 A-1. Self Registration for WAWF-RA 52			
4.1Review Orders and Generate MROs		3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels	31
4.1Review Orders and Generate MROs	4	Manage Depot Operations	32
4.3Print Unshipped MROs364.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels404.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52A-1.Self Registration for WAWF-RA52			
4.4Prepare Shipment Labels364.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels404.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA.52		4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders	35
4.5View Existing Shipment/Container Labels404.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries415Reports425.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices425.2Track DD250 Payments445.3Inventory Count475.4Requisition Shipment Tracking485.5Shipped Requisitions495.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52		4.3 Print Unshipped MROs	36
4.6Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries		4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels	36
5 Reports			
5.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices		4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries	41
5.1View Contract Shipments and Invoices	5	Reports	42
5.2Track DD250 Payments			
5.4Requisition Shipment Tracking		5.2 Track DD250 Payments	44
5.5Shipped Requisitions		5.3 Inventory Count	47
5.6Active Contracts50Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA52A-1.Self Registration for WAWF-RA52		5.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking	48
Appendix A.Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA		5.5 Shipped Requisitions	49
A-1. Self Registration for WAWF-RA		5.6 Active Contracts	50
A-1. Self Registration for WAWF-RA	An	pendix A. Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA.	52
	- - P		
11 2. Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD2505 Comp WITWI 101		A-2. Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA	

Index of Figures

Figure 1 – Login	8
Figure 2 – First Page After Login Menu	9
Figure 3 – ASAP Administration Menu	
Figure 4 – Manufacture Garments Menu	10
Figure 5 – Manage Depot Operations Menu	10
Figure 6 – Reports Menu	10
Figure 7 – Administer ASAP Users Web Page	11
Figure 8 – Administer DD250 Data Web Page	12
Figure 9 – Administer DD250 Data Web Page – Detail Page	13
Figure 10 – Administer Various Options Web Page	14
Figure 11 - Submit Data Change Request Options	15
Figure 12 - Submit Data Change Request Results	16
Figure 13 - Contract Allocations	16
Figure 14 – Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods Counts	18
Figure 15 – Generate DD1155 Web Page	19
Figure 16 – Controls for DD1155 Form	20
Figure 17 – Sample Two Sheet DD Form 1155	
Figure 18 – Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production Web Page	21
Figure 19 - Print Carton Labels	
Figure 20 – Top-Half of Prepare DD250s Web Page	24
Figure 21 – Bottom-Half of Prepare DD250s Web Page	
Figure 22 – Sample DD250 and Container Label Sheets	
Figure 23 – Control Buttons at Top of DD250 and Container Labels	27
Figure 24 – View/Edit Existing DD250s Web Page	28
Figure 25 – Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page	29
Figure 26 – New Window for Shipment Labels	30
Figure 27 – List for Shipment Labels	31
Figure 28 – View Existing Shipments Labels Web Page	31
Figure 29 - Review Orders and Generate MROs Web Page	32
Figure 30 – MRO Form Window	34
Figure 31 – MRO List Window	34
Figure 32 – Process Verbal/Written Orders Web Page	35
Figure 33 – Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page	37
Figure 34 – Top Half of Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page	37
Figure 35 – Bottom Half of Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page	
Figure 36 – Small Window for Editing Container Information	
Figure 37 – New Window for Shipping Forms	
Figure 38 – New Window for Container Forms	39
Figure 39 – New Window for List	
Figure 40 – View Existing Shipment/Container Labels Web Page	
Figure 41 – Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries Web Page	
Figure 42 – View Contract Shipments and Invoices Web Page	
Figure 43 - Track DD250 Payments Page	
Figure 44 - Sorting the Data on the Track DD250 Payments Page	
Figure 45 - DFAS Detail and Inquiry Section of Track DD20 Payments Page	45

Figure 46 – DFAS Detail Web Page for a Single DD250	45
Figure 47 – Inventory Count Printing Page	48
Figure 48 – Requisition Status Page	
Figure 49 – Shipped Requisitions Page	
Figure 50 – Active Contracts Page	

Index of Tables

Table 1 – Process Verbal/Written Orders Data Fields	35
Table 2 – View Contract Shipments and Invoices Column Headings	43
Table 3 – View Contract Shipments and Invoices Row Headings	43
Table 4 – Track DD250 Data Fields and Sources	46
Table 5 – DFAS Detailed Invoice Data Sources	. 46

1 Introduction

The ARN Supply-chain Automated Processing (ASAP) system is a collection of Internet-based functions that have been designed to support enhanced visibility, reliability, and document and data consistency between defense apparel manufacturers, DFAS, and the personnel at DSCP who are responsible for managing inventory levels, issuing contracts and requisitions, and monitoring related activities. ASAP is a part of the total DSCP managed system called VIM (Virtual Item Manager) that provides DSCP with a collection of functions to support their management of the total apparel supply chain.

VIM-ASAP accomplishes these things by providing web pages for each manufacturer to start production of selected contracts, create DD250s when the items are ready for shipment, and transmit electronic DD250s to DFAS as well as to your QARs for electronic approval via WAWF-RA. The system can print all of the shipping and container labels that are required when making a shipment. For those manufacturers who are bill and hold contractors, the system also generates MILSTRAP transactions (D4S) as well as all of the documents and MILSTRIP transactions that are required for the operation of a depot. Most of the information required, like contract numbers and ship-to addresses, have been extracted from a collection of DSCP, DLA, DLIS, DAASC, and DFAS databases and inserted in the appropriate locations on the web pages. This means that users need only make minimal entries of variable data, e.g., quantity shipped for each CLIN.

Terms You Should Know

- **Click** means that you should depress the left mouse button once after positioning the mouse cursor over a specific point.
- **Cut Quantity** is used to identify those NSNs that have gone from a status of on-order (the contract has been issued) with the manufacturer into the production process. It is that point in time where DSCP can no longer issue a modification that does not have a significant impact on the manufacturer.
- **Finished Goods (FG) Quantity** is reserved for manufacturer owned items for which no current contract exists for the NSNs. These may be items that we manufactured a "at risk" in anticipation of a contract or excess items that may have been left over from a prior contract where the completed quantity exceeded the permissible variance. FG items can be seen by DSCP personnel and can be used to fill requirements for future orders.
- **PGC (Product Group Code):** A five digit code that is used by DSCP to identify all NSNs that belong to a specific garment family or commodity, e.g., all sizes of shirts made from the same fabric and style are assigned to a single PGC. You will see the PGC whenever you are addressing any of the NSNs that you are producing.

Key Points Graphics

The following symbols have been incorporated into this User's Manual to call attention to key points or tasks:

?	Helpful suggestions or tips are prefaced with a light bulb icon. These suggestions may not be required, but should make your use of VIM-ASAP easier and/or more productive. These points or suggestions are recommended.
CAUTION	Cautions are indicated with an orange "Caution" sign, and are included next to tasks or items that could cause problems if not accomplished per the directions.

This document is organized into the following sections:

- 1. <u>Computer Requirements and Internet Connection</u>: Defines what each contractor needs to do to establish a connection to the Internet.
- 2. Acquiring and Learning How to Use a Browser: Users need to know how to use a browser.
- 3. <u>User Identification and Passwords</u>: Explains how to login to VIM-ASAP.
- 4. <u>Login and Use of VIM-ASAP</u>: Explains how to initially login and begin using VIM-ASAP.
- 5. <u>ASAP Administration</u>: The Administration web functions provide controls for each contractor over who can review and update their web pages. These functions also permit each contractor to identify alternate production sites, to authorize the VIM-ASAP program to transmit electronic DD250s to DFAS, to initialize data for the DD250, and control over a number of other options.
- 6. <u>Manufacture Garments</u>: The manufacturing functions provide access to new and updated contracts and delivery orders, the identification of CLINs that have been cut, the preparation of DD Form 250s and all shipping documents, and the transmission of electronic invoices to DFAS and QARs as well as MILSTRAP transactions for bill and hold contractors.
- 7. <u>Manage Depot Operations</u>: The depot operations functions provide access to new and updated requisitions (a.k.a. MROs) and follow-up inquiries, prints all of the required forms and shipping documents, permits the entry of phone or faxed orders, and generates all of the required MILSTRIP transactions.
- 8. <u>Reports</u>: This section shows primarily "read only" reports such as contract shipment and invoice data, payment data, and requisition status.
1.1 Computer Requirements and Internet Connection

The minimal configuration for a computer required to access the Internet and use VIM-ASAP varies as a function of the operating system, but needs to be able to utilize at least Microsoft's **Internet Explorer version 6.0**. If you encounter slow performance, you may need to add RAM or get a faster connection to the Internet. There are too many variables of operating system, processor speed, and RAM to make a specific system recommendation. As a starting point, you should check Microsoft's minimum system requirements for the version of Internet Explorer that you have installed. You will also need an ink-jet or laser printer for printing the forms and bar codes produced by VIM-ASAP.

There are a large number of options for establishing an Internet connection. Costs start at roughly \$10 per month for a dial-up service that works with each individual's computer modem. This is a perfectly acceptable setup as long as your computer's modem is at least 56 kbs. Highend performance options can cost as much as \$1,500 per month, but these are only necessary for very high volume multi-user environments. There are also many options in between these two. Your initial connection can be focused on the very acceptable low-end, but make sure that the provider has a local number that is not frequently busy. If you get poor service from one provider you can easily switch to another until you get a good level of service.

The search for a good Internet provider should start with recommendations from local friends. If you do not know anyone with Internet experience, look in the yellow pages under "Internet" to find a local provider. Any Internet service provider will supply you with a start-up kit and technical support if you have any communications problems.

1.2 Acquiring and Learning How to Use a Browser

A browser is a program that permits each user to navigate their way around the Internet. There are several different brands of Browsers. The two most common ones are Microsoft's Internet Explorer (IE) and Netscape's Navigator. At this time Netscape's browser is not capable of properly handling a number of functions so you will need to use IE for VIM-ASAP.

In recent years, nearly every computer is purchased with a browser already installed. If IE is already installed, use its "Help" menu to check the "About Internet Explorer" option. Make sure that it is at least version 6.0. If you need to acquire an updated version of IE, use your existing Browser to access the indicated Web site for a free download of the IE software at: <u>http://www.microsoft.com/windows/ie/</u>.

Before you use VIM-ASAP for the first time, you should become familiar with the use of your Browser. VIM-ASAP utilizes many of the standard methods that you will find on nearly all Web pages, such as pull-down lists. You should not use the enter button and instead click on the appropriate action button. Browsers can get confused about what the enter button is being used for. There are also books that you can read, but you will also need to sit and use the browser for a few hours before you will become familiar enough to begin using VIM-ASAP.

There is a useful Configuration Utility available at http://info.ct-dscp.com that will set up your browser for you automatically. Once you click the link on the Installer page you will be prompted to open the ARN Settings program. This will add the VIM-ASAP website to your list of Trusted Sites, adjust your security settings

accordingly, and also adjust your browser's print margins so that documents will print correctly.

1.3 User Identifications and Passwords

A default user ID and password are established for each manufacturer and are provided to the manufacturer's point of contact that will be serving as the ASAP Administrator. No one can update or access a manufacturer's individual VIM-ASAP web pages without being authorized by the specific manufacturer. Access is managed through the use of user IDs and passwords that are controlled by each manufacturer through their Administration functions.

If you have misplaced your password or have any other problems, call the VIM-ASAP Help Desk at 1-888-940-7348. The help desk is open from 7a.m. to 4p.m. (Pacific Time), Mondays through Fridays, except Holidays. You may leave a voice mail message at any time and help desk personnel will return your call as soon as possible.

A test site for version 2.1 with demonstration data has been established for each user to practice using the system the first time. Use this demo site until you have learned how to work with the system. The login and password are both 'demo.' The address is: http://vim.ct-dscp.com (the same as the production site). In the demo site, you may perform all of the functions without changing any production data or transmitting data to any external organization. You can make mistakes that will not cause any problems. The demo site does not contain any requisitions though, so you will not see the depot operations.

1.4 Login and Use of VIM-ASAP

When you are ready to start using VIM-ASAP, go to http://vim.ct-dscp.com to access the web site and enter your user identification and password (see Figure 1). Additional authorized users may be created by each manufacturer's system administrator by following the instructions contained in Section 2.1.

VIM	
Virtual Item Manager	
Login:	Enter your assigned User ID and your
Password: OK	password

Figure 1 – Login

After logging in, the first level of the menu will appear in the upper left-hand corner of your screen (see Figure 2). Click each menu folder to get access to the lower level functions. The administrator of an apparel manufacturer will see two clusters of functions titled "ASAP Administration" and "Manufacturer Garments". A bill and hold contractor will see a third cluster of functions called "Manage Depot Operations". All users will also see a folder labeled "Reports" right above the Exit link.

Menu	Virtual Item Manager	mela
ASAP Administration	Activity for the Past 7 days Item Qty Update Date	
Manage Depot Operations	NSNs Cut 2 03/08/2004 DD250s Finished 0 02/07/2004	
• Exit	Data Update Status Type Last Updated Contracts Mar 7 2004 11:04:00:000PM VPIS Mar 8 2004 4:04:00:000AM	
	VIM-ASAP Information Website Comments? Questions? Bugs? 868-940-7348 or 866-276-3376 (866-ARN-DESK) or with asapged-desp.com	

Figure 2 – First Page After Login Menu

The right half of the screen is used to display usage statistics and contact information. "Activity for the Past 7 days" shows a cumulative total of activities over the last week. Items identified in **Red** font are items that are outside the range of normal operations (e.g., no activity, DFAS or DSCP data not received in the last 24 hours). The "Data Update Status" lists the last update date and time for the most recent update of the database for contract and MRO data from DSCP as well as for VPIS data from DFAS. A direct link to the VIM-ASAP Information Website (http://info.ct-dscp.com) is included, along with support phone numbers and an email link. The Information website is where the answers to many Frequently Asked Questions may be found. The current version of this User Manual will also be available there, annotated with the date of the most recent update. Additionally, a Configuration Utility is available on the Installer page. This utility will automatically adjust a user's browser settings to properly set their print margins and security settings.

The functions available in each menu area are shown in Figure 3 through Figure 6. Simply click on the folder to reveal the menu items in that group of functions, then click on the item with the black dot in front of it to activate the desired function.

i.	Administer ASAP Users
An	Administer DD250 Data
An	Administer Various Options
	Submit Data Change Request
	Contract Allocations
An	Adjust Cut Qty and Finished Goods Counts
2	Add/Delete NSN

Figure 3 – ASAP Administration Menu

-	72N 8		
	Vlanut	acture	Garments
<u> </u>		and the second second	- and the state of

- Generate DD1155
- Process Contracts/Orders Start Production
- Print Carton Labels
- Prepare DD250s
- View/Edit Existing DD250s
- Prepare Shipment Labels
- View Existing Shipping/Container Labels

Figure 4 – Manufacture Garments Menu

Mar	age Depot Operations
٠	Review Orders and Generate MROs
•	Process Verbal/Written Orders
•	Print Unshipped MROs
٠	Prepare Shipment Labels
٠	View Existing Shipping/Container Labels
	Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries

Figure 5 – Manage Depot Operations Menu

Rep	orts
۲	View Contract Shipments and Invoices
٠	Track DD250 Payments
٠	Inventory Count
۲	Requisition Shipment Status
٠	Shipped Requisitions
	Active Contracts

Figure 6 – Reports Menu

2 ASAP Administration

This collection of functions are used to periodically set options and enter data that does not change from day to day, such as the boilerplate data for Block 23 of the DD250, permission to transmit invoice data to DFAS, adding new users, etc. The following subsections explain how to use each of the administration functions.

2.1 Administer ASAP Users

Each company uses the Administer ASAP Users function (see Figure 7) to control its own users and what group of functions they will be permitted to access. All users that are created with this function are assigned to the CAGE of the user that is logged in. Each user's identification must be unique across all VIM-ASAP users so that each user is associated with the proper CAGE when they login. If duplicate user identification is selected, the update will be stopped and a message displayed which points out the problem. The set of functions that each user is able to access is controlled by selecting the desired type of user (e.g., an "ASAP Manufacturer" can only perform manufacturing related functions). For security reasons, a user with administrative controls cannot change their own user type. All of the fields need to be completed before the user data can be updated. E-Mail addresses and phone numbers will be used to contact users if there is a need to contact someone directly.



Figure 7 – Administer ASAP Users Web Page

2.2 Administer DD250 Data

The "Administer DD250 Data" function (see Figure 8) is used to identify shipment prefixes, CAGEs of alternate ship-from sites, and boilerplate information for blocks 21a of 23 of the DD250.

These CAGEs are only a list of candidates that may do shipping. The actual shipping site is selected when the DD250 is prepared.



Figure 8 – Administer DD250 Data Web Page

This page is viewed as two separate, but related sections. The top section (see Figure 8) provides for the initial entry and subsequent editing of shipment prefixes (the first three letters of your shipment number) and the CAGEs of alternate manufacturing sites that can be responsible for shipments. RICs for bill and hold contractors are displayed as well but are not editable. Each shipping site must have its own CAGE and three-character shipment prefix.

The name and address of each manufacturer is taken from a DLIS database of CAGE code data. The data can be verified online at <u>http://www.gidm.dlis.dla.mil/bincs/begin_search.asp</u>. If necessary, corrections can be made by emailing <u>dlis-support@dlis.dla.mil</u> or calling toll-free 1-888-352-9333.

Manufacturers submitting DD250s to WAWF-RA will also need to ensure that they are registered in the Central Contractor Registry (CCR), and that their information – including an Electronic Business Point of Contact (EBPOC) – is correct and up-to-date. We always recommend that there be two EBPOCs – a primary and a (different) secondary contact. If your listing has been registered for less than a month we may not yet have it in VIM. You can look up your CAGE at <u>http://www.ccr.gov</u>.

A CAGE for an alternate "Ship From" location can be removed by checking the "Remove" button next to it. To View or Edit the boilerplate data for blocks 21 and 23 of the DD250, simply click the "View/Edit" button corresponding to the desired CAGE. The bottom half of the page then appears with fields for the DD250 data.

This bottom half of the page (see Figure 9) is used to enter boilerplate data for blocks 21a and 23 of the DD250. Each of the CAGEs identified in the top-half of the web page has its own data entry fields for each of the two blocks on the DD250, since each can have its own QAR and comments in block 23 of the DD250. The "Update Template" button needs to be clicked once the data entry is complete. If this is not done, the database is not updated and the data you have entered will disappear. The data that is updated here will appear in the appropriate block as default data whenever a DD250 is generated, but can be edited at print time if needed.

Only the Address Line 2 field and the Block 23 Comment field are optional, all other fields must be filled.



Figure 9 – Administer DD250 Data Web Page – Detail Page

- You will use this option only under certain circumstances:
 - if you're shipping from an Alternate Ship From to your own warehouse
 - if you're The DFAS transmission function on this screen is used whenever a manufacturer wants to initialize or change the authorization for VIM-ASAP to transmit an electronic version of the DD250. The default setting is "UNAUTHORIZED" whenever a new manufacturer begins using VIM-ASAP.

To change your status if you have set up a WInS account:

- Click the small circle in front of "AUTHORIZED for WINS".
- Click the "Update Detail" button after the black dot has been moved to the desired location.

Please note that the WInS system will reportedly be discontinued in the future. DCMA is encouraging vendors to use the Wide Area Work Flow – Receipt and Acceptance (WAWF-RA) system.

To change your status if you have set up a WAWF-RA account (allowing electronic approval of DD250s by your QAR/QAS):

- Click the small circle in front of "AUTHORIZED for WAWF-RA." The black dot will move to the new location and a text input box will appear to the right.
- If you receive an error, please contact <u>vim-asap@ct-dscp.com</u> for assistance.
- Click the "Update Detail" button in the middle section of the screen.

Once authorized, VIM-ASAP will automatically transmit whenever the "Finish" button is clicked at the top of a DD250 (see Section 3.3). If a user has established a WAWF-RA account, an electronic copy of the DD250s will be routed to the QAR's office first for acceptance. Once accepted, the invoice is then routed to DFAS. Destination Acceptance invoices are routed straight to DFAS, as no QAR approval is required. Each manufacturer must acquire a user name and password from DFAS before transmitting production electronic DD250s through the WINS system. This process is explained in Appendix A of this User's Manual. Information about registering for WAWF-RA may be found at https://wawf.eb.mil/, and the process for applying for a WAWF account is illustrated in Appendix B of this manual.

2.3 Administer Various Options

Each manufacturer has control over four options that alter control of what VIM-ASAP does when the system is used.

	Define How Cut Quantitie	NAL CONTRACT.	
•	Automatically increase Cut Quantity from start of new contracts/delivery orders and decrease Cut Quantity whenever shipments are made	C	Perform periodic counts and enter results in Cut Quantity tables.
	For Bill & Hold Co	ntracto	ors Only
•	Transmit all appropriate transactions via MILSTRIP/MILSTRAP to DSCP/SAMMS (DAMES will no longer be used).	C	Do not transmit all appropriate transactions via MILSTRIP/MILSTRAP to DSCP/SAMMS (DAMES is being used).
	Cut Quantity	Track	ing
C	Cut Quantity is entered for each individual site.	۰	Cut Quantity is entered for the entire enterprise (a single count of Cut Quantity for all locations).
	Contract Order Qua	intity /	Allocation
n	Order Quantity is allocated for each individual site.	e	Order Quantity is NOT allocated for each individual site.

Figure 10 – Administer Various Options Web Page

1. Each manufacturer can choose to either let the system ① automatically increase the cut quantity whenever a CLIN is started into production (see Section 3.1) and automatically decrease the cut quantity whenever a shipment is made (see Section 3.3); or ② periodically enter the data manually using the function explained in Section 2.4. The first option is preferred since it provides the manufacturer and DSCP with more timely information. The second option may be more effective for those manufacturers who have an internal production control system that permits them to download their cutting data on a regular basis.

- 2. Each Bill & Hold contractor has the option to either ① permit VIM-ASAP to create and transmit all pertinent MILSTRAP and MILSTRIP transactions when specific functions are performed; or ② continue to use DAMES to create all of the transactions. VIM-ASAP essentially replaces DAMES, so most manufacturers prefer to use the transmit option. As this function is effectively an "On/Off" switch, setting this option to "Transmit" will begin to transmit MILSTRIP/MILSTRAP transactions.
- 3. Each manufacturer who does manufacturing and shipping from various sites (see how alternate sites are identified in Section 2.1) can choose to ① keep track of their cut quantities as a single number that is aggregated from all sites; or ② keep track of each site separately and then be able to view the data by site or aggregated. If you have no alternate Ship From sites you would want to use the default option (with a single count).
- 4. This setting allows a contractor to allocate portions of one or more of their contracts to more than one subcontractor. This setting must be activated by Modulant please contact the VIM-ASAP Help Desk at (888) 940-7348 for assistance in getting this function activated. You must have the third option set to "Cut Quantity is entered for each individual site" before this function can be activated. Once Contract Allocations has been activated, all contracts must be allocated before any other DD250s can be generated.

Be sure to click the "UPDATE" button when you are finished setting your various options.

2.4 Submit Data Change Request

Upon reviewing the DD1155 data, if a manufacturer finds any discrepancies between the digital data presented in VIM-ASAP and their paper contract, or if any of the data does not appear to be correct, a Data Change Request can be submitted to DSCP (see Figure 11). If appropriate, DSCP can then either correct the electronic data or modify the paper contract at their discretion. The elements of the contract that can be changed include the Administered By code, Discount Terms, FOB Code, Pay Office DoDAAC, or Unit Pack Quantity (which would update the National Inventory Record of the particular NSN).

S	Submit Data Char	nge Request
<u>Alexandre Alexandre († 1987)</u> 1997 - Status Marine, frankrik († 1987)		
Source of Proble	m : Select an option	
	Select an option Administered By	
	Discount Terms	
	FOB Code Pay Office	
	Unit Pack Qty	

Figure 11 - Submit Data Change Request Options

An example of submitted requests and their results is illustrated in Figure 12. The request is routed to the Item Manager or Contracting Officer for review and approval or rejection. If

approved, VIM-ASAP is updated immediately on SAMMS or MOCAS contracts. Items under the BSM system require additional follow-up. The request originator will receive an Email from VIM-ASAP advising them of the status, whether accepted or rejected.

emove a	То	e you	lect the change sh to m	of	et an aption inistared By oun! Terms Code Office	Adm Dise FOB Páy	Source of				
tem from click here				ts	Pack Oly	d Data Chan	Submitte				
		Status	Request	Proposed	Current	DSCP POC	Source of Problem	PGC	Delivery CU	Contract	Date.
Remove		Status Date 00/23/2003	Request Status updated	Proposed Data	Current Data	DSCP POC	Source of Problem Discourt Terms	NVRC.	Order CLI	Contract SP010000D4022	Date Requested
Remove		Date	Status	Clota	Data	MMANNAS	Problem	NAME:	Order 150	000000000	Requested
	Edit	Date: 00/23/2003	Status updated	Dota 1% 10 Net 30	Data No Discourt	Diane Doutes	Problem Discourt Terms		Order SU 0028 AL	SP01000004822	Requested 09/23/2003
Remove	Edit	Date 00/23/2003 89/23/2003	Status updated updated	Dota 1% 10 Net 30 SASD1A-623	Data No Discourt	Diane Douse Diane Douse	Problem Discourt Terms Administered By	01887	Order SU 0028 AL	SP01000004822	Requested 09/23/2003 09/23/2003

Figure 12 - Submit Data Change Request Results

2.5 Contract Allocations

The Contract Allocation function is designed for use by companies or organizations who wish to distribute a contract's production amongst more than one manufacturing site or subcontractor. This is accomplished by entering the appropriate numbers in an Excel spreadsheet (Figure 13 below).

Contract	Allocations	Deli	elivery Or	er to allo	cate			ates edita	ound colo able CLIN ditable
	λ Image: Baseline Σ SP010001D1012	황 삶 管 🎐 遭	Total	Max	Total			T CMUM T P	
Delivery C CLIN	order: 0071 NSN	Size	Order Quantity	Order		Unallocated	DEMO1	ON1T2	9A180
and the second second		A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF	Quantity 16	Quantity 16	Quantity 16	Quantity	DEM 16	AMC	TEN
0001AA			32	32	32		16	16	a
			16	16	16		16	10	e
0004AA	8410-01-373-4425		48	48	24	24			24
0005AA	8410-01-373-4442		32	32	16	16	1		16
0006AA	8410-01-373-4449	16 junior petite	32	32	32	12	16	16	
0007AA	8410-01-373-4456	18 misses petite	32	32	32		16	16	
1	Click to say	Ve your work	Click	to allow art Produ	Order to S subcontra uction on d items	actors	CLIN t	hat you	nt of each want each o produce

Figure 13 - Contract Allocations

Contract Allocations are done by setting up the following criteria:

- 1. All Alternate Ship From Sites are defined (see Section 2.2, Figure 8)
- 2. The Contract Order Quantity Allocation is set to "Order Quantity is allocated by each individual site." (See Section 2.3, Figure 10).
- 3. Entering the number of each CLIN that each site or subcontractor is permitted to produce and for which they can invoice.
- 4. Add New Users for each site or subcontractor (see Section 2.1, Figure 7) to allow them to log in to VIM-ASAP under the Prime Contractor's CAGE code and Start Production, Prepare DD250s, and Prepare Shipment Labels for the contracts allocated to them.

The numbers entered can be saved by clicking the Update button. The sites or subcontractors to whom the numbers are being allocated cannot access them until the Release Order To Sites button has been clicked for each contract or delivery order. Once a portion of a contract has been allocated, the number can be edited later as needed, with the exception being that the number can't be reduced below the Work In Progress amount (WIP count) once those items have started in to production.

Alternate sites or subcontractors would then log in to VIM-ASAP using a login and password supplied by the Prime Contractor. They would see their portion of the contract on the Start Production screen by selecting their production site from the drop down menu (see Figure). Once they have selected their production site and the Contract/Delivery Order, they would use the functions exactly as if it were a contract awarded to them. They are permitted to ship and invoice as many items as shown in the Order Quantity field (the amount allocated to them), plus a 2% variance if applicable.

2.6 Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods

Each manufacturer can use this function (see Figure 14) to either ① keep their quantities current if they chose to manually update their quantities (see Section 2.3); or ② periodically adjust their quantities to account for quality rejection rates that cause more or less items to be satisfactorily completed. Cut quantities are those that have been started into the production process. This is an important point for DSCP as it defines quantities that should not be included in any modification plans. Finished goods quantities include only manufacturer owned items that were either built "at risk" or excess quantities that exceeded permissible variance percentage and reverted to manufacturer owned to DLA owned. The quantities are updated by entering the correct number in the appropriate data entry field and then clicking either of the update buttons.



Figure 14 – Adjust Cut Quantity and Finished Goods Counts

It is very important that the finished goods quantities NOT include any bill and hold items held in storage by the manufacturer that have been invoiced via a DD250. These quantities are accounted for by DSCP in their own inventory records from SAMMS, which were updated by the MILSTRAP transactions (D4S) generated by the creation of the DD250. Including them in the finished goods quantities would count them twice.

3 Manufacture Garments

Each manufacturer has access to the appropriate DSCP data to be able to perform manufacturing functions, from the start of production through the preparation of all invoices and shipping related documents. Electronic transmissions to the appropriate agencies are handled automatically. The following subsections explain how to use each of the manufacturing functions.

3.1 Generate DD1155

Each manufacturer can access, view, and print any DD Form 1155 "Order for Supplies or Services" that they have been issued by DSCP. This is done (see Figure 15) by selecting the desired contract and delivery order and then clicking the "Open Form DD1155" button.



Each manufacturer should use this function to compare their new orders from SAMMS to the paper contract they receive from DSCP. There can be mistakes on either source. Notify your DSCP contracting officer (see the Submit Data Change Request section for the most common errors, Figure 11) if you encounter any

discrepancies so that DSCP can either correct the electronic data or issue a paper modification. This will correct any problems well in advance of the use of the data for shipments and invoices. This will also correct the data used by DFAS to make payments for the DD250s. Getting problems corrected at the front end of the process will result in a much improved payment process.

ntract SP010096DCB69 💽	Select the Contract number and Delivery Order to view
Open Form DD1155	Click to open the DD1155 in a separate window

Figure 15 – Generate DD1155 Web Page

The "Open Form DD1155" button will cause a second browser window to be opened that provides control buttons (see Figure 16) to view each sheet of the DD1155 and to print all sheets of the DD115 if desired. Remember to remove the browser's headers and footers and set the margins to 0.25" before printing any forms (see your Browser's Menu under "File" and "Page Setup"); otherwise run the Configuration Utility found at http://info.ct-dscp.com to do this automatically. All forms created by VIM-ASAP will open in a separate browser window. To ensure that all forms print as designed, always use the "Print" button on the web page rather than the button on your browser toolbar.

Click this button to print t Click this butto	he DD250 on to view the CL	INs, NSNs, etc.		
Print Prey Next 1	artaria			Page 1 of 2
1. CONTRACT/PURCHASE OR DER NO. 2.	DELIVERY ORDER/CALL NO.	3. DATE OF OR DER/CALL	4 REQUISTION/PURCH REQUEST NO.	5. PRIORITY.
SP0100-94-D-1020	0032	(1995JUL22	SEE SCHEDULE	DO-C9
S.ISSUED BY DEFENSE SUPPLY CENTER PHILAI DIRECTORATE CLOTHING AND TE 700 ROBBINS AVENUE PHILADELPHIA PA 19111-5096		7.ADMINISTERED BY M other that	18) CODE: SP0100	B. DELIVERY FOB
CONTRACTOR CODE: 9	A180 FACILITY CODE	10. DELIVERY TO FOB POINT BY	SEE SCHEDULE	11. X IF BUSINESS IS:
Tennessee Apparel Corp. 401 North Atlantic Street		12. DISCOUNT TERMS.	SM.DISADV	
Tullahoma, TN 37388-3503		13. MAIL INVOICES TO THE ADDRI	SS IN BLOCK. SEE BLOCK 15	OWNED
14.9НІРТО	CODE	15. PAYMENT WILL BE MADE BY	CODE: SC0100	MARK ALL PACKAGES AND

Figure 16 – Controls for DD1155 Form

Each DD1155 will contain at least two sheets (see Figure 17). The first sheet is the cover page of the DD1155 that identifies the contract number, payment office, total order price, etc. The second and subsequent sheets contain a line-by-line listing of all CLINs, their NSN, size, order quantity, unit price, destination DODAAC, and required delivery date along with the Closed Date if any of the CLINs have been closed by DSCP. Any phased delivery data is not available in SAMMS and thus cannot be displayed on the DD1155.

1		ORDER FOR RM	PULL OR SETTIN			1 mar total	1257	10 Mar 1 - California - California 19 Mar - California		i.um	10.003	et tr	1.6.6					0.0
SPRINCES.	0	100(00)000)00	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH		SHREEK.	10.00	16,00	*14	then Brownsoni	ś'n	27.01	10.0	Taxa		Red.	-	Date:	92
Description of the local division of the loc	C CONTRA PRO	THE OWNER	WAA UT ANTA			Faterente	and a second		to many of matting a much spins		and an	Sh.	an ange fair	-	incide a			
NOT COMMEND A	CLOTWIC MIC 1	STILES	HOS, MARLINGH, S.Y.S. (Ser 179) Stational System Statistics T10, Sph. (Sec.)	2112		Cont					-	1	T tree fire	-	THE OWNER OF		1119-100	1110
CONTRACTOR .	184		A DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTON DESCRIPANTON DESCRIPTON			TOTAL DESCRIPTION	and date		house of sector and setting	364	Barn Inc.	. + .	the state file	Alleria.	NUMBER		destination of	e de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición de
Concession in state	aution.		A DOMESTIC AND	REMORDAL		P.ms.	100.00	A	to many inflanding and solid (-			it diation	THEN	weatert			-
Tubbana, 78 I	TTHE SHOP		THE ROUTE TWO			Datase	_			-		-				-		-
1000 10				SEE BLODC 10	-	- and -	i de la compañía de		house off whe out that		10.00	17.	States for	1 Million	provine and		1118-100	-
Mit marrier	distant.		TRAN Dreament &	2.1.		Particular permit	1016	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	broke and instead of the t	38	90.12	1	II Adap Part	0.0000	141111	. 4	11011100	
and period to			TRANS & ROPE DC 2000 First Rosal & Convenies, CPI 64	COLUMN TO STREAM		ACCOUNT OF	- meret	Print un ini	International stationary	xim	ater in	+	the state into	times.				
			1.1.1.1					NO. 81. 110 110	house all some and right -	2.69	10.0	1	10 Acres 764	Arrest.	*****		1101100	
	mereni 2		_		-		IN A A	NO.01.231-011	Committee Print and Fig.		100.00		10 maas Peer	EMER.	1001		0441100	0.0
	POAR .	the second second					and the second	A SALAL DA HA	In successful Langer and Long	1.44	and all		all Anno 1844	Later	interior.	3	creix 1 stars	
	- annals h	Contraction of the local division of the loc		A PARTY AND ADDRESS OF TAXABLE PARTY.	A 1000 A 14 17 1877	_	-		Second (all insuffic faithful insuf	1.000	and the second		II. Alas The	1.000	nini m			
-	stant?						-		and the second sec	-		-		-	-	-		
		the second second					-				an u	. 1	10 Adapt \$80		REFER		1101100	-
		712-0	puese service and	And the			100.010	A 141211-124	Antonian (188 benefits) black de ringere	11.00	10.0	. *	of this link	Same	900001.KJ	- P.,	1181.1.00	99
unter la se		- A.A.		Longerory Diver	- pialitet	Pineter .	and the	and in 198 316		(cat)	ant at	ίŦ.		time.	Annie		110100	
(mar	ent, nerie			al al	-	Annual State	sei,mi,	a anti a 126 (14)	transmitted and an interior	1000	Ada ini	4	III days file	A.MON.	90003-A		11441.080	
						1.	10.04	1 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	In successful dealing an initial large	100	Aid ar		The street Party	6.min	world	5		in a
						1 1	and a	1000 0 AN. 141	Annual and the state state	10	Dans inc	4	all man this	A large	Arrest Ka		o'tetress	
							-		Summer of states ingo and	++++	1000	-	St. Ange Part		mannie			
											-	-				-		-
1000	ANT PRI II THE	artes of Assess, FOR State	artan.	-1-1-			ter trydy	and the second second	presents in couple with adding	0.88	bet (%	1.7	18 Says Per	-	Accession	1.2	144144	10.74
	At Interaction	frad Philippert Trider			** N.W.**	PRANADLIN	00 T 10.	8 870 X1 108 118	house of make ingraphic	0.99		1	Ill Adapt Part	1.000	10000		+++	
of an arrival to the local division of the l	the is that beint				Personal	10.000	HE STA	A19-91-00-118	transmittel modul logo big	2.45	100.34	14.	it dig the	THEN	HOOH:	. 1	1111110	1000
	man C In	Search Statements (percent party	a later and a later		_		in ma		to man coll motion togo i ng	1.01	mo	. 1	1 BUTH	1 perce	MILLI		THEFT	inim
100000	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1		10.0	21			101110	10.031	1	4.00	ma		12 Adapter	9 (8000).	Accession			in it
		and some of the		State Name	a man		intia.	A Design of the last	a manifest and the state of the second second second second second second second second second second second se	1.00	Sec. or		10 days file	Barry.	neest		oret the	1.1
to prime a lagran	- 122	Ar Lanna	Coastan.				-			-	-	-						-
-	- in	Chinese Childrense	E-m		Concession in the local division in the loca	1.			house of addition of the provide	-		1	10 (See 764)	0.000	-	1 .		011
			11				00118	4 44 8 11 10 11 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	beam stated in the property.	0.181	-		10 Adapt Pilled	1.000	100001		11011100	
			Dama		1.41111110	-	10144	A MEATING IN	Accession in the Association of Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and the Association of States, and association of States, and	4.0	pop lai	1	10.111	1,000 K	ALC: N	1	(Alterna	pet.
		1.000.0000	C-max				10146	***********	transistants to confident	44	an se	.+	10.000 100	1000	144517	- 6	i electricit de la constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de	
001111-000	and a local	ACAULANT .	N.Variation	production and the			10114	att at int its		311	200.64		27 Adapa 144	6 8600,	Reservation in the	1	-	-
	101 101		Address in case in case	energy -	1		and the second	AND ALL OF ALL OF		111	anna.	4	15 Area Ter	A.MILL	Trial Lat	. 1.	-	
a transfer for a sector	A 12 11 1						1	LAN THE DEC NO	A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL							-	-	-

Figure 17 – Sample Two Sheet DD Form 1155

3.2 Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production

Each manufacturer has access to all of its active contracts from DSCP's systems. The "Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production" function is used to call-up specific contracts and to identify the quantities of each CLIN that are being started into the cutting process (see Figure 18). The function is invoked by accepting or changing the data in the "Start Production Qty" column, which always displays the remaining balance of any contract order quantity. Any manufacturer owned Finished Goods (FG) can be included prior to clicking on the "Start" button for each CLIN or the "Start Production on All CLINs" button at the top of the table. Once all items on a particular CLIN have been put into production it will disappear from the screen. If all CLINs have been put into production, the entire Delivery Order (or Contract, if there isn't a specific Delivery Order) will be removed from this queue. The Start Production queue will only display items remaining to be put into production.

This list of orders will probably need to be cleaned-up by each new manufacturer as they begin using VIM-ASAP. There can be old odd quantities that have never been recorded as received even though the manufacturer has been paid for the entire order. This cleanup will need to be done only once, because after the initialization, the system begins using the quantities started as identified by each manufacturer to control this table.



Figure 18 – Process Contracts/Orders – Start Production Web Page

The data can be cleaned-up by turning off the option to automatically count cut quantities (see Section 2.3), starting all quantities into production for those orders the manufacturer knows have been completely started into production, and then turning the automatic counting on again. This will leave the manufacturer with a queue of only open orders where quantities still need to be started into production.

Each of the columns in the table has the following definitions:

• Start: This button is used to start production on one CLIN at a time.

- **CLIN**: This list contains only CLINs that have remaining quantities on the order that have not yet been started into production. Each CLIN will be automatically removed from this list after the entire order has been started into production.
- NSN, Nomenclature, and Size: These three columns identify the specific garment being ordered.
- **RDD**: The RDD is the required delivery date for each CLIN. This is not related to any phased delivery schedule that may accompany a paper copy of the contract.
- **Qty**: This is the contract order quantity for each CLIN.
- Already Started: This is the portion of the order that was previously started. Before a manufacturer uses VIM-ASAP for the first time, the quantity is initialized to the quantity shipped as defined by SAMMS. For active orders with recent shipments, this number may be off a little due to the cycle time it takes to get the data updated. Once the system is being used on a regular basis, this number will become both accurate and timely.
- **Mfg Owned FG Qty Used**: This is a count of manufacturer owned items that were previously allocated to fill some of the quantity ordered for this CLIN.
- **Start Production Qty**: This column is automatically set to the order "Qty" less the sum of the "Already Started" and "Mfg Owned FG Qty Used". The manufacturer can change the number if the order is being filled incrementally. The "Start Production Qty" should not contain any additions to account for average quality defects. Over time, the pluses and minuses around the average should balance out. If not, each manufacturer can periodically adjust the quantities to account for any variations (see Section 2.4). The quantity entered here will be used to automatically increase the cut quantity if the manufacturer selected that option.
- **Mfg Owned Available FG Qty**: This is the count for each NSN for those items that each manufacturer entered as manufacturer owned finished goods.
- Mfg Owned Use FG Qty: This is the number entered for each CLIN of those manufacturer owned finished goods that are to be used to satisfy some or all of this order.

3.3 Print Carton Labels

The Print Carton Labels function allows a manufacturer to generate sheets of 10 container labels for an upcoming shipment prior to generating the actual DD250 for the shipment. Although you will still get container labels when you generate the DD250, this function allows a manufacturer to begin labeling their boxes as they are filled from the manufacturing line, rather than later when they are pulling the shipment together. Please note that this feature will not print the specific number of labels needed, as that information is not known prior to generating the DD250. It will generate a full sheet of 10 labels for each NSN, and the user can determine how many labels are needed by specifying the number of sheets/pages from their Windows Print dialog.



Figure 19 - Print Carton Labels

3.4 Prepare DD250s

The fist page of the "Prepare DD250s" web page can be seen in Figure 20 and Figure 21. This function provides each manufacturer with access to all of their open contracts so that DD Form 250s can be prepared in both paper and electronic form and so that container labels can be prepared for attachment to each individual container. The electronic form of the DD250s is automatically transmitted to DFAS if the manufacturer selects that option (see Section 2.2). Nearly all of the data is extracted from DSCP, DLA, DFAS, and DCMA databases. The manufacturers cannot edit any of this data, which means that there can never be an inconsistency between the contract that DSCP creates, the paper DD250 that is signed by the QAR and used as a packing slip, and the data that is transmitted to DFAS; and the data that DFAS uses to authorize payment for invoices. This consistency of data has a very positive impact on the timeliness and effectiveness of the payment process. You may occasionally find differences between your paper contract and DSCP's database data. Either of the sources may be incorrect. You will need to contact your DSCP Point of Contact (POC) to get them to either issue a mod to the paper contract or correct their database. Corrections to the database should show up on your web pages the next morning. There is an overnight process at DSCP and VIM-ASAP to incorporate changes. You can also contact the VIM-ASAP support staff using either the 800number or e-mail address. Both of these appear on the first page of the VIM-ASAP web site.

Menu	P	repare DD26	Ds		Help
Contract Delivery Order Destination Ship From	W25G1U - XU TRANSPORTATION OFFICER, NEW • 8A180 - Tennessee Apparel Corp Tulkahoma TN 3 •	Shipment # Mfg. Invoice # Shipper Mode ol	123456 United Parce	Weight: Lot No.	
	se Procedure? © No © Yes is Special Container Labels? © No @ Yes Generate DD250/Labels	Shipment Block 23 Comment	"The supp subjected tests reg accordance	entwaterersh, herge, lighter lies in this shipment have been to and have passed all examination uired by the contract were shipped e with authorized shipping instruct rm to the quality, identity, and	10

Figure 20 – Top-Half of Prepare DD250s Web Page

The web page for the DD250 can be viewed as two pieces, i.e., the top-half and the bottom-half. The top-half (see Figure 20) is used to enter the basic identification or header information, including the contract number, delivery order number, destination, and ship-from location. Each destination, when there is more than one, has its own set of CLINs because a single CLIN can only be sent to one destination. There can be as many ship-from locations as identified by each manufacturer (see Section 2.1). The header information also contains the shipment number, the final shipment indicator, the manufacturer's invoice number (which must be a unique number), the weight and lot number of the shipment, the shipper and its tracking number, the mode of shipment, the use of an alternate release procedure, and free-form text for block 23 of the DD250. The shipment number is automatically set to the next sequence number for the delivery order, but can be changed by the user to any other unique number. If this is the final shipment for the delivery order, you need to click the "Yes" option.



If you do indicate that this is the final shipment, the current delivery order will no longer appear on the "Prepare DD250s" web page, and will be deleted from SAMMS.



Figure 21 – Bottom-Half of Prepare DD250s Web Page

The option to handle large shipments is located directly above the Generate DD250/Labels button. This option reduces the amount of data required to be downloaded by printing a single page of labels for each NSN. Rather than having to download 20 pages of labels for a shipment of 200 containers, checking "Yes" for this option will allow you to download a single page of labels. You can then control how many copies of that page are printed by using the Print Dialog in Windows, or by running copies of the single page on your office copier.

Your manufacturer's invoice number *must be a unique number* across all contracts and delivery order numbers. This is a tracking number for the payment process - the system will not let you enter a number that already exists in VIM-ASAP (for your contracts). The shipper and its tracking number can be entered here or later when you are preparing the shipping documents. The final entry in the top-half is for freeform comments for block 23 of the DD250. This block is preloaded with the boilerplate created previously (see Section 2.2). The header data entry should

be completed before moving on to the bottom-half of the page because some header data selections will change the bottom-half data.

The bottom-half (see Figure 21) is used to enter the quantity being shipped and any remarks for each CLIN and to edit the number of containers and the quantity in each container. The table contains the following columns:

- **CLIN**: Only the CLINs that are going to the selected destination are in this list.
- NSN, Nomenclature, and Size : These three columns identify the specific garment.
- Order Qty: This is the contract order quantity for each CLIN. The up or down arrow buttons can be used to move from CLIN to CLIN for each of the order quantities or for each of the number of containers depending on which quantity the user decided to enter.
- Ship: The user enters the quantity being shipped at this time. This number is automatically calculated if the user enters the number of containers first.
- Shipped to Date: This is the quantity for this CLIN was shipped on previous DD250s.
- **Remarks**: Freeform comments can be added to each CLIN (e.g., 5 boxes, 162 lbs).
- No. of Containers : This number is automatically calculated after the Qty is entered. It is set to the Qty divided by the unit pack. The user can change this number and also edit the number of items in each container. The user is provided with an option to not enter the Qty and instead enter the number of containers first. This causes the Qty to be automatically calculated by multiplying the number of containers by the unit pack.
- **Quantity per Label**: The quantity per label can be edited as long as the resultant total equals the "Ship" quantity from the prior window.



NOTE: DSCP discourages deviation from the defined Unit Pack.

Click the "Generate DD250/Labels" when ready to prepare the DD250. Once you see the DD250, you can immediately return and edit the data or you may return at a later time to edit and finish the DD250.

A second window will be opened as soon as you click the "Generate DD250/Labels" button. The new window will contain two different types of documents (see Figure 22). The first is the DD250 form and any continuation sheets that may be required if there are too many CLINs for the first sheet. The second type of document includes the number of sheets that are required to display all of the bar coded container labels (Avery Label 5263 4" X 2" – 10 labels per sheet). The DD250 will appear with the word **VOID** in large red letters. The date shipped will also be missing from block 3. This is done so that it is clear that this is not yet a complete DD250. This document is frequently used as a pick list and for a review by the QAR to make sure that everything is correct before the DD250 is viewed as complete and accurate.

	and secondly independently in the second of the second	regeling di Agere di Sele e el rub quel il de servicio d - las della l'algere di Seleccio della dell della della	8315-01-503-2455 RUCKLA CACE 41705 1000 FA	8315-01-503-2455 BUCKIE CASE AJ705 LODE EA
Advert Social Residences and a	10410105	Company of the second s	M10-46/04 SP0100-02-0-CA11-0003 / 1950 1217	M10-05/04 SP0100-02-0-CA11-0003 + W000 5222*
Encode: An Up to the Up to	The second secon	()// IIII a Storman	B315-01-503-2455 BUCRLE CAGE 41765 1000 FA M10-93/04 6P0341 02-0-CA11-0002 7005 1227 -	8315-01-503-2455 BUCRIE CAGE 41/205 1000 6.4 MIG-05/20 SPDIGO 02-0-CALE-BOOR MIG-05/207 MIG-15/27
The Add Distance of the Ad		ALIE AS STORES ALIEN	8315-01-503-2455 CACE 41755 L000 LA MIG-93704 SPD356-02-0-CA11-0002 7 1925 5257	B315-01-503-2455 BUCKIE CADE KJ78E L000 EA M10-05/64 SP0100-05-64-31-U002 UUUS KU7/ 1
drain Régele (M) (M) Add 9 Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr		Harrison and Harri	8315-01-503-2455 SUCKI CAGE 47765 1000 PA MIG-05/04 SP0300-02-0-CALL-0003 MIG-1027-1	8315-01-503-2455 NUCKIE CADE A1705 1000 EA MID 05/04 MID 05/04 MID 05/04 MID 05/04 MID 05/04 MID 05/04 MID 05/04
An example.	promitica finalma anticipational de la constanta anticipation de la constanta de anticipation de anticipation de la constanta de anticipation	and tarif consideration. I not in strain lighted from lows, and its	8315-01-503-2455 CAGE 43765 1000 EA M00-05/04 SP0360-03-CA11-0003	8315-01-503-2455 BUCKIE CAGE 4)765 LUDD EA 95936-02-9-CALL-DOD 1 1006-2207

The process for completing the DD250 is explained in the next few paragraphs.

Figure 22 – Sample DD250 and Container Label Sheets

An example of the control buttons at the top of the new window can be seen in Figure 23 where the user can print all pages of the selected document, display all pages of the Form (i.e., DD250), display all pages of the labels, and "Finish" the DD250 which removes the red VOID and inserts today's date as the date shipped in Block 3. The "Finish" button also transmits the invoice to DFAS and creates the MILSTRAP transaction if those options were selected. Each of the buttons is activated by a simple click on the desired button.



Figure 23 – Control Buttons at Top of DD250 and Container Labels

The "Finish" button is the most important button on the DD250 form page. Once clicked, the DD250 can no longer be edited. If you give VIM-ASAP permission to transmit electronic DD250s to DFAS, the "Finish" button causes the invoice data to be transmitted to DFAS. If you are a bill and hold contractor and you are shipping to yourself, the "Finish" button causes a MILSTRAP transaction (D4S) to be transmitted to DSCP. The "Finish" button also date-stamps these forms and transactions.



Click the "Finish" button only when you want these things to happen. You cannot pull these things back once you have clicked the "Finish" button.

3.5 View/Edit Existing DD250s

The "View/EDIT Existing DD250s" function (see Figure 24) is used to work with any already created DD250, finished or not. Unfinished DD250s can be edited, deleted, or simply recalled and then finished. Finished DD250s can only be viewed. They are permanent and therefore cannot be edited or deleted. Existing DD250s can be viewed by selecting the desired contract and delivery order and then clicking the appropriate button for the desired DD250.



Figure 24 – View/Edit Existing DD250s Web Page

3.6 Prepare Shipment Labels

Every new DD250 is entered into queues of shipments that are organized by ship-from location and destination. The shipping labels (DD Form 1387 "Military Shipment Label") are accessed for one or more shipments (a.k.a., DD250s) by selecting the desired ship-form location and destination (see Figure 25).

Mode of Shipment		Des	tinations	HX2760 OFF	UTT AFMCSS	1077037, OFFL		and the Destination
Shipper				Mode of	Shipment			Comments
United Parcel Service			5 Surface-8	Small Package	Carrier (see (Other_Com 💌 📔		
Entor the Woight	Label	Postage	Weight	Volume	Charges	Tracking Number		A Demove a Lab
Enter the Weight, Volume, and	1		26	6		1Z123456789123456	Remove	Remove a Lab
Shipping Charges	2		32	8		1Z234567890123456	Remove	*
with the shipper's Tracking Number								per separable containe skid or palle
				Ge	nerate Labe			Click to generate the second secon
		Shi	p Cont	ract Number	Delivery O	rder Shipment No.	-	shipping labels in new windo
Labels will be prin	stod f	SI				and a second sec		new windo
Labels will be prir each DD250/ship		or	SP01	0002MSA08		AMC0001		

Figure 25 – Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page

Once the appropriate shipment is selected, the user enters data for the following:

- **Shipper**: Use the pull down list to select the appropriate shipper (if you need a shipper added to the list, send an e-mail message to VIM-ASAP to identify the shipper).
- **Mode of Shipment**: Use the pull-down list to identify the DSCP required code.
- Add Labels: A separate address label is required for each separable package (e.g., a pallet with many containers requires a single shipping label while two pallets require two labels). When the "Add Labels" button is clicked, a new row will appear for the user to enter data for each address label required. NOTE: You may have to scroll through the window to see each line.
- **Comment**: Any free form comment can be made about the shipment (e.g., pallet ID). The comment will be printed off to the right of the shipment label.
- **Postage**: The cost of the postage is only entered if the package is sent via the US Postal Service.
- Weight: Enter the weight of all containers for an individual shipment label.
- **Volume**: Enter the volume (in cubic feet) of all containers that are associated with an individual shipment label.
- **Charges**: The shipping charges are entered here.
- **Tracking Number**: The tracking number as identified by the selected shipper is entered here.

- **Ship**: The user can decide which of the DD250s are to be shipped at this time. Click the small box under the Ship column to turn on the option to ship a specific DD250.
- **Contract Number**: The contract number for the DD250 is displayed here.
- **Delivery Order**: The delivery order number for the DD250 is displayed here.
- Shipment Number: The shipment number for the DD250 is displayed here.

After you are satisfied with all of the data and options, click the "Generate Label" button to create the shipping label. A new window will be opened (see Figure 26) that provides the option to print shipping label(s) as well as a list for all orders that are part of this shipment. The shipping label will have a red **VOID** stamp on it indicating that it is not yet finished. Clicking on the "Finish" button will remove the **VOID** as well as indicate the Date Printed on the subsequent "View Existing Shipment/Container Labels" page. (NOTE: The label will no longer be editable once it has been finished.)



Figure 26 – New Window for Shipment Labels

Once you have printed your label you may close the new window. You can then see a "Refresh" button added to the original Prepare Shipping Labels page, and your choices in the drop-down menu boxes are grayed out. To see the remaining data, simply click "Refresh" and your updated items will be displayed that are still awaiting shipping labels.

A sample list is shown in Figure 27. The list identifies all of the DD250s that are part of this shipment, including total counts for all NSNs and a count for the number of containers for each DD250.

Fürm Lobel Print Prev	Container Next 1					Finish
	Te	nnessee Appara	d Corp - 9A180 -	THII - UY3146		
	TCH:	5W32182321000				
	Destination :	SW3218 DEF DIS 2680 WODEN ST RECEIVING BLD SAN DIEGO CA S	G 3304	EGO		
	Contract Number	Delivery Order	Shipment Bo.	Humber of Container(s)	HSII Quantity	
	SP01009900309	0016	TTT0001	10	350	
			Total:	10	350	

Figure 27 – List for Shipment Labels

3.7 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels

Existing shipment and container labels are kept in the database for 10 days following their initial printing. This is done so that lost or damaged documents can be reprinted. They can be recalled (see Figure 28) by first selecting the ship from location and then clicking on the "View" button for the shipment of interest. The TCN (Transportation Control Number) provides a unique identifier for each shipment, but the date of the shipment and its destination is also provided for reference purposes. The "View" button will provide access in another window for reprinting shipment and container labels as well as the list of DD250s that were shipped on the same TCN.

Shipping Lal			p from moi one locatio
Bate Printed	TCN	Shipmost Boolinations	View Labels
Edit shipping (shit)	UY224640520003/0(X	UY3046 - APPARELINFO CORF.	Kinn.
Edit elements behalt	LUV204840900003838	LIVESH - APRAPEL NED CORF.	View.
Critical and a second second	UV224548280000000	UCISARI - APPAREL NEG CORF.	Kirw.
3/22/2004 2:11:00 PM	UY32454352000130X	UV12045 - APPAREL NFO CORF.	View

Figure 28 – View Existing Shipments Labels Web Page

4 Manage Depot Operations

Each bill and hold contractor has access to DSCP data to be able to perform depot related functions from the receipt of MROs through the preparation of shipping documents as well as the electronic transmission of the appropriate transactions. The following subsections explain how to use each of the depot functions.

4.1 Review Orders and Generate MROs

Each bill and hold contractor has access to all of the MROs that have been issued to them and not yet filled from DSCP's system called SAMMS. This function is used to call-up a specific ship-to destination by DODAAC or all destinations at one time (see Figure 29). The function is operated by identifying the MROs to NOT be printed by turning off the check mark for a specific MRO in the column identified as "Print". All MROs are initially checked for printing because this is the most commonly selected option. Click the "Print MRO(s)" button when ready to print the MROs (DD Form 1348-1A).

Requisition	Deffer te DODAAC	154	Homenutatione	dice	PUB	Private	Project Code	Ons-Hand Only	order Oly	Adeico Code	Hute	-
N9028140771822	N95205	6425-11-075-0775	Impers, nerts	21 targ	000	-	2.5	279	12	ZL.		P
NECES40721954	NISOES	8405-01-078-0764	inausery, memo	40 risp.tar	889		21.5	1395	80	a.		12
199526940771058	N96265	8408-01-076-0788	Irousers, restro	42 regular	0983		20.15	370,	94	a	Note	P

Figure 29 – Review Orders and Generate MROs Web Page

The table of data for the MROs contains the following columns:

- **Requisition**: The requisition number for each MRO
- Deliver to DODAAC: The DODAAC that is to receive the shipment
- NSN: The National Stock number requested on the MRO
- **Nomenclature**: The description for the NSN
- **Size** : The size for the NSN
- **RDD**: The required delivery date for the item stated as the Julian day of the year (RDDs of 777 and 999 are used to indicate high priority MROs)

Code	Conus	Overseas	Code	Conus	Overseas	Code	Conus	Overseas
01	8 days	12 - 13 days	06	12 days	16 - 17 days	11	31 days	69 - 84 days
02	8 days	12 - 13 days	07	12 days	16 - 17 days	12	31 days	69 - 84 days
03	8 days	12 - 13 days	08	12 days	16 - 17 days	13	31 days	69 - 84 days
04	12 days	16 - 17 days	09	31 days	69 - 84 days	14	31 days	69 - 84 days
05	12 days	16 - 17 days	10	31 days	69 - 84 days	15	31 days	69 - 84 days

• **Priority**: A two digit code with the following interpretation:

- **Project Code** : A three character code that identifies the project that initiated the MRO
- **On-Hand Qty**: DSCP's count of the quantity on-hand at the depot that received the MRO after the quantity on the MRO has been subtracted
- Order Qty: The order quantity of the MRO
- Advice Code: A two character code (click on each advice code to get a full explanation)
- Note: Notes are used whenever there is an in-the-clear address for an MRO (Click on the note to see the supplemental address.)
- Print: A check mark in the box in this column means that the MRO is to be printed

A click of the "Print MRO(s)" button causes another window to be opened that contains one or more pages or MRO forms and a list of those MROs (see Figure 30). Two MROs are formatted for printing on each printable page except when there is an in-the-clear address for an MRO. In that case, the in-the-clear address is printed on the bottom half of the MRO page. The "Print" button in the upper left-hand corner of the window is used to print the form.



DO NOT use the browser print button. The "Print" button in the window will format the pages correctly and send the MRO to the shipping data queue.



Figure 30 – MRO Form Window

The list of MROs can be viewed by clicking the "List" button at the top of the window (see Figure 31). If a destination's MROs exceed a single page, you may scroll though the pages by using the "Prev" and "Next" buttons. Clicking the "Print" button when viewing any of the pages of the "List" will print every page of the list. Once this MRO has been printed the MRO will move from this queue in to the "Prepare Shipment Labels" queue. However, it can still be reprinted if needed by going to the "Print Unshipped MROs" screen.

rint	Prev Next	▶ 1 of 1			
		Travis Assn F	or The Blind 1B006 TRA SC0103		
	Destination:	957434 SAN ANTONIO LIG BASE SERVICE CEI 1865 SELFRIDGE A LACKLAND TX 782	NTER VENUE BUILDING 5160		
	Requisition Number	NSN	Nomen	Size	Quantity
	95743422060001	8405-01-476-4744	Trousers, Men's	32 regular	2
	95743422060002	8405-01-477-1167	shorts, men's	36 regular	2
	95743422060004	8415-01-476-0207	shirt, gulf	large	2
	95743422060005	8415-01-476-4949	jacket, athlete's, wa	large	1
	95743422060006	8415-01-476-5464	sweat pants	large	1

Figure 31 – MRO List Window

The MRO List window makes a great "Pick List" for the warehouse.



4.2 Process Verbal/Written Orders

There are times when material needs to be ordered immediately and the requisitioner cannot wait for the formal system to issue the requisition. In these cases, the bill and hold contractor may receive a verbal or faxed order. When this happens, the system still needs all of the required data, which means that the data must be entered into the system manually (see Figure 32). The manually entered MRO will immediately show up in the bill and hold contractor's queue of MROs (see Section 4.1) so that VIM-ASAP can be used to prepare all required documents and MILSTRIP transactions.

MS	FSC NIIN (NSN)	ИЛ	Qty	Document Number	DS	Supp- Address	SC	FC	DIS	PRJ	PRI	RDD	ADV	RIC FM	Own	n-Pur
0 💌	8405010760766	PR	24	SC010013251212		M00263	M		6	AAA	03	999			A	A
	Enter all red data in this match the o received	row to	Except Except Except	tion Data 1 : ATTN SS tion Data 2 : Material tion Data 3 : tion Data 3 : tion Data 4 : tion Data 5 :	GT G.I.	desetta -	mment	ts						Clea	y "In- r" add ation	dres
Clie	ck to save th	e ente	ered o	lata —	Upda	ite (Clear I	AII			k					

Figure 32 – Process Verbal/Written Orders Web Page

The data entry fields are organized into the same sequence as the standard form that is faxed by DSCP. Simply enter the data in the appropriate field, tab to the next field and enter that data, and then click the "Update" button after all the data has been entered. You may edit or delete the MRO data until the MRO is printed or until the data is replaced sometime in the next few days when DSCP updates SAMMS. The headings for the data fields that need to be manually entered are as follows:

Heading	Definition	Note
MS	Media Status Code	Required
FSC NIIN (NSN)	The National Stock Number has two components (4 digit Federal Stock Code + 9 digit National Item Identification Number)	Required
U/I	Unit of Issue is entered from the verbal or written order, but is then extracted for the selected NSN from the DSCP database	Automatic
Qty	The order quantity	Required

Table 1 – Process Verbal/Written Orders Data Fields

Heading	Definition	Note
Document Number	The 14 character requisition number (6 character DODAAC + 4 digit Julian Date (YDDD) + unique 4 character string)	Required
DS	Demand Suffix (N and R codes are automatically reset to blank)	Optional
Supp-Address	DODAAC for supplementary address	Optional
SC	Signal Code	Optional
FC	Fund Code	Optional
DIS	Distribution Code	Optional
PRJ	Project Code	Optional
PRI	Priority Code	Optional
RDD	Required Delivery Date	Optional
ADV	Advice Code	Optional
RIC FM	The RIC of the depot that forwarded the requisition	Optional
OWN PUR	This is two separate one character data elements entered as if it were a single field (Ownership Code and Condition Code)	Required
Condition Code	Supply Condition	Required
Exception Comments	A maximum of 20 lines (no word wrap) of free form comments	Optional

4.3 Print Unshipped MROs

Once the MRO has been reviewed and printed, it disappears from the Review Orders and Generate MROs queue. While the requisition is in the Prepare Shipment Labels queue, the MRO form itself is not available. The Print Unshipped MROs queue allows you to review or reprint those MROs during the shipping phase of the process. Once the shipping labels have been finished, the MRO would be visible in the View Existing Shipping/Container Labels queue.

4.4 Prepare Shipment Labels

Shipment labels can be generated for a collection of already printed MROs that are all going to the same destination (see Figure 33). Only MROs that have not already been shipped and were previously printed using the function "Review Orders and Generate MROs" (see Section 4.1) appear in the list of MROs for the selected destination. This function prepares the required shipping labels (DD Form 1387), the bar coded container labels, a list of requisitions and quantities as a checklist for the shipment, and any of the MROs that had their quantity changed.

Shipper		Mod	e of Shipment				Comn	nents
AAA Cooper Transportation		2 Government waterc	raft, barge, lighte	r 🗾	1			
	arge Shipmer	ts Special Contain	er Labels? 🧔	No C Yes		2.2		
	abel Postage	Weight Volume	Charges	Tracking Nur	mber	1	-	
	ា					Remo	ve	
			Add Label					
			Generate Lab	nel 🗌				
Ship	Requisition	NSN		nel No. of Containers	Advice Code	Note	Container Labels	*
Ship 17	Requisition HX2712407802	NSN	Generate Lab	No. of		Note		

Figure 33 – Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page

The data entry requirements have been organized for this user's manual into a top half and a bottom half. The top half (see Figure 34) data is for information about the entire shipment (e.g., shipper, mode of shipment, etc.). More than one address label is required when the shipment is being made in containers that can be separated (e.g., multiple pallets). Each separate container needs its own address label. Change the number of address labels from the default value of one to whatever number is required by clicking the "Add Labels" button for each label needed.

The same option for large shipments is available here as it was on the Prepare DD250s page illustrated in Section 3.3. Selecting "Yes" for Large Shipments Special Container Labels will allow you to download only one page of labels per NSN, printing as many copies as you need locally. This can greatly reduce the time needed to generate the labels and download them.



Figure 34 – Top Half of Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page

The bottom half (see Figure 35) is used to enter data about each requisition in the shipment. Each of the requisitions that is to be included with this shipment need to have a check mark inserted in

the "Ship" column by clicking that column for the appropriate requisition. The quantity to be shipped can be changed if there were not enough items for a specific requisition. When the quantity is changed, another MRO (DD From 1348-1A) can be printed to replace the previously printed MRO. The number of containers can also be changed and/or edited using the "Edit" button in the right hand column for each requisition. The "Edit" button causes a small window to be opened (see Figure 36) where the number of items in each container can be changed as long as the total quantity for the referenced requisition remains the same at the time that the "Update" button is clicked.

Ship	Requisition	NSN	Ship QTY	No. of Containers	Advice Code	Note	Container Labels	1	
1	W81NDD40260144A	W81NDD40260144A 8430-0	8430-01-325-6518	72	12	27		Edit	

Figure 35 – Bottom Half of Prepare Shipment Labels Web Page



Figure 36 – Small Window for Editing Container Information

Click the "Generate Label" button when you are satisfied with all of the data that you have entered. The "Generate Label" button causes a new window to be opened that contains the shipping label (see Figure 37), any changed MROs (button is grayed-out if no MROs were changed), the container labels (see Figure 38), and a list of all requisitions that are included in

this shipment (see Figure 39). The list is intended to be used as a checklist to make sure that every container is accounted for in the shipment. Each of the documents can be printed by clicking on the document (e.g., "Shipping" button) of interest at the top of the web page and then clicking the "Print" button at the top of the web page. Use the maroon print button, not the browser's print button. Until the "Finish" button is clicked, the shipping label (see Figure 37) will contain the large red letters **VOID** as a reminder that the shipment remains open for changes and that none of the MILSTRIP transactions have been transmitted.



A click of the "Finish" button will remove the **VOID** lettering and transmit the appropriate MILSTRIP transactions for each of the MROs in the shipment. Do not "Finish" the document unless you are ready to transmit the MILSTRIP transactions.



Figure 37 – New Window for Shipping Forms



Figure 38 – New Window for Container Forms

The container labels are formatted to match a standard 5263 Avery label (4" X 2") -10 labels per sheet.

1		L				
	Altama D	elta Corporation - 02LQ6 - SEG	- SC0104			
TCN:	FG303540839134X	xx				
Destination:	FY8956 UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA HARDMAN HALL RM 207 ATHENS GA 30602-2302					
Requisition Number	NSN	Nomen	Size	Number of Container (s)	Quantity	
FG303540839134	8430-01-198-1392	boots, combat	7 REGULAR	1	2	
FG303540839135	8430-01-198-1397	boots, combat	7-1/2 REGULAR	1	2	
			Total:	2	4	

Figure 39 – New Window for List

4.5 View Existing Shipment/Container Labels

Existing shipping and container labels can be recalled and edited or reprinted (see Figure 40) for a few days after they were originally created. This is done so that lost or damaged documents can be reprinted. Shipments can also be edited before they are finished to add or remove MROs and to change MRO quantities. Shipments that already have a "Date Printed" can only be viewed. They cannot be edited.

		Labels screen ar	nd edit this label
Theo Printed	TCH	Shipment Destinatione	U me
Coll and units failed	SCI100405784C1866	VOSGELU - VOSGELU - SUTTEXNORONT ADOUGHICHE, SEN CLAREN AND PA	Visco
Mar 24 2004 11:25AM	SEDIODADDADADADAD	SDD131 - SDD151 - TWAMS ASSOCIATION THE BLIES, AUSSIN TX	Mee
No: 24 2004 (6:25AM)	WELUERKOS21015/CKX	WEILER - WEILER - REWI ZAWETUNIKA HS, WETUNIKA AL	View
Aur 24 2024 8:25AM	W01.001402700139388	Special Sheping Instructors	View
Her 24 2004 0.244M	SCITIONORODOWNERK	SCITUBE - SCIETOR - SH CLOTHING MITALISSUE PONT (PONT HNOK KY	Mees
Asi 24 2004 (122AM	SCOLODIOB30090KKK	SCOLOF - SCOLOF - SR CLOTHING NITIAL ISSUE POINT, FORT-WORKSON SC	View

Figure 40 – View Existing Shipment/Container Labels Web Page

4.6 Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries

Follow-up inquiries are periodically sent by the organization that initiated a requisition to inquire about the status of their order. The inquiries are directed to the depot that is responsible for filling the order. If the requisition has already been shipped, VIM-ASAP automatically replies to the follow-up inquiry with that information. If the requisition is still in the depot's queue, it is displayed on this web page (see Figure 41) so that an estimated shipment date can be entered. The people responsible for MROs should review this list every day to provide an estimated shipping date that is sent back to the requestor. The most common follow-up inquires are those for high priority requisitions with an RDD of 999, which means ship it immediately. This is sent the same day that the requisition is received. If not, you need to enter an expected shipping date and then click the "Transmit" button.

Inquiry Date	Destination	Requisition	NSN	Qty	RDD	Order Date	Planed Shipping Date	
03/24/2004	W22PEQ	VV81NDD40260144A	8430-01-325-6518	72	999	02/05/2004		Transmit
							T	T
			E	nter th	ne pla	anned ship	oping date and	click Transm

Figure 41 – Review and Reply to Follow-Up Inquiries Web Page

5 Reports

Several reports are available to manufacturers, with several additional reports being available to Bill & Hold vendors. These now exist in a separate menu folder for convenience.

5.1 View Contract Shipments and Invoices

The "View Contract Shipments and Invoices" function (see Figure 7) utilizes a mixture of data from SAMMS, VIM-ASAP, and VPIS to construct a matrix for each contract of shipments and CLINs that tracks the completion status of each contract. SAMMS is used to define contract data (e.g., CLINs, NSNs, order quantities, received quantities, etc.). VIM-ASAP is used to identify shipment data (e.g., shipment numbers, date shipped, CLIN shipment quantities, etc.). VPIS is used to correlate shipment numbers with a QAR's acceptance of that shipment. DSCP Personnel must first select the contractor of interest by using the pull-down arrow to the right of the contractor will appear in the pull-down lists below the contractor's name. Manufacturers simply select the contract of interest to display its data in the lower half of the frame.



Figure 42 – View Contract Shipments and Invoices Web Page

The data is presented in the frame with all of the shipments listed down the left hand side of the table and all the CLINs listed along the top of the frame from left to right. Each column and row heading is explained in either Table 2 or Table 3.

Many of the contracts have far too many CLINs and shipments to view on one screen. The data can be easily transferred to Excel with a click of the green X at the top of the frame. Excel can be used to format the data for viewing, printing, or saving to the user's local disk for later use. This function can also be used to gain access to DD250s and to carrier tracking data. Simply click on
any row in the frame that has a shipment of interest. A click of either the "View Selected DD250" or "View Carrier Tracking" button provides access to the selected DD250 or to the carrier's web site that tracks each shipment.



Carrier data does not exist for a bill and hold contractor's shipment to itself nor does it exist if the carrier selected by the manufacturer does not provide for web based tracking of their shipments.

Column Heading	Description	Data Source
DD250 Ship No	The shipment number is extracted from each DD250 that was completed using VIM-ASAP.	VIM-ASAP
Date Shipped	The date shipped is extracted from each DD250.	VIM-ASAP
Shipped To	The shipped to DODAAC is taken from the SAMMS contract shipment destination.	SAMMS
Total Shipped	The total quantity shipped is extracted from each DD250 for all CLINs for each shipment.	VIM-ASAP
QAR Accepted	The QAR acceptance date is taken from DFAS's records from their VPIS system. This data is accessed so that manufacturers can stop faxing/mailing signed DD250s to DSCP. The existence of the QAR acceptance date in VPIS is the equivalent of seeing the signature on the paper DD250. The acceptance date is only sporadically recorded for fast pay contracts when the items are being shipped to a retail site and the inspection is done at the destination.	VPIS
Cum Total Shipped	The cumulative total shipped is a running total extracted from the DD250 for all CLINs for all shipments.	VIM-ASAP

Table 3 – View Contract Shipments and Invoices Row Headings

Row Heading	Description	Data Source
Shipped	The shipped quantity is the total for all shipments for each column (one column for all CLINs and one for each individual CLIN). This data is only complete if all shipments were made using VIM-ASAP. It is not uncommon for manufacturers to begin using VIM-ASAP after they have already completed at least one shipment for a contract. In those cases, the total shipped quantities will be inaccurate. Check the first shipment number in the list. If it starts with "0001" then VIM- ASAP has a complete record of all shipments.	VIM-ASAP
In Transit	The in transit quantity is calculated by subtracting SAMMS's received quantity from VIM-ASAP's shipped quantity. This quantity is not reliable when the manufacturer did not start using VIM-ASAP until they had already completed some shipment prior to their use of VIM-ASAP.	VIM-ASAP and SAMMS
Received	The received quantity is extracted from the contract's received quantity, which is calculated from the D4S transaction that is generated by receiving organization. There are instances where the QAR has accepted the items, but they have not been recorded as received. This happens when the D4S caused a violation or the receiving organization has not yet posted the D4S.	SAMMS
Ordered	The ordered quantity is taken from the contract's order quantity	SAMMS

Row Heading	Description	Data Source
Balance	The balance quantity is calculated by subtracting the received quantity from the ordered quantity	SAMMS
Total Pre-ASAP	Items that were shipped before using VIM-ASAP. Used in cases were you are in the middle of a contract or have just started a new contract.	VIM User

Shipment data will be kept for each contract as long as that contract is active in SAMMS. Once the data is deleted from SAMMS, you will no longer be able to utilize this function for that contract.

5.2 Track DD250 Payments

This function displays the payment status of all SAMMS-formatted VIM-ASAP DD250s (see Figure 43).

Mer	1 U			Tr	ack DD2	250 Payments					
	en de la constante de la constante La constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de la constante de					and the second sec	Nation Constant	ernes a transier Visionalista			State of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second State of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s
-	ht click the row f			Dellassociation		Invoice Amount		Date Date	D id America	Il and a second	Level of
2	576252	10/18/2004	SP010003C4025		IGI0047	\$1,320.20			\$0.00		
3	576323	10/18/2004	SP010004C4303		IGI0009	\$49,541.25	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$49,541.25	11/22/200
4	580130	11/04/2004	SP010004M4021		IGI0010	\$6,337.95	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$6,337.95	
5	580132	11/30/2004	SP010004C4243		IGI0001	\$1,476.00	\$0.00		\$0.00	\$1,476.00	01/04/200
6	580345	11/04/2004	SP010001C5056		IGI0116	\$5,900.88	\$0.00	12/02/2004	\$3,401.25	\$2,499.63	12/09/200
7.	581729	11/09/2004	SP010001C5066		IGI0094	\$7,931.16	\$0.00	12/17/2004	\$4,389.24	\$3,541.92	12/14/200
0	200770	11/17/2004	CD01000105061		ICI0041	01 021 02	60.00	10/00/00/14	se oon ee	62 167 74	01/01/000

Figure 43 - Track DD250 Payments Page

This list is primarily focused on unpaid balances. Fully paid invoices are kept in the list for 20 days or until the contractor decides they no longer would like to view them. Unpaid and partially paid invoices are kept until they are paid in full. The list is initially sorted by invoice number with the oldest at the top of the list. To view all functions allowed on this page you will have to Right Click your mouse button and perform the functions needed. (See Figure 44)

mu			Track DD2	250 Payments				Hel
And the second se	for additional fun							
Invoice Numbe			Delivery Order Shipment					
576252	annound ou	011000C4025	IG/0047	\$1,320.20	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,320,20	12/02/2004
576323	View DFA5 detail	C4303	IG10009	\$49,541.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$49,541,25	11/22/2004
580130	Display D0250	M4021	1GI0010	\$6,337.95	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$6,337.95	and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second
580132	Benove From Traden	G C4243	IGI0001	\$1,476.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,476.00	01/04/2005
680345	Inquire to DFAS	C5056	IGI0116	\$5,900.88	\$0.00 12/02/2004	\$3,401.25	\$2,499.63	12/09/2004
5B1729		C5066	IG10094	\$7,931.16	\$0.00 12/17/2004	\$4,389.24	\$3,541,92	12/14/2004
583270	Sort Ascending	C5061	IGi0041	\$9,158.40	\$0.00 12/28/2004	\$6,000.66	\$3,157.74	01/04/2005
583270 58327781	Sort Descending	C5066	IG/0095	\$16,783.56	\$0.00 12/17/2004		\$9,431.50	01/04/2005 -
583349	Export To Excel	C4025	IGI0049	\$3,876.04	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3,876.04	
20001170	11/09/0014 00	1903010000	icional	21100001	\$0.00 01/07/000E	811.010.01	60.00	

Figure 44 - Sorting the Data on the Track DD250 Payments Page

Payment data for each CLIN can be reviewed by selecting the "View DFAS Detail" function. Recent DD250s may not have a "View DFAS Detail" function available until DFAS submits details back to VIM-ASAP for that invoice. SAMMS-formatted payment data is extracted from the DFAS system called Vendor Pay Inquiry System (VPIS) currently located online at <u>http://www.dfas.mil/money/vendor/index.htm</u> VPIS will be replaced by a new system called myInvoice and may be reached by going to <u>https://myinvoice.csd.disa.mil//index.html</u>. BSM

payment data will be able to also be tracked with myInvoice is implemented. MOCAS-formatted payment data cannot be tracked at the current time due to MOCAS payments not being associated with specific Invoices and CLINs, however MOCAS-formatted data can be viewed online in VPIS or myInvoice at the addresses above. Each manufacturer can automatically contact DFAS if the VPIS data is not updated after five days by selecting the "Inquire to DFAS" button. An email will be sent to DFAS with details of the invoice in question. (see Figure 45)

4e)	nu			T	rack DD	250 Payments				He
Rin	ht click the row f	for additio	nal functions.						FEETL NEW	
1	Invoice Number			Delivery Order	Shipment	Invoice Amount	Adjust Date Paid	Paid Amount	Unpaid Amount	Inquiry Date
2)	576252	10/18/20	04 SP010003C4025		IGI0047	\$1,320.20		\$3.00		12/02/2004
1	576323	10/16/20	04 SP010004C4303	1	IGI0009	\$49,541.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$49,541.25	11/22/2004
4	580130	11/04/20	04 SP010004M4021		1610010	\$6,337.95	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$6,337.95	a franciska se se se se se se se se se se se se se
5	590132	11/30/20	04 SP010004C4243	1	IGI0001	\$1,476.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,476.00	01/04/2005
-5	580345	11/04/20	04 SP010001C5056		IGI0116	\$5,900.88	\$0.00 12/02/2004	\$3,401.25	\$2,499.63	12/09/2004
7	581729	11/09/20	04 SP01000106085		IGI0094	\$7,931.16	\$0.00 12/17/2004	\$4,389.24	\$3,541.92	12/14/2004
8	583270	11/17/	View DFAS detail		IGI0041	\$9,158.40	\$0.00 12/28/2004	\$6,000.66	\$3,157.74	01/04/2005
9	68327781	11/17/	Display DD250		IGI0095	\$16,788.56	\$0.00 12/17/2004	\$7,357.06	\$9,431.50	01/04/2005
10	583349	11/18/	Remove From Trecking		IGI0049	\$3,876.04	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3,876.04	
11	58504179	11/29/	Inquire to DFA5		IGI0042	\$14,828.34	\$0.00 01/07/2005	\$14,828.34	\$0.00	
12	585049	11/29/	- Endance co texema		IGI0003	\$6,559.06	\$0.00 01/07/2005	\$6,559.06	\$0.00	
1.	585051	11/29/	Sort Ascending		IGI0051	\$2,328.24	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2,328.24	
1.1	AAAAAAA	11.100			1.00 amilti ante	212 C Margar 1.6	the start and ship sharehold	A 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	

Figure 45 - DFAS Detail and Inquiry Section of Track DD20 Payments Page



The "Remove" function will remove that Invoice Number from the tracking window. This feature will keep paid items from displaying and make it easier to view only those items that need to be tracked.

By clicking the "View DFAS Detail" function a detailed list for the selected invoice will be generated. (see Figure 46). Whenever DFAS makes a partial payment for any of the CLINs, they create a suffix code for that CLIN and separate the invoice amounts into multiple pieces. DFAS frequently does not enter some of the data into VPIS until they make a payment. It is not uncommon for the gross invoice amount to be blank until the payment is made. Unpaid items are highlighted in a red font. Any item marked "*** paid? ***" are items that have disappeared from VPIS without displaying any record of payment. This is most common when a manual payment is made (not necessarily by check, but an electronic payment) outside the VPIS system.

Invoice Number		voice Date	Contract	Delivery	y Shipmen	t Invoice Amoun	territa i	ments	Date Paid	Paid Arnount	Unpaid Amount		mmary n selec	100 TO Day 199	ealed w buttor	
8327781	11/	17/2004	SP010001C5066		IG10095	\$16,788.5	56	\$0.00 12	2/17/2004	\$7,357.06	\$9,431.50					
CLIN	Sfx	Vouche	er EFT Trac	e	Status	Invoice Amount	Payment Amount	Discount Amount	Intrest Amount	Tax Withheld	Gross Invoice	Last Action	Date Paid	Invoice Received	Material Acceptance	L0 C
0003BA						\$9,369.36	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00					
000SBA		E02750	01 0440362035	10051	paid	\$4,149.68	\$4,149.68	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$4,149.68	12/16/2004	12/16/2004	11/17/2004	09/25/2004	
0006BA		E02810	02 0440362035	20049	paid	\$3,269.52	\$3,207.38	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3,207.38	12/17/2004	12/17/2004	11/17/2004	11/19/2004	
AF 100	A				** psid? ***		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	12/17/2004		11/18/2004	11/04/2004	

Figure 46 – DFAS Detail Web Page for a Single DD250

The list of invoices contains columns that are defined in the table below. The column marked as "Source" is used to identify the source of the data.

Name	Source	Description
Invoice Number	ASAP	This number is extracted from Block 6 of each DD250.
Invoice Date	ASAP	This date is extracted from Block 3 of each DD250.
Contract	ASAP	This is extracted from block 1 of the DD250.
Delivery Order	ASAP	This is extracted from block 1 of the DD250.
Shipment	ASAP	This is extracted from block 2 of the DD250.
Invoice Amount	ASAP	This is extracted from block 20 for the sum of all CLINs for the DD250.
Adjustments	VPIS	This is extracted from the DFAS data for discounts taken (negative number) and interest paid (positive number).
Date Paid	VPIS	This is extracted from the DFAS data for the most recent payment on any of the CLINs.
Paid Amount	VPIS	This is extracted from the DFAS data for the sum of all payments for all CLINs of the DD250 (including both partial and full payments for each CLIN).
Unpaid Balance	ASAP & VPIS	This is the difference between the Invoice Amount and the Paid Amount.
DFAS Detail		Click the appropriate button to see the detailed data for each CLIN. A blank button means that DFAS has not yet received the digital DD250 data. This is normal for a day or two. Contact the VIM-ASAP help desk if the data has not been received by DFAS after more than three working days. There may be a problem at one end or the other that needs to be corrected.

Table 4 – Track DD250 Data Fields and Sources

The detailed list of CLIN payments for the selected invoice contains the following columns (a few of the columns at the end of the list would not fit on the figure, but are defined below):

Name	Source	Description
CLIN	ASAP	This number is extracted from Block 15 of the selected DD250.
Sfx	VPIS	DFAS creates a suffix code whenever a CLIN is split into two or more payments).
Voucher	VPIS	DFAS voucher identification number
EFT Trace		Electronic fund transfer trace number (if payment was made electronically)
Check	VPIS	DFAS check number (if payment was not made electronically)
Status	VPIS	DFAS payment status (either pending or paid)
Invoice Amount	ASAP	This number is extracted from Block 20 of each CLIN.
Payment Amount	VPIS	DFAS payment record for each CLIN

 Table 5 – DFAS Detailed Invoice Data Sources

Name	Source	Description
Discount Amount	VPIS	The amount of discount taken by DFAS.
Interest Amount	VPIS	The amount of interest paid by DFAS whenever the payment is late.
Tax Withheld	VPIS	This is a DFAS number that is not explained, but can be used in the calculations.
Gross Invoice	VPIS	This is the sum of the invoice amount plus the interest amount less the discount amount and tax withheld.
Last Action	VPIS	The date of the last action taken by DFAS.
Date Paid	VPIS	The date that a CLIN is paid (blank while payment is pending).
Invoice Received	VPIS	The date that DFAS received the invoice.
Material Acceptance	VPIS	The date that the material was accepted by the ship-to destination (block 13 of the DD250). This typically comes from the date that the D4S MILSTRAP transaction was created.
Locator Code	VPIS	Defense Contract Management District (DCMD), or the Defense Plant Representative Office (DPRO), or Accounting Office(AO)
Scheduled Payment	VPIS	This is the date that DFAS has entered for the date they plan to make the payment (frequently left blank by DFAS).
Reason Code and Remarks	VPIS	These two codes work together to explain what is happening with the payment. You can download a DFAS document that explains these codes at <u>http://www.dod.mil/dfas/</u> .

5.3 Inventory Count

The inventory count report can be used to synchronize each bill and hold contractor's inventory records with those of DSCP. DSCP's records are based on adding any quantities that were accepted from a DD250 and subtracting any quantities for an MRO that was issued (issued MROs are requisitions with a status of "BA" that are assigned to the bill and hold contractor). The table of data for the inventory counts contains the following columns:

- NSN: The national stock number of each item in the list
- **Size** : A definition of the size for each NSN
- **DSCP Qty**: The DLA owned quantity on-hand in the warehouse <u>after</u> all of the issued MROs have been filled.
- **Outstanding Order Quantity**: The total quantity from MROs that have been issued to the warehouse, but have not yet had their shipping label printed. This quantity may still be in storage or it could be picked and on a pallet that does not yet have its shipping label.
- Total Qty: The sum of the DSCP Qty and the Outstanding Order Quantity
- **Full Cases**: The total quantity divided by the unit pack (the whole number only with any fraction removed).
- **Qty in Broken Cases**: The fraction that was left over from the full case count.

A drop-down menu allows you to select a specific PGC to view. All PGCs as a group or the displayed PGC can be printed by using the relevant "Print All PGCs" or "Print Selected PGC

Only" button at the top of the web page (see Figure 47). If the PGC listing exceeds a single page in length, you may scroll through the pages by clicking the "Prev" or "Next" buttons.

All PGCs	or only the current PGC	-			ct a speci		
Print All PGCs	Print Selected PGC Only	PGC/NOME	N 01659 - tr	ousers, mei	n's		
Prev Nex	1 of 1						
PGC: 01659 - 1	rousers, men's				F	age 1 of 1	
NSN	Size	DSCP Qty	OutStanding Order Qty	Total Qty	Full Cases	Qty in Broken Case	
8405-01-076-0720	28 regular	31	0	31	2	7	
8405-01-076-0724	29 regular	29	0	29	2	5	
8405-01-076-0728	30 regular	300	0	300	25	0	
8405-01-076-0729	30 long	231	12	243	20	3	
8405-01-076-0730	30 x-long	44	0	44	3	8	
8405-01-076-0732	31 regular	321	12	333	27	9	
8405-01-076-0733	31 long	388	216	604	50	4	
8405-01-076-0734	31 x-long	12	0	12	3	0	
8405-01-076-0736	32 regular	691	1	692	57	8	
8405-01-076-0737	32 long	4,482	া	4,483	373	7	
8405-01-076-0738	32 x-long	53	0	53	4	5	
8405-01-076-0740	33 regular	496	0	496	41	4	
8405-01-076-0741	33 long	5,807	0	5,807	483	11	
8405-01-076-0742	33 x-long	459	0	459	38	3	
8405-01-076-0744	34 regular	662	0	662	55	2	
8405-01-076-0745	34 long	6,054	2	6,056	504	8	
8405-01-076-0746	34 x-long	828	0	828	- 9	0	
8405-01-076-0748	35 regular	362	া 👔	363	30	3	
					N N		
		// ojected balance a ing current orders		Current orders	any with n	ory before existing o umber of pen case	ordei cas

Figure 47 – Inventory Count Printing Page

5.4 Requisition Shipment Tracking

This report provides access to the shipment status of requisitions that have been shipped during the last month or two. The status stays available for inquiry for one month after the requisition has been received and is closed out of DSCP's database. The inquiry is done by entering the requisition number and any suffix code (see Figure 48) in the fields provided at the top of the web page. A click of the "View" button will display the data that is known about requested requisition in a data table beneath it.



Figure 48 – Requisition Status Page

If you entered a Tracking Number when you selected the Shipper and Mode of Shipment in the Prepare Shipment Labels window, it will be displayed as a hyperlink. Clicking this Ink will open a new browser window and load the shipper's tracking detail page for that particular shipment (if the shipper has that feature online).

5.5 Shipped Requisitions

This report provides a listing of all requisitions shipped within a specified time frame (see Figure 49). Once the desired Start Date and End Date have been filled in, clicking the "View" button will launch an Excel object showing all MRO data completed within that time frame. The window can be resized by clicking-dragging the lower right corner, and can be exported to a separate Excel spreadsheet on your local computer by clicking the green Excel "X" icon beneath the title bar.

	kcel file, cli X" icon	a to your ick the ar 26 15:23:33 2004	End I	Datu 3/25/2004 MM/DD/YYY		View	v button to	l click the b load the readsheet
2 🕫 🤤	範疇工		3 0		- <i>112</i>	1 22 24		
A	В	E	0	E	0F	G	H I	1
		Tracking Number		Requisition Number		NSN OVOT OL ATTA ADDA		ShipToDodaac
FedEx0		107636061022617	N4205A40560087XXX N4205A40560087XXX	N4205A40560087 N4205A40560088		8405-01-151-1891	10	N4205A N4205A
FedExG		107636061022617				8405-01-151-1895	10	N4205A
FedExG	3/1/2004	107536061022617	N4205A40560087XXX N6626640565354XXX	N4205A40560089 N6626540566364		8405-01-151-1902 8405-01-151-1918	160	N66265
FedExG		107636061022624	N6626540565354XXX	N6626540565363		8405-01-151-1918	180	N66265
FadErG	a second public data data ber	107636061022624	N6E26540565354XXX	N6626540565368		8405-01-151-1927	30	N66265
Facture		107536061022624	N95729405602382XX	N9673940660236		6405-01-151-1930 8405-01-151-1878		196200
FadErG		107636061022723	N9573940560236XXX	N9673940560239		6405-01-151-1620 8405-01-151-1891	3	N96739
FadExG		107636061022723	M9573940960236AAA	N9673940560240		8405-01-151-1918	5. - 3	N96739
Federa	And the second second	107636061022730	SC010840570570000	SCI11084057057D		8405-01-151-1900	60	SC0108
FedErG		107636061022738	SC01084057057DXXX	3001084057058D		8405-01-151-1904	80	SCOTOS
FedErG		107836061022738	SC01084057057DXXX	SC01084057061D		8405-01-151-1918	30	SC0108
A FedExG		107636061022786	HX26734056817RXXX	HX26734056817R		8405-01-341-9998	7	H/2673
FedE:0		107636061022786	H026734056817RXX	HX26734056622R		8405-01-342-0003	t	HX2573
FedExG	and the second se	107536061022795	H/26734055817.RXX	H026734056833R		8405-01-342-0014	6	HX2673
7 FedExG		107636061022792	H034174055823RXXX	H0G4174055823R		8405-01-342-0004	4	H23417
9 FedExG		107535051022808	W64HW740441010AXX	W64HWT40441010		8405-01-341-9969	3	WEAHWAT
9 FedExG		107636061022808	W64HW74044101DAXX	W64HWT40441012		8405-01-341-9997	4	W64HWT
FadErG		107838061022606	W64HWT40441010AXX	W64HW/T40441018		8405-01-342-0000	4	W64HWT
FatErG		and a second second second	SC01004057Q357XXX	SC010040570367		8405-01-341-9991	150	SC0139
FedErG	a long to see of the		SC01004057Q357XXX	SC010040570358		8405-01-342-0001	210	SC0139
FadErG		6	SC01094057Q357XXX	SC010040570359		8405-01-342-0013	49	SC0139
4 FedEaG	3/2/2004	107636061022822	NDI541 A40580044XXX	NEE41 A405E0044		8405-01-151-1892	Э	M3541A
5 FedErG	3/2/2004	107535051022839	N9707840570082XXX	N9707840570082	-	8405-01-151-1931	2	N9707B
6 FedExG	3/2/2004	107638061022846	SC010040580ABK00X	SC010040680ABK		8405-01-151-1916	20	SCD182
7 FedErG	3/2/2004	107636061022853	HX31203956843RXXX	HX31203356843R		8405-01-478-1177	-2	HX3120
B FedExG	3/2/2004	107636061022853	HX31203356843RXXX	HX31204040843R		8405-01-478-1177	1	HX3120
9 FedEx0	3/2/2004	107636061022853	HV31203956843RXXX	H031204056843R		8405-01-478-1177	1	HX3120
1 ENEVE	a seconda	1076300C1003000	CONTRACTOR & DEVEN	CONTROLINGO ADD		0405 01 343 0030	001	COMO:

Figure 49 – Shipped Requisitions Page

This report is designed to simplify the Bill & Hold manufacturer's reconciliation of shipping charges. Once the data for the desired time period has been downloaded and shipping invoices have been received (i.e., weekly UPS statements, FedEx invoices, etc.), the charges for each shipment may be entered on each line. All other required information should already be listed from the original data.

5.6 Active Contracts

The Active Contracts function is another Excel object that allows a manufacturer to view all open contracts, delivery orders and CLINs. (See Figure 50) As with the Shipped Requisitions page, clicking on the green Excel "X" will download the data in to a local copy of Excel on the user's computer. The data can be imported into a manufacturer's own enterprise system by saving the downloaded Excel file in whatever format (Comma-Separated Values or CSV, Text, etc.) necessary.

		el " X " ico		w w								
				7	-							
	ve Contracts Rep											
ł.	• 美丽尼	1	and the set	Contract of the local division of the local	2	Ve.	e i			100		
	Contract	E DeliveryOrder	C.	D Own	E	d	Delivery Date Project		RequisitionSellix Sh	T-D-DAAC I	the state of the	E
	SPUILCOOMCE29		008144			BOUCOATSEAAAA		SC010001581.202		0100	ISOCUSE PE	-
	SPO10000MSE ID		CODB3A4	1	PR	TRE 437 A1186	11/11/2000	FY045302550006		(D451)		
-	SPO10080MSE10		DOBBAA	i i	PR	TR5 437 A1183	11/11/2000	FV045302580003		D453		
	SP010002C4001		D007BA	10224	6R	8415012201346	DI/02/0002	1.1040046300040		12GET		
	SP010004C4193		000144			8419014701944	06/19/2004			2GTU		
	3P01000404193		CUUZAA	Contract seasons		8415014701949	05/19/2004			25010		
-	SP010004C4193		DUUJAA			8415014701952	05/19/2004			25611		
	SP010084C4193		D004AA			8415014701953	06/19/2004			25G1U		
B	SP010084C4191		0005AA	18000	EA	8415014701954	06/19/2004		142	25GU		
ľ	SP01000404193		DODGAA	18000	EA	B419314792818	05/19/2004		(40	25GUU		
	SF010004C4191		0007AA	24000	EA	8415014702828	06/19/2004		WZ	25610		
	SP010084C4193		0003AA	6000	EA	8415014703633	05/19/2004		900	25GHU		
	SP010004C4193		0689AA	2400	EA .	84/15014703841	06/19/2004		92	25GtU		
	SP010004C4193		D0104A	4000		9419014702844	05/19/2004		942	25G1U		
	SP01000400325	1000	0801A4	- 30		8405015105434	06/25/2004		16	25691		
	SP01008400326	0001	0002AA	- 30		B405015105432	06739/2004			25640		
	SP010084D0326	0001	0003AA	60		8406015185430	67/29/2004			25G1U		
	SPG10094D0326	1000	0004AA	- 30		B409015105441	06/29/2084			25GTU		
	3P01000400326.		000544	- 60		0406015105442				25610		
	SP010004D0526		0805AA	- 30		8405015105444	06/09/2004			25GH)		
	SP010D84D0326		D007AA	60		8405015105448	07/29/2004			25G1U		
	SP010004D0326		0009AA	30		8409015106449	06/29/2004			25G1U		
	BP010004D0326		DE09AA	210		(\$4060)15105449	06/09/004			25(3:11)		
	SP010004D0528		0010AA	90		8406015106451	08/28/2004			25G1U		
	SP010084D0326		0011AA	30		8406015186466	06/29/2004			25G) U		
	SP010064D0326		D012AA	120		B406015105458	06/28/0004			25G1U		
	SP010004D0326		001344	- 50		8409015105459				25610		
		10001	DILLAA	30		8405015105800	06/29/2004			25010		
		0001	0015AA	240		8406015185461	08/08/2004			25640 25640		
	SP01008400328 9P01008400326	(TO (1) + b	0016AA 0017AA	141		B406015186463 B406015185471	07/09/2004			25GRU		
11.	SP01000400326		DUISAA	50		8405015105471	08/28/2004			25610		
		0001	0018AA	60		8405015105474	07/09/004			25610 25610		
	SP010004D0326		00130AA	30		8405015105467	06/29/2004			25Giu		-
	9P010004D0529		082144	120		8409015105488	08/28/2004			25010		
	SP01000400325		DOZDAA	120		8405015105499	08/28/2004			25610		
		0001	AAE200	30		8405016185501	06/29/2004			25610		
	SP010084D0326		0024AA	60		8406015185507	07/29/2004			25610		=
		0001	D0254A	30		8409015105511	06/29/2004			25610		
-		0001	D0354A	120		8406015105576	08/28/2004			25610		
- L	SP010004D0326		0027AA	90		8406015105577	08/38/2004			25610		
	SP010084D0026		003844	30		8406015105578	06/29/2004			25610		
		0001	D02944	60		8409016189579	07/29/2004			SGU		
	BP010004D032E		D0304A	60		840601518560	07/29/2004			25610		

Figure 50 – Active Contracts Page

Since this report lists all active contracts, there is no selection or specifying of dates required.

Appendix A. Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA

A-1. Self Registration for WAWF-RA

To Self-Register for Wide Area Work Flow, go to <u>http://wawf.eb.mil</u> and follow the steps illustrated below. If you have any questions during the process, please call the WAWF Help Desk toll-free at (866) 618-5988. The phone number will always appear in the left-hand frame of their website.

Please note that the information filled in on these screenshots are for illustrative purposes only – please enter your own contact information as appropriate.



DISN 366-7095

FAX DSN 386-7453

FAX COMMERCIAL 801-605-7



Continue Return



NOTE: You would normally select "Group Administrator" (GAM) on the screen above. However, most users have gotten errors using this setting. Alternately, you should register as a Vendor and then call the WAWF Help Desk and ask them to change the account to a GAM.



🕁 Back 🔹 🤿 🕘 🙆 🙆	Search 💽 Fa	avorites	🕅 Media 🎯 🚯	- 3 0	• 🗏 💥 👷 🛛 A	ddress) https://w	/awf.eb.mil/	*
			- U		Areo W	ork	floy		1.38
Wide Area Workflo			٧	/AWF	- Self Regis	strat	ion		
ome				* ind	icates mandator	y field			
ustomer Support					Profile Informatic	n			
vrea Command Ogden Customer Service Center CONUS ONLY 1-866-618-59	First Name	Last Name	Commercial Phone	DSN Phone	Email	Rank	Title	Job Description	Action
ONDS ONLY 1-668-618-59 OMMERCIAL 801-605-705 SN: 388-7095 AX COMMERCIAL 801-60 AX DSN: 388-7453	Joe	Doe	(888) 123-4567		jdoe@company.com	n CIV	(Your Job Title)	DD250 Submission to WAWF-RA	Ł
scassig@ogden.disa.mil					Userid				Action
About WAWF - RA					jdoe1234				Ł
What's New					Role Information	n			
curity & Privacy		Role	Gri	oup	Code		E	xtension	Action
arning and Disclaimers	N	/endor	9A	180	9A180				i S
ctive DoDAACs and Role									
NAWE-RA 2.00 AICHIVE		EMENT	OF ACCOUNTAB	II ITY *					
					sword/certificate. I ass	sume th	ie respons	ibility for the data and	ł
	system I	am grant	ed access to the		od my authorized ac		e Help		

A-2. Registration for Electronic Transmission of DD250s Using WAWF-RA

At this point you have completed the WAWF Self-Registration process. As soon as you receive a notification from WAWF that your account is active (along with a one-time password to access the account), please notify <u>vim-asap@ct-dscp.com</u> so that a sub-user account can be created.

You will be required to log into WAWF once again to activate the new sub-user so that VIM-ASAP can transmit your data for you. Once this has been accomplished, you may select "Authorized for WAWF-RA" on the Administer DD250 Data page of VIM-ASAP. From that point on, any DD250 that you finish in VIM-ASAP will be transmitted to your DCMA office.

Appendix D

VIM-ASAP Overview

VIM-ASAP

(Virtual Item Manager -ARN Supply-chain Automated Processing)

VIM-ASAP v2.1 Capabilities Overview

Prepared for:

Apparel Research Network Program Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) and Defense Supply Center Philadelphia (DSCP)



Prepared by:

P.D.I.T. Product Data Integration Technologies, Inc. 100 W. Broadway Avenue, Suite 540 Long Beach, California 90802 (562) 495-6500 (562) 495-6509 Fax info@pdit.com http://www.pdit.com

July 21, 2003

Overview of System Capabilities and Advantages

VIM-ASAP is being sponsored by the DLA Apparel Research Network program and DSCP. The system has been designed as part of a total supply chain management system to provide support for DSCP Clothing and Textile contractors who manufacture items and/or handle the distribution as bill and hold contractors (see Figure 1).



Figure 1: Role of VIM-ASAP in DSCP Supply Chain Management

The manufacturer's functions of the system support the following:

- Acceptance and handling of electronic contracts (DD Form 1155)
- Preparation and printing of all shipping documents, i.e., Packing Slip (DD Form 250), Shipment Labels (DD Form 1387), and Bar Coded Container Labels
- Transmission of electronic invoices (DD Form 250) to DFAS and to DCMA's QARs via WAWF-RA
- Monitoring DFAS payments for each invoice and each CLIN

The warehouse functions of the system support the following:

- Acceptance and handling of incoming shipments (MRO DD Form 1348-1A)
- Acceptance and handling of incoming electronic requisitions and the printing of MROs (DD Form 1348-1A), bar coded container labels, and Shipment Labels (DD Form 1387)

- Acceptance and handling of incoming MRO related orders and inquiries
- Automatic preparation and transmission of all required MILSTRIP and MILSTRAP transactions that eliminates the requirement to use DAMES

VIM-ASAP is an Internet based system where all the data is managed and maintained on a DLA server and database that is dedicated to this purpose. Manufacturers and warehouses access their specific subset of data from their own sites using a local Internet Service Provider and browser. Nearly all of the data is automatically extracted from a variety of DLA, DFAS, and DCMA systems that are used by DSCP to manage contracts, requisitions, inventories, invoices, and other supply chain related data. The only other data in the system is the small amount of data that is entered by individual users, e.g., the quantity shipped for a specific CLIN. DSCP data is updated each night after all of the previous day's actions have been recorded. The updated data is available each morning normally around 3:00 AM (East Coast Time), although there are periodic problems that can delay the updates. Even when there are problems, the prior day's data is available until the update is completed.

VIM-ASAP has been designed so that all communications and data formatting is done by the system automatically. The user does not need to be aware of any data formats or the transmission protocols. This can be seen when the system formats and transmits the appropriate MILSTRIPs and MILSTRAPs whenever an action takes place. For example, when a bill and hold contractor finishes a DD250 for a shipment to themselves, two things happen in the background. The first is the fully automatic formatting and transmission of the DD Form 250 data to a DFAS system called WInS (Web Invoicing System). Additionally, if the user has established an account with Wide Area WorkFlow-Receipt and Acceptance (WAWF-RA), an electronic DD Form 250 is automatically formatted and transmitted to the DCMA office of the user's Quality Assurance Representative (QAR) using the WAWF-RA system. The second thing that happens is the fully automatic formatting and transmission of the MILSTRAP transaction known as a D4S that informs the DLA systems of the receipt of the items identified on the DD Form 250.

The power of the VIM-ASAP system is based on the consistency of all documents and transmissions that are extracted from the single source of data from DLA's systems, e.g., the contract data in SAMMS is used to prepare both the paper DD Form 250 and the transmission of the invoice to DFAS. There can be no data mismatch, and thus no payment-delaying correction cycle. The only problem with this single source of information can be seen when the source data is incorrect. When this happens, personnel from each manufacturer or warehouse will need to contact the people they deal with at DSCP to correct the data problem. VIM-ASAP also provides an 800-number and e-mail address that can be used to get problems resolved. This may periodically cause a delay at the start of an activity, but the advantage is that the problems are corrected before more serious problems occur, such as shipments going to the wrong location or delays in payments because of some mismatch in data between the invoice and DFAS's records.

VIM-ASAP supports two classes of users and each has their own, but overlapping series of functions that they can perform. A summary of the functions that each class of users can perform is identified in the following sections. Detailed explanations of how to perform each function can be found in the users manual.

Do not miss Section 4 "User Notices – Important"

1 Manufacturers

The primary manufacturer's functions (see Figure 1-1) include the receipt and review of new contracts, the recording of the planned start of cutting, the preparation of the required shipping documents and invoices, and the monitoring of the payment process. The specific manufacturing capabilities of VIM-ASAP are as follows:



Figure 2-1: Manufacturer's Primary Functions

- 1. Contracts and delivery orders can be received electronically as a DD Form 1155 "Order for Supplies or Services" as well as a queue of CLINs that can be individually started into production as an entire or partial CLIN order quantity. The contract data is updated every night from the prior day's releases by DSCP. The data can also be downloaded for use in each manufacturer's internal accounting and/or production control systems. Any differences detected between the paper contract and the DD Form 1155 can be automatically submitted to the appropriate Item Manager/Buyer at DSCP for evaluation and correction if appropriate. Any corrections would be available in VIM-ASAP immediately upon approval by DSCP and then updated in SAMMS.
- 2. The system provides a list of CLINs for unfinished orders so that the start of cutting can be recorded for each contract and CLIN. This information can be used by manufacturers to track the status of their orders as well as by DSCP for a variety of purposes, including helping with the evaluation of the impact of a change to the schedule or order quantity. Both DSCP and the manufacturer can monitor the progress of the contract on the "View Contract Shipments and Invoices" screen.
- 3. When it is time to ship an order, the system can prepare all of the required shipping documents and labels. A shipment is a collection of containers (e.g., boxes) from one or more DD Form 250s. Each container requires a bar coded stick-on label that shows the NSN, quantity, and contract identification. The collection of containers on an individual pallet or inside a larger container requires a "Military Shipment Label" (DD Form 1387). The shipment contains one or more packing slips that identify all of the items being shipped. The packing slip is also the invoice in the form of a Material Inspection and Receiving Report (DD Form 250). The system is capable of formatting and printing all of these documents on 8½x11 sheets of standard Avery labels in accordance with the current MIL-STD-129, and then formatting and transmitting the invoice data to DFAS for payment. If the

manufacturer and their QAR are signed up with a WAWF-RA account, an electronic copy of the invoice is also automatically submitted to WAWF-RA for the QAR's approval. The invoice data can also be downloaded for use in each manufacturer's internal accounting and/or production control systems.

- 4. The system can track payment status by combining the submitted invoice data with payment data that is extracted each morning from the DFAS payment system. The tracking can be done at the invoice level as well as at the CLIN level. Data can be sorted and displayed in multiple orders. An inquiry can be automatically submitted to DFAS by the vendor for any Invoice that does not appear in VPIS within a few days of submittal or for any Invoice that has an unpaid amount after 30 days.
- 5. Additional management data can be analyzed by either the manufacturer or by DSCP utilizing a "View Contract Shipments and Invoices" function.

2 Manufacturers with Warehousing Responsibilities

Manufacturers with warehousing responsibilities are called Bill and Hold contractors. Their manufacturing capabilities (see Figure 2-1) are nearly identical to those of the manufacturers identified in Section 1 of this document. The only difference between the two can be seen in function 3 where a MILSTRAP transaction "D4S" is automatically sent to SAMMS at DSCP whenever the manufacturer is shipping to themselves. The "D4S" informs SAMMS that the shipment has been received at the warehouse. It is sent automatically because the shipment never really goes anywhere. The shipment is kept by the manufacturer, who also manages the warehouse until the bill and hold contractor is told to ship some or all of the items to a specific location.



Figure 2-1: Bill and Hold Contractor's Primary Manufacturing Functions

In addition to their manufacturing activities, the bill and hold contractor has warehousing responsibilities for responding to orders and inquiries (see Figure 2-2). The specific warehousing capabilities of VIM-ASAP are as follows:



Figure 2-2: Bill and Hold Contractor's Primary Warehousing Functions

- 1. Orders and inquiries can be viewed and acted upon by the bill and hold contractor. Orders come in the form of an MRO to ship a quantity of a specific NSN to a particular location. Inquiries take many forms, but are primarily follow-up inquiries from the organization that created the original requisition. When acted upon, both orders and inquiries need to have a MILSTRIP transaction created to inform DSCP of the actions taken. VIM-ASAP is capable of formatting and transmitting these transactions automatically. When an order is being filled, the system can also prepare and print all of the required shipment documents, including a Material Release Order (DD Form 1348-1A), a Military Shipment Label (DD Form 1387), and whatever numbers of container labels are required for each individual container. These labels are formatted to fit on standard sheets of Avery labels, which can be used in any typical office printer. The data can also be downloaded for use in each manufacturer's internal accounting and/or production control systems. Additionally, data on all MROs processed through VIM-ASAP can be viewed or downloaded in Excel format to simplify monthly or quarterly transportation charges reconciliation.
- 2. Bill and hold contractors never receive shipments from other depots or manufacturers. They only receive manufacturing shipments from themselves. The MILSTRAP D4S has already been transmitted (upon generation of the DD 250). The data can be downloaded for use in each manufacturer's internal accounting and/or production control systems.

3 System Requirements

The following equipment and software is required to use VIM-ASAP:

- **Computer**: The computer requirements are a function of operating system and the version of the browser that is being used although the operating system must be MS Windows based. Microsoft provides minimum configuration information for their latest browser (IE 6.0) at http://www.microsoft.com/windows/ie/evaluation/sysreqs/default.asp. A general comment is that if the browser you selected runs on your computer, then VIM-ASAP will also run.
- **Internet Connection**: Any type of Internet connection will work although faster is always better. Phone modems at 64k bps will work fine in nearly all circumstances. Delays should only be noticeable when large numbers of shipping labels or container labels are required.
- **Printer**: Nearly any brand of printer can be used as long as it is either an ink jet or laser printer.
- **Software**: You will need to install Microsoft's Internet Explorer 6.0 and set the security level to no higher than "Medium". Users who prefer higher security settings are advised to add <u>http://vim.ct-dscp.com</u> to their list of "Trusted Sites," with security settings for the Trusted Zone set in accordance with the Lessons Learned notes on <u>http://info.ct-dscp.com</u>. Some versions of the browser do not contain all the needed additional software. If your version does not have everything that is needed, the system will automatically detect this and initiate a download of the required components. You will be asked to give permission for the download. Simply approve the download and everything that needs to be done will be done automatically. This will only happen the first time a missing component is discovered. Once downloaded, the component is permanently installed.

The two most common causes of slow VIM-ASAP performance are the speed of your modem and the amount of RAM you have on your computer. Adding additional RAM can typically be done for less than fifty dollars, and significantly improves performance. There are dozens of ways to improve communications speed. Your local Internet Service Provider or cable company can review what they have to offer. Satellite communications are also available in rural areas that do not have many other options. Each of the satellite companies can tell you about their services.

Item	Problem	Solution
1	There are problems with invoices for subsequent shipments after earlier shipments were within 2% of order quantity DFAS frequently close contracts whenever the received quantity gets within 2% of the order quantity. This also causes DSCP's contract data to be removed from their system (i.e., SAMMS). When this happens, VIM-ASAP can no longer be used to create DD250s for the last 2% of the order. Bypassing VIM-ASAP and sending a paper DD250 is not a solution to this problem. DFAS will not pay the invoice because they no longer have a record of the contract.	DSCP has stated that the only way to resolve this problem is for the manufacturer to contact their DSCP contracting officer to get the contract reinstated. Once this is done, VIM-ASAP and DFAS will have the data required to create and pay the DD250. DSCP is beginning to modify the method they use to code variances so that shipments within the variance percentage, but under the order quantity stay active in DFAS.

4 User Notices - Important

Appendix E

MIL Transactions Usage Rules

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
Releas	se/Redistribution Orders	, Modifications, and Cancellations	
A21	Redistribution Order (RDO) for overseas shipment	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot. The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) has a RIC Overseas shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) has a POE in the DODAAC table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	 A61 – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested
A25	Redistribution Order (RDO) for overseas shipment with exception data	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot. The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) has a RIC Overseas shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) has a POE in the DODAAC table There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOCC_NR of the ARCS1 table Whenever the MEDIA_STAT_CD in the ARCS1 table has any of the following codes: 2, 3, 4, 5, J, K, L, M, N, P, Q, or Z Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	A65 – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested
A2A	Redistribution Order (RDO) for domestic shipment	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) has a RIC Domestic shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) does not have a POE in the DODAAC table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	A6A – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
A2E	Redistribution Order (RDO) for domestic shipment with exception data	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) has a RIC Whenever the MEDIA_STAT_CD in the ARCS1 table has any of the following codes: 2, 3, 4, 5, J, K, L, M, N, P, Q, or Z There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOC_NR of the ARCS1 table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	 A6E – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested
A51	Material Release Order for overseas shipment	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot. The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) does not have a RIC Overseas shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) has a POE in the DODAAC table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	A61 – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested
A5A	Material Release Order (MRO) for domestic shipment	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) does not have a RIC Domestic shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) does not have a POE in the DODAAC table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	 A6A – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
A5E	Material Release Order with exception data	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) does not have a RIC Whenever the MEDIA_STAT_CD in the ARCS1 table has any of the following codes: 2, 3, 4, 5, J, K, L, M, N, P, Q, or Z There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOC_NR of the ARCS1 table Domestic shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) does not have a POE in the DODAAC table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	A6E – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested
A55	Material Release Order for Overseas shipment with exception data	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) does not have a RIC Whenever the MEDIA_STAT_CD in the ARCS1 table has any of the following codes: 2, 3, 4, 5, J, K, L, M, N, P, Q, or Z There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOC_NR of the ARCS1 table Overseas shipments are those where the DODAAC of the DOC_NR (or DODAAC of the SUPP_ADDR when SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M) has a POE in the DODAAC table Denials are sent when quantity set to zero by depot personnel 	 A65 – Material Release Denial AR0 – Material Release Confirmation ARA – Material Release Confirmation for quantity greater than requested ARB – Material Release Confirmation for quantity less than requested
AC6	Cancellation (can be for MRO or RDO) from ICP to Storage	 The RIC of ARCS3 is the depot of interest The CANC_RQSTR_CD of the ARCS2 table is non-blank whenever a change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The cancelled order has not been shipped The AG6 reply is sent automatically if the cancellation was received prior to the order being shipped 	AG6 – Reply to cancellation request

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
AC6	Cancellation (can be for MRO or RDO) from ICP to Storage	 The RIC of ARCS3 is the depot of interest The CANC_RQSTR_CD of the ARCS2 table is non-blank whenever a change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The cancelled order already been shipped (either exact, less than, or greater than originally ordered quantity) 	 AU0 – Reply to Cancellation Request Material Release Confirmation for release of material the same as requested AUA – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material greater than requested AUB – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material greater than requested
AC7	Cancellation (Mass Cancellation - can be for MRO or RDO) from ICP to Storage	 The RIC of ARCS3 is the depot of interest The CANC_RQSTR_CD of the ARCS2 table is non-blank whenever a change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The cancelled order has not been shipped The AG6 reply is sent automatically if the cancellation was received prior to the order being shipped 	AG6 – Reply to cancellation request
AC7	Cancellation (Mass Cancellation - can be for MRO or RDO) from ICP to Storage	 The RIC of ARCS3 is the depot of interest The CANC_RQSTR_CD of the ARCS2 table is non-blank whenever a change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The cancelled order already been shipped (either exact, less than, or greater than originally ordered quantity) 	 AU0 – Reply to Cancellation Request Material Release Confirmation for release of material the same as requested AUA – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material greater than requested AUB – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material greater than requested

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
AM1	Document Modifier for overseas shipment	 A change has occurred if the AavsStatusDate of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was an overseas MRO or RDO The DOC_NR has not yet been shipped 	AR9 – MRO confirmation reply to MRO Modifier
AM1	Document Modifier for overseas shipment	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was an overseas MRO or RDO The DOC_NR has already been shipped 	A61 – Material Release Denial if items already shipped
AM5	Document Modifier for Overseas shipment with exception data	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was an overseas MRO or RDO There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOC_NR of the ARCS1 table The DOC_NR has not yet been shipped 	AR9 – MRO confirmation reply to MRO Modifier
AM5	Document Modifier for Overseas shipment with exception data	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was an overseas MRO or RDO There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOC_NR of the ARCS1 table The DOC_NR has already been shipped 	A61 – Material Release Denial if items already shipped
AMA	Document Modifier for domestic shipment	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was a domestic MRO or RDO The DOC_NR has not yet been shipped 	AR9 – MRO confirmation reply to MRO Modifier
AMA	Document Modifier for domestic shipment	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was a domestic MRO or RDO The DOC_NR has already been shipped 	A61 – Material Release Denial if items already shipped

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
AME	Document Modifier with exception data	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was a domestic MRO or RDO There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOCC_NR of the ARCS1 table The DOC_NR has not yet been shipped 	AR9 – MRO confirmation reply to MRO Modifier
AME	Document Modifier with exception data	 A change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data The original DOC_NR was a domestic MRO or RDO There is a DOC_NR in the REDF that matches the DOCC_NR of the ARCS1 table The DOC_NR has already been shipped 	A61 – Material Release Denial if items already shipped
Follow	/-Ups		
AF1	Follow-up from requisitioner	 AF1 appears in the first three columns of COL_80 of VCSF table The requisition number and any suffix found in columns 30 through 44 match a prior requisition that was routed to the RIC of interest 	AE1 – Supply Status
AF2	Follow-up from by supplemental address	 AF2 appears in the first three columns of COL_80 of VCSF table The requisition number and any suffix found in columns 30 through 44 match a prior requisition that was routed to the RIC of interest 	AE2 – Supply Status
AF6	Follow-up from ICP	 AF6 appears in the first three columns of COL_80 of VCSF table The requisition number and any suffix found in columns 30 through 44 match a prior requisition that was routed to the RIC of interest 	AE6 – Supply Status
AFC	Follow-up Request for Improved ESD	 AFC appears in the first three columns of COL_80 of VCSF table The requisition number and any suffix found in columns 30 through 44 match a prior requisition that was routed to the RIC of interest 	AE1 – Supply Status
AFJ	Disposal Release Follow-up	 AFJ appears in the first three columns of COL_80 of VCSF table The requisition number and any suffix found in columns 30 through 44 match a prior requisition that was routed to the RIC of interest 	AEJ – Disposal Supply Status
AFX	Disposal Shipment/Receipt Confirmation Follow-up	 AFX appears in the first three columns of COL_80 of VCSF table The requisition number and any suffix found in columns 30 through 44 match a prior requisition that was routed to the RIC of interest 	ASZ – Disposal Shipment Confirmation

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies						
Dispo	isposal Release Orders and Cancellations								
A5J	Disposal Release Order	 New DOC_NR appears in ARCS1 table where the RIC in the ARCS3 table identifies the current depot The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) uses "DRMO", "DRMS", or "reutilization" in either the Name or TAC1Title of the DODAAC table. 	 ARJ – Disposal Release Confirmation ARK – Disposal Release Confirmation for release of quantity greater than requested ARL – Disposal Release Confirmation for release of quantity less than requested 						
ACJ	Disposal Release Cancellation	 The CANC_RQSTR_CD of the ARCS2 table is non-blank whenever a change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data where the prior order was the equivalent of a A5J. The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) uses "DRMO", "DRMS", or "reutilization" in either the Name or TAC1Title of the DODAAC table. The cancelled order has not yet been shipped 	AGJ – Reply to disposal release cancellation						
ACJ	Disposal Release Cancellation	 The CANC_RQSTR_CD of the ARCS2 table is non-blank whenever a change has occurred if the STATUS_DT of the ARCS2 table has been changed from the prior download of the data where the prior order was the equivalent of a A5J. The DODAAC of the DOC_NR (unless SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M, then use SUPP_ADDR as DODAAC) uses "DRMO", "DRMS", or "reutilization" in either the Name or TAC1Title of the DODAAC table. The cancelled order already been shipped (either exact, less than, or greater than originally ordered quantity) 	 AU0 – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material the same as requested AUA – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material greater than requested AUB – Reply to Cancellation Request - Material Release Confirmation for release of material less than requested 						

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
Arriva	of Shipments from Cor	tracts (does not apply to Bill & Hold Depots that use ASAP)	
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a contract (e.g., received using a DD250)	 Contract, Delivery Order, and CLIN from ACF table STG_LOC_RIC_2 of ACF is the depot of interest; or the first six characters of the DOC_NR is the depot's DODAAC; or the SUPP_ADDR is the depot's DODAAC if the SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M for the DOC_NR in ARCS1 Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "DM" 	D4M – Material receipt as a return of repaired or tested item using a procurement instrument source
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a contract (e.g., received using a DD250)	 Contract, Delivery Order, and CLIN from ACF table STG_LOC_RIC_2 of ACF is the depot of interest; or the first six characters of the DOC_NR is the depot's DODAAC; or the SUPP_ADDR is the depot's DODAAC if the SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M for the DOC_NR in ARCS1 The shipment comes from a manufacturer coded as government entity from CAGE table using DESIG code of "G" or "5" The DODAAC from the CAGE table does not start with a "G" but that does start with a letter 	D4U – Material receipt from procurement from DoD entity
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a contract (e.g., received using a DD250)	 Contract, Delivery Order, and CLIN from ACF table STG_LOC_RIC_2 of ACF is the depot of interest; or the first six characters of the DOC_NR is the depot's DODAAC; or the SUPP_ADDR is the depot's DODAAC if the SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M for the DOC_NR in ARCS1 The shipment comes from a manufacturer coded as government entity from CAGE table using DESIG code of "G" or "5" The DODAAC from the CAGE table starts with a "G" or a number 	D4V – Material receipt from procurement from non-DoD government entity
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a contract (e.g., received using a DD250)	 Contract, Delivery Order, and CLIN from ACF table STG_LOC_RIC_2 of ACF is the depot of interest; or the first six characters of the DOC_NR is the depot's DODAAC; or the SUPP_ADDR is the depot's DODAAC if the SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M for the DOC_NR in ARCS1 The shipment comes from a manufacturer coded as government entity from CAGE table using DESIG code of "G" or "5" The DODAAC from the CAGE table starts with a "G" or a number Position 1 and 2 of TYPE_DI = "TD" 	D4X – Material receipt from procurement from Decapitalization

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies						
None	Arrival of Shipment from a manufacturer who used ASAP to create the DD250 for the shipment	 Shipment, Contract, Delivery Order, and CLIN is from ASAPweb STG_LOC_RIC_2 of ACF is the depot of interest; or the first six characters of the DOC_NR is the depot's DODAAC; or the SUPP_ADDR is the depot's DODAAC if the SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M for the DOC_NR in ARCS1 	D4S – Material receipt for procurement instrument from commercial source (DEFAULT if not rules are satisfied)						
Arriva	Arrival of Shipments from Requisitions								
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M The TYPE_DI of the DUE Table is DFA, C, D or DFE The items are being returned from another DLA activity (i.e., DODAAC from DOC_NR that starts with an "S" or "U") 	D6A – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return from other DLA activity						
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M The TYPE_DI of the DUE Table is DFA, C, D or DFE The items are being returned from a DoD, but non-DLA activity (i.e., DODAAC that does not start with an "S" or "U" or "G" but that starts with a letter) 	D6B – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return from a non-DLA DoD activity						
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M Position 3 of TYPE_DI = "D" First character of DOC_NR = B, D, K, P or T AND first character of SUPP_ADDR = "Y" 	D6D – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return from a MAP Grant Aid activity						
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M First character of DOC_NR = B, D, K, P or T AND Position 3 of TYPE_DI = "E" 	D6E – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return from a FMS						
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FM" 	D6G – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return of unused material from destructive testing						
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FH" 	D6H – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return of unused GFM						

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies	
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M The DODAAC of the ARCS1 DOC_NR (or DODAAC in the SUPP_ADDR if DOC_NR DODAAC = "SC0100") uses "DRMO", "DRMS", or "reutilization" in either the Name or TAC1Title of the DODAAC table Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FJ" 	D6J – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as a return from property disposal	
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FK" 	D6K – Material receipt for other than procurement instrument for relocation of assets remaining under control of the same item manager	
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M The RIC of ARCS3 is neither blank nor null Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FL" 	D6L – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument as return from modification	
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition	 The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M The items come from another DLA activity (e.g., DODAAC starts with an "S" or "U") Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FA" 	D6T – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument from requisition from other DLA site	
None	 Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M The items come from a DoD, but non-DLA activity (i.e., DODAAC that does not start with an "S" or "U" or "G" but that starts with a letter) Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FB" 		D6U – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument from requisition from a non-DLA but other DoD activity	
None	Arrival of Shipment as directed by a requisition• The depot of interest is identified by its DODAAC in the first six characters of the DOC_NR of ARCS1 or in the SUPP_ADDR if SIGNAL_CD = J, K, L, or M• The items come from a non-DoD activity (i.e., DODAAC that starts with a number or the letter "G")• Position 2 and 3 of TYPE_DI = "FC"		D6V – Material receipt from non- procurement instrument from requisition from a non-DoD agency	

DIC	Description	Recognition Rules	Replies
None	Periodic contractual requirement that is initiated by the user based on a scheduled event	 User entries in the inventory count table along with the adjustment explanation and error classifications 	D8_ – Inventory Adjustment (Increase) D9_ – Inventory Adjustment (Decrease)

Notes:

1. Whenever the ADVICE_CD of ARCS1 is equal to "2D", the depot is required to ship the exact quantity requested. The quantity cannot be adjusted for unit pack.

Page 11 of 11

March 5, 2001

Appendix F

MIL Transactions Formats

Data Format for MILSTRIPs and MILSTRAPs

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
D6_	All D6_ DICs	1	3		
	RIC	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	Leave Blank	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44		
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	56		
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		
	Always Blank	60	66		
	RIC	67	69		RIC of receiving depot
	OP_CD	70	70		
	COND_CD	71	71		Entered by receiving organization from pull- down list of codes
	MGT_CD	72	72		
	Day of Year	73	75	Right justified, zero filled	
	Always Blank	76	80		

Note: All data is left justified, blank filled unless otherwise indicated (including all "Nulls" converted to blanks)
DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
D4_	All D4_ DICs	1	3		
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	Always Blank	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	PIIN	30	42		
	Always Blank	43	43		
	Always Blank	44	44		
	CLIN	45	50		
	Always Blank	51	53		
	DISTR_CD	54	56		
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		
	Shipment Number	60	66		Entered by receiving organization
	RIC of receiving organization	67	69		
	OP-CD	70	70		
	Condition Code	71	71		Supply condition selected by user from pull-down list
	MGMT_CD	72	72		
	Day of the Year	73	75	Right justified, zero filled	The day of the year that the MILSTRAP is generated
	Always Blank	76	76		
	CALL_NR	77	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
D8_ & D9_	All D8_ and D9_ DICs, except D8E, D8F, D8S, D9E, D9F, D9S	1	3		
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	Always Blank	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	Quantity to increase or decrease (do not use negative sign for decrease)
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44		
	Always Blank	45	51		
	Always Blank	52	53		
	Always Blank	54	56		
	Always Blank	57	59		
	Always Blank	60	62		
	Error Classification	63	64		Set by the user using a pull-down list
	Always Blank	65	65		
	Always Blank	66	66		
	RIC	67	69		RIC of depot making the adjustment
	Always Blank	70	70		
	Always Blank	71	71		
	Always Blank	72	72		
	Day of the year	73	75	Right justified, zero filled	Julian day of the year that this transaction was generated
	Always Blank	76	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
A2A	A2A	1	3		
	RIC	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		Always "S" (100 % supply status and shipment to requisitioner)
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	DMD_CD	44	44		
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		Always blank for replenishment orders from depots
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		Always set to "D", i.e., free-issue
	FUND_CD	52	53		Always set to "00"
	DIST_CD	54	56		???????????
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		Lion Vallen is always set to "EDI"
	PRIORITY_CD	60	61		Lion Vallen is always set to "06"
	RDD	62	64	Right justified, zero filled	Lion Vallen is always either null or "S24"
	ADVICE_CD	65	66		Always set to "27"
	Date of Receipt of Requisition	67	69		Leave Blank
	Ownership	70	70	OP_CD	
	Supply Condition	71	71		
	System Management	72	73		
	RIC of requestor	74	76		
	Inventory Control Data	77	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
A6_	All A6_ DICs except A6J	1	3	A61 – overseas shipment A65 – overseas shipment with exception data A6A – domestic shipment A6E – domestic shipment with exception data	Material Release Denial
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled Requested Qty – Shipped Qty	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44		
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	56		
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		
	PRIORITY_CD	60	61		
	RDD	62	64	Right justified, zero filled	
	ADVICE_CD	65	66		
	RIC	67	69		RIC of the depot sending this transaction
	OP_CD	70	70		
	COND_CD	71	71		Entered by sending organization from pull- down list of codes
	MGT_CD	72	72		
	Always Blank	73	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
A6J	A6J	1	3		Disposal Release Denial
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44	Leave Blank	
	Retention Quantity	45	51	Right justified, zero filled	The only reason for a disposal release order denial is that there are none on hand. Therefore, this will be set to zero. On hand qty from NIR2
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	54	Always "9"	Mike, this is always "9" in ARL, so I defaulted it here also. Doina
	Leave Blank	55	56		
	Denial Date	57	59	Right justified, zero filled	The day of the year that the MILSTRAP is generated
	Leave Blank	60	66		
	RIC	67	69		RIC of receiving depot
	OP_CD	70	70		
	COND_CD	71	71		Entered by receiving organization from pull- down list of codes
	MGT_CD	72	72	Always blank	
	Leave Blank	73	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
AF_	All AF_s	1	3		
	RIC	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	DMD_CD	44	44		
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	54		
	Leave Blank	55	56		
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		
	PRIORITY_CD	60	61		
	RDD	62	64		
	ADVICE_CD	65	66		
	Blank	67	69		
	Blank	70	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
AG6	AG6	1	3		Material Release Cancellation Reply
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	Cancellation qty
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44	Leave Blank	
	Always Blank	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	56		
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		
	PRIORITY_CD	60	61		
	RDD	62	64	Right justified, zero filled	
	ADVICE_CD	65	66		
	RIC	67	69		RIC of the depot sending this transaction
	Always Blank	70	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
AGJ	AGJ	1	3		Disposal Release Cancellation Reply
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44	Leave Blank	
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	Distribution	54	54	Always "9"	
	Quantity on hand	55	61	Right justified, zero filled	Total quantity currently on hand at this RIC
	Precious Metals Indicator	62	62	Always "A", i.e., no known precious metal	
	ADPE Identification	63	63	Always "0", i.e., no ADPE	
	DEMIL_CD	65	65		
	Reclamation	66	66	Always "N", i.e., reclamation not required	
	OP_CD	70	70		
	COND_CD	71	71		Entered by receiving organization from pull- down list of codes
	MGT_CD	72	72		
	Flight Safety Critical Aircraft Parts	73	73	Always Blank	
	ARCS1_UP	74	80		Unit price

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
AR_ & AU_	AR0, ARA, & ARB AU0, AUA, & AUB	1	3		Material Release Confirmation
	RIC	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44	Leave Blank	
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	HOLD_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	POE (Port of Embarkation)	54	56		Leave blank except for OCONUS destinations.
	Date Shipped	57	59	Right justified, zero filled	Julian day
	TCN	60	76		Determined by code that generates the shipping label (DD 1387)
	Mode of Shipment	77	77		Set by user using pull- down list when preparing shipping label
	Date Available for Shipment	78	80	Right justified, zero filled	Set to Date Shipped

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
AR_	ARJ, ARK, & ARL	1	3	ARJ: ship qty = req qty ARK: ship qty > req qty ARL: ship qty < req qty	Disposal Release Confirmation
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		ARCS1
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	Shipped qty
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44	Leave Blank	
	Retention Quantity	45	51	Right justified, zero filled	Calculated by subtracting the shipped QTY from the current on-hand inventory level; changed to use NIR2 qty
	FUND_CD	52	53		ARCS1
	DIST_CD	54	54	Always "9"	
	Always Blank	55	56		
	Ship Date	57	59	Right justified, zero filled	Today's Julian day of year
	Always Blank	60	61		
	Precious Metals Indicator	62	62	Always "A", i.e., no known precious metal	
	ADPE Identification	63	63	Always "0", i.e., no ADPE	
	Disposal Authority	64	64	Always set to "M"	
	STATUS_CODE	65	66	Always set to "DG"	
	RIC	67	69		RIC of the depot sending this transaction
	OP_CD	70	70		ARCS3
	COND_CD	71	71		ARCS3
	MGT_CD	72	72	Always blank	ARCS3 is always blank
	Always Blank	73	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
AE_	All AE_s	1	3		Supply Status Replies
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44		
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	56		
	PROJECT_CD	57	59		
	PRIORITY_CD	60	61		
	Transaction Date	62	64	Right justified, zero filled	Today's Julian day of the year
	Status	65	66		The user defines the status of the requisition using a pull-down list of valid codes
	RIC	67	69		RIC of depot sending this reply
	Shipping Date	70	73	Right justified, zero filled of the form YDDD	This is either the actual shipped date or the planned ship date as entered by the user
	Always Blank	74	80		

DIC	Data Element	From Column	To Column	Special Rules*	Notes
ASZ	ASZ	1	3		Disposal Shipment Confirmation
	RIC of ICP	4	6		ICP (e.g., SMS for BSM)
	MEDIA_STAT_CD	7	7		
	NSN	8	22		
	UI	23	24		
	QTY	25	29	Right justified, zero filled	
	DOC_NR	30	43		
	SFX_CD	44	44	Leave Blank	
	SUPP_ADDR	45	50		
	SIGNAL_CD	51	51		
	FUND_CD	52	53		
	DIST_CD	54	54	Always "9"	
	Always Blank	55	64		
	ADVICE_CD	65	66		
	Always Blank	67	80		

Appendix G

RFID Upload Format

Size
5 AN
6 AN
13 AN
4 AN – blank if contract does not have Delivery Orders
16, 24, 32 or 64 HEX – blank if case not palletized
16, 24, 32 or 64 HEX
13 AN
integer

This should be a pipe delimited file. The file extension should be .FTP The file should be named as follows: CAGE_yyyymmddsequence.FTP (i.e. 6A315_20060410.FTP)

Where

CAGE = the CAGE code (5 AN) Yyyymmdd = the day the file is generated Sequence = 1 AN; if more than one file is transmitted on the same day, the sequence should be A, B, C etc (6A315_20060410A.FTP)

Sample File

9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000670|2F12039553930370000005DB|8435014561526|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F020395539303700000671|2F12039553930370000005DC|8435014561992|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F020395539303700000671|2F12039553930370000005DD|8435014561554|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005DE|8435014561554|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000670|2F12039553930370000005DF|8435014561751|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000670|2F12039553930370000005E0|8435014561974|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005E1|8435014561738|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F020395539303700000670|2F12039553930370000005E2|8435014561776|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005E3|8435014561989|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F020395539303700000670|2F12039553930370000005E4|8435014561526|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000670|2F12039553930370000005E5|8435014561776|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000670|2F12039553930370000005E6|8435014561761|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000670|2F12039553930370000005E7|8435014561761|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005E8|8435014561690|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005E9|8435014561554|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F020395539303700000671|2F12039553930370000005EA|8435014561562|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005EB|8435014561710|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005EC|8435014561571|6 9U907|W62G2T|SP010006D0351|0002|2F0203955393037000000671|2F12039553930370000005ED|8435014561554|6